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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 28 MAY 2021 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning Mr Seleka,  good morning 

everybody.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Morn ing Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I  am deal ing wi th  the  Eskom 

appl icat ion for  leave to  cross-examine Mr Koko f i rs t .   Who 

appears for  Eskom? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes they are here Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes put  on your  – swi tch on your  mic.   

Yes.   Somebody wi l l  ass is t  you.   Yes i f  i t  is  –  you can 10 

address me seated i f  that  is  more convenient  there because 

of  the mic.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Chai r  Chr is  McConnachie appear ing  

for  Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:  My leader Mr Ngcukai tob i  is  cur rent ly  

act ing in  the Eastern Cape.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:  That  i s  why I  have been –  I  have 

been assigned to do h is  appl i cat ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   No that  i s  f ine.   Thank you.   

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Barr ie  you appear for  Mr Koko.  

ADV BARRIE SC:   Yes S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  must  –  I  must  say that  I  d id  not  –  I  d id  
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not  come across any opposing papers for  Mr Koko and I  do  

not  see them here .   What  is  the pos i t ion Mr Barr ie?  

ADV BARRIE SC:   Those papers were f i led long ago.   They 

were made avai lab le to  the commission again today – th is  

week rather  and I  received a document  th is  morn ing f rom 

Ms Van Vuuren which purpor ted to  be the repaginated 

bundle but  I  d id  not  check that  to  see whether  a l l  the – and 

whether  the – a l l  the papers are in  there.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV BARRIE SC:   Inc lud ing the –  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  was… 

ADV BARRIE SC:   I t  i s  because opposing aff idavi t  and 

Eskom’s reply.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  was – I  was g iven the impression  maybe 

a day or  two ago that  Mr Koko was opposing and that  there 

may have been papers but  I  see that  they are not  here.   

What  i s  the ( ta lk ing over  one another ) .  

ADV BARRIE SC:   The bundle that  I  received should be … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Has got  them.   And – Mr Seleka.  

ADV BARRIE SC:   The only bundle that  I  received th is  20 

morning has Mr Koko’s aff idavi t  f rom page 110.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Koko – Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   What  i s  the sto ry?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The – there is  a  bundle prepared Chai r  
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on page… 

CHAIRPERSON:   The one I  have got  here does not  have 

opposing papers.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Chai r  p lease check page 110 –  110.   I  

see they d id red paginat ion.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   But  there is  –  oh okay no,  I  see 

there is  in  th is  f i le  but  I  have not  had a chance to read i t  but  

I  th ink le t  us see how i t  goes.   Let  me hear  the legal  

representat i ve for  Eskom f i rs t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  h im go to  the podium.   P lease just  

repeat  your  name so I  can make sure I  have got  i t  r ight .  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Thank you Chai rperson.   I t  is  Chr is 

McConnachie of  the Johannesburg Bar fo r  Eskom and… 

CHAIRPERSON:   M-c – that  is  –  how do you spel l  

McConnachie.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   I t  is  M-c-C 

CHAIRPERSON:   Capi ta l  le t ters c  the second one.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Capi ta l  le t te r  C that  is  correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

ADV McCONNACHIE:   O-n-n  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   O-n-n  

CHAIRPERSON:   O-n-n  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   A -c-h  
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CHAIRPERSON:   S-c-h  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Sor ry Chai r  a  for  apple – a-c-h- i -e .  

CHAIRPERSON:   McConnachie that  is  cor rect  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  i t  Shie or  Chie  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Chie.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Chie.   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV McCONNACHIE:    Yes there is  a  long h is to ry Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Chai r  00:05:48 we have prepared a  

shor t  note fo r  argument  which apar t  f rom set t ing out  the 10 

correct  spel l ing of  the surnames a lso inc ludes a br ie f  

synopsis of  the case which one needs to  00:05:56.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay le t  me have that .  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   I f  I  can beg leave to  hand i t  up.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   I  am sure you – you – everybody was 

g iven an ind icat ion  that  I  d id  not  th ink we should take too  

long on the mat te r.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   And we hope the note fo r  a rgument  20 

wi l l  expedi te  th ings.   I  cer ta in ly  do not  in tend to  read or  to  

take you th rough i t  in  any deta i l  but  – but  i t  is  designed to 

s imply capture th is  – the key cr isp points.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   And a lso to  summarise the essence 
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o f  the appl i cat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   I  w i l l  te l l  you what  my concerns are  

because i f  you persuade me on those concerns then I  wi l l  

hear  what  Mr Bar r ie  has to  say.   I  do not  know whether  Mr  

Seleka in tends saying anyth ing and then we wi l l  take  i t  f rom 

there.    

 As I  understand Mr – I  mean Eskom’s appl i cat ion  

basica l ly  they are concerned that  Mr Koko has g iven the  

impression or  g iven evidence to the effect  or  that  suggests  

that  they had no proper  grounds for  tak ing d isc ip l inary 10 

act ion against  h im.  

 That  seems to be the main th ing.   Am I  correct?  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Chai rperson the – i t  might  assis t  i f  I  

–  i f  I  s tar t  by dea l ing wi th  those accusat ions that  impl icated  

Eskom and there are two par ts  to  that .   There is  the. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but  I  want  to  character ise the basis 

f i rs t .   Is  that  correct  that  that  is  the main basis.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   That  is  the f i rs t  basis  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja what  i s  the other  one.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Because there is  a  second basis.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  What  i s  the second one? 

ADV McCONNACHIE:   There is  the second and then 

perhaps -  perhaps even more cr i t i ca l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja which one is  that?  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Is  the a l legat ion that  repeatedly 
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made by Mr Koko in  h is  aff idavi t  and in  a l l  the n ine 

hear ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   That  Eskom mis led the High Court   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Regard ing  Mr Koko’s ro le  in  the 

McKinsey MSA t ranslat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV McCONNACHIE:   And the var ious imputat ions that  he  

has made of  d ishonesty against  Eskom.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   And a lso we Chai r  very  ser ious 

accusat ions made against  the three judges of  the fu l l  cour t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   In  Pretor ia .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Who Mr Koko suggests were  par t  o f  

what  he has co lour fu l l y  terms the Koko hunt .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  Okay no that  is  f ine.   To a very large 

extent  that  does not  d is turb the concern I  want  to  put  to  20 

you.   And that  concern is  th is  that  you know when your  – 

when your  – when the person who is  apply ing for  leave to  

cross-examine as  compla ins that  a  wi tness has impl icated  

them in corrupt ion or  s tate capture that  i s  an  easier  

appl i cat ion to  grant .   Th is one does not  appear to  fa l l  w i th in  



28 MAY 2021 – DAY 405 
 

Page 9 of 239 
 

that  as I  see wi th in  that  category as I  see i t .   The – th is  one 

seems to revolve  around saying in  effect  what  th is  wi tness 

has sa id  about  us  is  factual l y  not  t rue or  i s  just  not  just i f ied 

by the evidence.   You know.  

 Now my inc l inat ion wi th  regard to  mat ters such as  

that  i s  to  say th is  i s  an inqui ry.   You have got  ev idence 

leaders who lead the evidence and who act  o r  per fo rm thei r  

dut ies in  te rms of  among others ru les that  say they need to 

quest ion wi tnesses wi th  a v iew to establ i sh ing the t ru th.  

 In  those c i rcumstances and most  of  course wi th  10 

where we are now in  terms of  t ry ing  to  wrap up the ev idence 

there may be d i f f icu l t y  in  seeing why i t  i s  in  the in terest  o f  

the work of  the commission and of  course that  is  what  the 

ru les say why i t  is  in  the in te rest  o f  the work  of  the 

commission to  grant  leave to  c ross-examine.  

 Mr Koko is  one of  those wi tnesses who has 

appeared here many t imes and has been quest ioned many – 

for  a  long t ime by the ev idence leader of  the re levant  work 

– work st ream.  

 Of  course the inqui ry  is  –  funct ions on the basis that  20 

i f  for  example an  employee of  Eskom – off i c ia l  o f  Eskom or  

former  off i c ia l  o f  Eskom is  before the commission and g ives 

cer ta in  ev idence Eskom is  ent i t led i f  i t  th inks that  the 

ev idence is  not  correct  to  p lace or  g ive the commission  

evidence that  wi l l  g ive the correct  p ic ture so that  the  
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w i tness can be quest ioned on the st rength o f  a l l  the 

ev idence.   

But  a lso Eskom could say wel l  or  could have sa id  

wel l  i f  th is  wi tness of  ours has not  been led we suggest  that  

th is  wi tness be led because he or  she wi l l  then be able to  

put  the correct  p ic tu re.  

So my inc l inat ion  wi th  th is  category is  – is  that  I  wi l l  

s t ruggle to  conclude that  i t  is  in  the  in terest  o f  – of  the work 

of  the commission to  grant  leave.   So that  i s  what  I  wanted 

to  put  to  you but  you can address me.  10 

ADV McCONNACHIE:  Thank you Chai rperson I  appreciate  

that  sphere on your  concerns.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   And I  in tend to  address those 

concerns d i rect ly  in  three par ts  wi th  your  leave Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   The f i rs t  is  that  very important  

concern about  the a l legat ions that  Mr Koko has made and 

whether  Eskom could t ru ly  be categor ised as an impl icated  

par ty  in  terms of  the ru les.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Which I  be l ieve would be your  f i rs t  

concern Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   The second concerns then re lates to  
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the proposed l ine of  c ross-examinat ion that  Eskom 

proposes to  address those a l legat ions.   And the th i rd  l ink to  

that  is  why that  l ine of  cross examinat ion would be assis t ing  

the commission in  wrapping up i t s  work and be in  the best  

in terests of  the commission.  

 So Chai r  . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   So Chai r  in  the course of  that  I  hope 

I  would address the concerns.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Yes.  10 

ADV McCONNACHIE:   I f  I  may star t  then Chai r  wi th  that  

very f i rs t  po int  that  you ra ised wi th  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   And that  is  the quest ion  of  the 

a l legat ions and the impl icat ions.  Chai r  we have summarised 

those a l legat ions again for  your  reference at  page 4 of  the  

notes that  I  handed up and onwards.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   And I  do not  in tend to  take you 

through in  any deta i l  through the var ious a l legat ions that  Mr 20 

Koko made in  h is  aff idavi t s  and before in  th is  hear ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   But  I  th ink  the per t inent  po int  you 

put  to  me Chai r  i s  how does that  impl icate Eskom? 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  r ight  yes.  
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ADV McCONNACHIE:   And i f  I  may star t  wi th  the f i rs t  

a l legat ion that  Mr  Koko makes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And – and – and the impl icat ion might  not  

just  be impl icat ion but  impl icat ions in  the k inds of  

a l legat ions that  the commissions is  invest igat ing.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You know.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because otherwise  i f  i t  is  jus t  some 

impl icat ion that  does not  fa l l  w i th in  what  we are 10 

invest igat ing there might  be a prob lem to.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   I f  I  may star t  wi th  that  f i rs t  

a l legat ion.   Cha i r  you wi l l  recal l  that  Mr Koko in  h is  

ev idence on 3  December suggested that  Eskom had 

fabr icated the d isc ip l inary charges that  he had faced in  

January of  2018 and he made the  per t inent  a l legat ion that  

they fabr icated these on the inst ruct ions of  the then Deputy 

President  and the suggest ion was in  essence Chai r  one of  20 

a lmost  reversed state capture  a  form of  in te r ference in  

Eskom’s funct ions which resul ted in  – in  Mr Koko’s words 

abased the set  o f  d isc ip l inary charges put  to  h im in  January 

of  2018.    

 Those are the d isc ip l inary charges Chai r  that  Mr  
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Koko in  the course of  h is  d isc ip l inary hear ing in  February of  

2018 he res igned th i r ty  minutes  in to that  hear ing rather  

than answer ing to  those charges.  

 But  never theless he has used these proceedings to  

perpetuate th is  nar rat i ve that  those charges were baseless  

and had no substance even though he in  essence ran away 

f rom those charges Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  course – of  course i t  is  not  

unreasonable to  th ink that  a  bystander could wel l  th ink that  

he was running away f rom fac ing  those charges which – 10 

which would not  be consistent  wi th  any a l legat ion tha t  those 

charges were wi thout  foundat ion.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Indeed Cha i r  but  he has used these 

proceedings of  course to  p resent  a d i f fe rent  narrat ive that  

he… 

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no I  understand that  but  a l l  what  I  am 

saying is  that  mere point  could we l l  send a message to the  

publ i c  that  does not  support  any a l legat ion  that  the –  that  

Eskom had brought  baseless charges against  h im because 

i f  they were baseless why d id he not  meet  them head on? 20 

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Indeed Chai r  we would hope that  

that  would be the  reasonable in fe rence that  someone would 

draw but  the impl icat ion that  Mr Koko and the a l legat ions he 

has cont inued to make is  to  say that . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh of  course you – you may appreciate 
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why i t  is  re levant  for  me to ra ise that .  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  s imply because i t  may d i lu te the  

st rength of  your  case insofar  as you say th is  person says 

we brought  baseless charges against  h im insofar  as i t  goes 

to  that .   You have a s i tuat ion where  by h is  conduct  the  

publ i c  might  not  or  a t  least  some of  the publ i c  might  –  par t  

o f  the publ i c  might  not  be l ieve that .  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Chai r  that  i s  the in fe rence we hope 

would be drawn.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   But  o f  course Mr Koko has presented 

a very d i f ferent  vers ion in  f ront  o f  th is  commission.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Yes.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   And i t  goes to  the point  o f  

impl icat ion because Mr Koko has in  essence in fer red that  

the board of  Eskom breached i ts  f iduciary dut ies by  put t ing 

together  t rumped up charges based on external  in te r ference 

which of  course Chai r  is  a  very ser ious cr iminal  o ffence that  

goes to  PFMA obl igat ions of  the board,  i ts  f iduciary 20 

obl igat ions which  are backed up by cr iminal  sanct ions.   We 

suggest  the Chai r  that  cer ta in ly  is  a  – an a l legat ion which is  

very much at  the hear t  o f  the commission’s work and indeed 

par t  o f  –  of  course the commission’s ro le  i s  not  on ly  to  

address that  maladmin ist rat ion that  has occur red but  a lso to  
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support  e ffor ts  to  uncover  maladmin ist rat ion and indeed Mr 

Koko’s a l legat ions ca l l ing to  quest ion those effo r ts .  

 But  Chai r  the second and more important  a l legat ion 

which Mr Koko has made is  as  I  ment ioned in i t ia l ly  the 

pers is tent  a l legat ion that  Eskom mis led the High Court  that  

the High Court  i t se l f  was mis led regard ing Mr Koko ’s ro le  in 

the Master  Serv ices  Agreement .  

 That  is  the thread that  runs between the f i rs t  and 

second a l legat ions.   Mr Koko of  course te l l s  the commission 

repeatedly that  he  had noth ing  to  do wi th  the  Master  10 

Serv ices  Agreement  in  h is  own words he sa id he had zero  

ro le  – zero ro le  whatsoever  and he a lso den ies any 

involvement  in  fac i l i ta t ing that  agreement ,  set t lement  for  

the R1.6 b i l l ion that  was u l t imate ly  paid out  un lawfu l ly  to  

McKinsey and Tr i l l ian.  

 But  Chai r  Mr Koko has in  h is  aff idavi t  in i t ia l l y  to ld  

the cour t  to  quote and th is  i s  h is  or ig ina l  a ff idavi t  to  the 

commission paragraph 230 he says quote:  

“Eskom clear ly  d id  not  make proper  honest  

d isc losure to  the cour t . ”  20 

 But  in  h is  submissions to  the  cour t  – to  the  

commission rather  on 3 December  he went  fur ther  to  then 

make very ser ious a l legat ions against  the cour t  i tse l f  where 

Chai r  on 3 December Mr Koko i t  i s  a  long passage which I  

wi l l  not  g ive to  the cour t  but  we summarise i t  a t  page 6 of  
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the notes.  

 In  essence again to  quote says? 

“The members  of  the cour t  the fu l l  bench 

was caught  in  the  state capture theory”  

 I t  was h is  quote.   In  subsequent  proceedings he has 

doubled down of  those a l legat ions Chai r.   He has gone on 

to  – and th is  i s  a  quote taken f rom his p roceedings on the 

4 t h  o f  May th is  year  which we quote at  page 7 paragraph 

12.7.   He suggests and I  again quote  

“And I  th ink the  gossipers and the people 10 

that  a re on the  Koko hunt  missed i t  the 

var ious a l legat ions inc lud ing your  

co l leagues at  the  Pretor ia  High Court  which  

is  one the very painfu l  th ings to  me because 

they concluded there was a corrupt  

re la t ionship and I  am saying to  you i f  they  

had regard to  the ev idence that  you now 

have they would  have reached a  d i f fe rent  

conclus ion. ”  

 So Chai rperson there are two very ser ious 20 

a l legat ions combined in  there.   The f i rs t  i s  one that  says 

Eskom in i ts  e f for ts  to  address maladmin ist rat ion and 

corrupt ion has in  effect  commit ted grave breaches of  i ts  

dut ies;  i t  has l ied to  the cour ts  and Mr Koko seeks to  

exonerate h imsel f  but  he a lso then makes very ser ious 
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a t tacks on the in tegr i t y  o f  the jud ic ia l  process and the  

cour ts  i tse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You see insofar  as the basis fo r  Eskom’s  

appl i cat ion  is  th is  man has sa id we have behaved badly.   

You know.   I  do not  see why i t  i s  not  enough to leave i t  to  

the ev idence leaders to  put  the cor rect  p ic ture to  the  publ i c .   

You see.   Whatever  bad conduct  i t  is  i f  i t  is  not  cor rupt ion,  

s tate capture,  f raud you know.  

 So – so – because imagine i f  over  the past  th ree  

years  I  was grant ing appl i cat ions where that  is  the  10 

compla int  how many – how many people would have been – 

would have occupied the t ime of  the commission you know.  

So that  i s  my d i f f icu l t y  where you are not  impl icated in  acts  

of  s tate capture ,  cor rupt ion and f raud because I  th ink 

pr imar i ly  the  ru les seek to  afford those – that  category of  

people you know th is  opportuni ty  of  cross-examinat ion.   

 I t  may be that  technica l ly  i t  i s  not  l i ke that  but  in  the 

end when one considers the in te rests  of  the funct ion of  the  

commission – the  work of  the commission i t  seems to me 

that  i t  is  reasonable to  say look as far  as possib le  i f  your  20 

compla int  is  s imp ly that  somebody has sa id you have l ied  

about  them that  k ind of  th ing  tha t  should be suff i c ient ly  

taken care of  by the fact  that  there  are ev idence leaders of  

the commission who in  te rms of  the ru les I  d i rected  fashion  

wi tnesses wi th  a v iew to establ ish ing the t ru th you know.    
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 So – so  that  –  those – that  would be my inc l inat ion.   

Okay.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   I f  I  could g ive two responses Chai r?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   The f i rs t  response is  that  these 

a l legat ions we would submi t  do amount  to  a  form of  

a l legat ions to  state capture.   The f i rs t  a l legat ion  is  that  

Eskom put  together  t rumped up charges on the basis of  

pure ly  external ,  po l i t ica l  in te r fe rence.  

 And the second is  that  Mr Koko is  the v ic t im of  a  10 

grand conspi racy  – a conspi racy hunt  where he is  be ing 

mal igned and in  fact  Eskom has mis led the cour ts  about  h is  

ro le  in  s tate capture.  

 So Chai r  we would submi t  that  both of  those are  

again accusat ions level led at  the Eskom board and the 

Eskom di rectors which suggests g rave breaches of  f iducia ry 

dut ies which of  course go the very core of  th is  commission’s  

funct ion around the proper  funct ion ing of  s tate – organs of  

s tate,  parastata ls  and ensur ing  that  maladmin ist rat ion,  

corrupt ion is  adequate ly  addressed and n ipped in  the bud.  20 

 But  Chai r  the second point  and the quest ion you 

have put  to  me – a  very  important  quest ion  is  –  is  i t  not  

enough that  the ev idence leaders have led the evidence and 

that  br ings me to the second top ic  which I  in tended to  

address and that  is  the l ine of  cross-examinat ion  Eskom 



28 MAY 2021 – DAY 405 
 

Page 19 of 239 
 

proposes.  

 Because of  course Chai r  we do not  for  one moment  

seek to  undermine or  c r i t ic i ze the evidence leaders  for  the 

manner in  which  they presented the evidence before the 

commission.   Eskom’s l ine of  c ross-examinat ion is  instead 

a imed to bui ld  upon and to compl iment  the  l ine of  

examinat ion that  Mr Seleka and others have a l ready 

presented.  

 But  what  we suggest  Chai r  is  that  there are two 

important  gaps which would  be important  for  the 10 

commission to  thaw and to at  leas t  have the proper  vers ion 

in  f ront  o f  the commission.  

 The f i rs t  o f  course Chai r  is  that  none of  those very  

ser ious a l legat ions that  I  have addressed have encountered 

a – any response – for thr ight  response thus fa r.  

 Mr Koko has had n ine separate occasions in  f ront  o f  

the commission where he has vo iced these a l legat ions.   

They have a l l  been le f t  in  the a i r  which of  course leaves a  

s ign i f i cant  ta in t  both on Eskom and on the  in tegr i ty  o f  the  

jud ic ia l  process that  Eskom pursued.  20 

 But  Chai rperson the – the second par t  we would  

suggest  i s  that  what  is  under ly ing a l l  o f  Mr  Koko’s  

a l legat ions against  Eskom is  h is  pers is tent  a l legat ion that  

he had no ro le to  p lay in  the Master  Serv ices Agreement  

and the unlawfu l  payments that  f lowed f rom that .  
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 And that  is  what  we propose would be the cr isp 

focus of  Eskom’s l ine in tended and proposed cross-

examinat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  course that  is  –  that  is  one of  the 

th ings that  are at  the hear t  o f  what  the – one of  the features 

of  what  the commission is  looking in to in  re la t ion to  Eskom 

and of  course he has been quest ioned qui te  extensive ly  on 

that .  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Indeed Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  might  not  be  to  your  l ik ing or  your  10 

c l ient ’s  l ik ing but  he has been quest ioned and the 

quest ion ing as I  understand i t  there may st i l l  be –  he  may 

st i l l  be requi red  to  f i le  – he might  s t i l l  be sent  wr i t ten 

quest ions and f i le  a  wr i t ten answers under aff idavi t  but  that  

has received qu i te  some – qui te  some t ime has been 

devoted to  that  is  i t  not?  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Chai r  we address that  po int  a t  page 

8 and 9 of  the no tes and indeed we could not  suggest  that  

Mr Seleka has not  addressed Mr Koko’s ro le  and has – he  

has indeed put  quest ions to  Mr Koko re lated to  that  ro le  but  20 

what  we suggest  Chai r  is  we have l is tened very care fu l ly  to  

the quest ions and Mr Koko’s answers.   We have stud ied the  

t ranscr ip ts  but  we submi t  that  there are addi t ional  l ines of  

quest ion ing which would be impor tant  to  pursue to  ensure 

that  Mr Koko is  put  the sword in  essence and to commit  to  a 
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vers ion.   Because Mr Seleka has of  course e l ic i ted some 

very te l l ing responses f rom Mr Koko but  there are a number 

of  loose threads connected to  three main top ics Chai r.  

 That  is  Mr Koko’s  in i t ia l  ro le  in  the  negot ia t ions,  h is  

ro le  in  the set t lement  process and h is  ro le  in  the payments.  

And we have out l ined Chai r  a  couple of  i l lust rat i ve points 

where we submi t  that  there are – there is  need fo r  focusses 

cross-examinat ion of  Mr Koko.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   In  a way which of  course Mr  Seleka 10 

as an evidence leaders would not  be able to  delve in to that  

in  ( ta lk ing over  one another)  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja I  do not  want  to  dupl i cate tha t .   I  do 

not  want  to  dupl icate that .  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   I  cer ta in ly  w i l l  not  but… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   But  i f  I  cou ld g ive you one example  

Chai r  as an i l lust rat ion? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Of  where we bel ieve that  Mr Koko 20 

needs to  be… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  maybe do not  g ive i t  to  me but  I  –  I  

can te l l  you that  you are most  welcome to approach Mr  

Seleka and make suggest ions of  areas where you – you 

th ink as Eskom – as Eskom would  l ike h im to cons ider  to  
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say we would l ike  to  consider  the fo l lowing but  that  wi l l  not  

–  I  do not  th ink that  would be good enough to grant  leave as  

such because that  is  someth ing that  fa l l s  square ly  wi th in  

what  – what  the ev idence leader i s  deal ing wi th  and i t  is  

someth ing that  the commission is  deal ing wi th .  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Chai rperson cer ta in ly  Eskom has 

provided assis tance to  the ev idence leader ’s  team and we… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   But  we understand at  least  f rom the  

19 t h  o f  May the f ina l  c los ing por t ion of  the hear ing of  Mr  10 

Koko that  was the very last  t ime that  he wi l l  ca l led  to  the 

commission unless the appl i cat ion for  cross-examinat ion 

should be granted.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  cer ta in ly  I  th ink that  in  terms of  h im 

appear ing I  th ink  what  was sa id was that  subject  to  cross-

examinat ion he would not  be ca l led  back but  not  on ly  he but  

there are a few other  wi tnesses in  respect  o f  whom 

ar rangements have been made that  they would be sent  

wr i t ten quest ions and they would  be obl iged to  provide 

responses by way of  a ff idavi t s .  20 

 So – so that  could be taken care o f .   Obviously i t  is  

not  the same as quest ion ing and when a wi tness is  on the 

wi tness stand but  th is  i s  a  commission of  inqui ry  – i t  is  not  

l i t igat ion so some of  the th ings – one has got  to  balance a 

lo t  o f  factors.    
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 But  I  have g iven you I  th ink… 

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   More than enough t ime.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   And i f  I  may just  conclude by br ie f l y  

addressing that  last  po int  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV McCONNACHIE:   Why i t  would be in  the commission’s 

best  in te rests.   And that  comes to the nub of  i t  that  Eskom 

proposes a cr isp  focussed set  o f  cross-examinat ion of  no  

more than th ree hours which  would be led  by Mr  10 

Ngcukai tob i  . . . [audio cut ]  s t i ck  to  t he  fac t s .   He was  br ie fed  

fo r  Mr  Koko ’s  d isc ip l ina ry  inqu i ry.   He was a lso  the  lead  

counse l  in  Eskom’s  rev iew app l ica t ion  to  se t  as ide  the  MSA 

and var ious o ther  cont rac ts .   And the  proposa l  i s  tha t  

because Mr  Ngucka i tob i  i s  so  deep ly  s teeped in  the  mat te r,  

he  cou ld  render  g reat  ass is tance to  the  Commiss ion  by  

focuss ing  on  those f ina l  lose  th reads,  pu t t ing  i t  to  Mr Koko  

and fo r  once and fo r  a l l  ge t t ing  r id  o f  the  incred ib le  

negat ive  aspers ions tha t  Mr  Koko has cast ,  no t  on ly  on  

Eskom,  bu t  a lso  on  the  jud i c ia ry.    20 

 And we had hoped,  Cha i rperson,  tha t  a f te r  Mr  

Koko ’s  n ine  separa te  appearances,  th ree  hours  wou ld  

cer ta in ly  be  enough and i t  w i l l  be  more  than jus t  in  the 

c i rcumstances to  a l low Eskom to  ass is t  the  Commiss ion  to  

f ina l l y  pu t  to  bed Mr  Koko ’s  very  ser ious a l legat ions.   
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Cha i r,  we have a lso  suggested -  o f  course ,  we unders tand  

tha t  there  w i l l  be  oppor tun i ty  fo r  fu r the r  wr i t ten  quest ions  

to  be  pu t  to  Mr  Koko,  bu t  we wou ld  submi t ,  Cha i r,  tha t  a  

w i tness cannot  come and both  seek to  exonera te  h imse l f ,  

wh ich  goes to  the  core  o f  the  funct ion  o f  the  Commiss ion ,  

bu t  in  do ing  so ,  i ssue ve ry  se r ious a l legat ions o f  s ta te  

capture  and un lawfu lness and indeed c r im ina l  o f fences  

aga ins t  those who have sought  to  b r ing  h im to  book  and to  

ensure  tha t  he  is  he ld  accountab le  fo r  h is  ac t ions.    

 So,  Cha i r,  in  those c i r cumstances ,  we submi t  tha t  10 

i t  wou ld  be  o f  g rea t  ass i s tance to  the  Commiss ion  to  make  

those focussed submiss ions and o f  course  i t  wou ld  be  a  

compl iment  to  wr i t ten  quest ions tha t  m ight  be  pu t  to  

Mr  Koko but  th ree  hours ,  we wou ld  submi t ,  p resented by  

sen ior  counse l ,  who has fo r  years  been up c lose  to  these 

mat te rs ,  wou ld  be  o f  g rea t  ass i s tance in  the  Commiss ion  in  

conc lud ing  i t s  work .    

 So,  Cha i r,  I  have  –  those are  our  submiss ions.   I  

w i l l  l i s ten  ca re fu l l y  to  Mr  Bar r i e  and i f  needs be,  I  w i l l  ask  

leave fo r  a  very  b r ie f  rep ly,  i f  tha t  wou ld  be  in  o rder.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  you  might  no t  ge t  a  chance to 

rep ly.   [ laughs]  

ADV McCONNACHIE :    I t  i s  in  you r  hands,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  we have go t  to  use the  t ime tha t  we  

have proper ly.   I  had hoped tha t  we wou ld  f in ish  a t  about  
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quar te r  past ,  twenty  past .   We have gone beyond tha t  bu t  

because I  am c lear  in  my mind,  I  w i l l  no t  hear  any  fu r ther  

a rgument .   The app l i ca t ion  is  d i smissed.   I  w i l l  no t  g ive  

reasons but  i f  they  are  asked fo r,  I  w i l l  g ran t  them.   I  w i l l  

g ive  them.   Thank  you.  

ADV McCONNACHIE :    Thank you,  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you,  Mr  McConnach ie   Thank you.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   I  w i l l  then be  

excused . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    You are  excused .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  you are  excused.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Bar r ie ,  you are  excused as  

we l l .  

ADV BARRIE SC :    Thank you ,  Mr  Cha i r.   I  w i l l  no t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.  

ADV BARRIE SC :    We wi l l . . .  [m icrophone not  work ing ]  . . . in  

due course  not  be  wr i t ten  responses to  what  has been put  20 

to  us  by  Mr  Se leka,  I  th ink  a lso  du r ing  the  past  week .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  tha t  is  f ine .  

ADV BARRIE SC :    I  th ink . . .  [m icrophone not  work ing  –  

unc lea r ]  . . .we commi t ted  ourse l ves fo r  the  10 t h  o f  June fo r  

tha t  purpose and  we w i l l  do  our  best  to  comply  w i th  tha t .   
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Thank you,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  thank you,  thank you.   

Mr  Myburgh,  do  you need me to  ad journ  a  b i t ,  fo r  f i ve  

m inutes?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  p lease ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay.   I  w i l l  ad journ  fo r  ten 

m inutes  so  tha t  we can s tar t  w i th  the  day ’s  w i tness.   We 

ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Good morn ing ,  Mr  Myburgh .   Good  

morn ing ,  everybody.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Good morn ing ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Good morn ing .   I  had hoped we were  

go ing  to  s ta r t  ear l ie r.   I  am sor ry  tha t  i t  d id  no t  happen.   

Thank you.   Mr  S ingh.  

MR SINGH :    Good morn ing ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Good morn ing  to  you.   The oath  wh ich  

you took yesterday w i l l  con t inue to  app ly  today.  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  f ine ,  s i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  thank you.  

ANOJ SINGH :   (s .u .o)  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  cont inue.   Yes.  

EXAMINATION BY ADV MYBURGH SC (CONTINUES) :    
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Mr  S ingh,  cou ld  I  ask  you,  p lease,  to  go  to  Bund le  5(b ) ,  

your  exh ib i t ,  and to  tu rn  up  page 1039? 

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You w i l l  reca l l  tha t  you asked  

yesterday fo r  an  oppor tun i ty  to  re f lec t  on  th i s  memorandum 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . .overn igh t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And d id  you have an oppor tun i ty  to  10 

do  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   P lease go ahead.  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    P lease go ahead.  

MR SINGH :    Wi th?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  had asked you spec i f i c  quest ions  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    Oh,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  was he ld  over.  20 

MR SINGH :    Okay.   In  te rms o f ,  i f  I  reca l l  co r rec t l y,  you 

wanted me to  respond to  the  fac t  tha t  th is  was a  new 

procurement  event .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  wanted you –  yes,  tha t  was 

amongst  the  ques t ions bu t  you can  address tha t .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  no t  know whether  i t  i s  a l l  o f  us  bu t  i t  

seems tha t  there  is  nobody i s  aud ib le  as  they ough t  to  be .   

A t  leas t  to  me.   Maybe you a re  say ing  the  same about  me.   

[ laughs]   I  do  no t  know,  maybe . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    No . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .go  c loser  to  the  m ic .   I  do  no t  know 

but  i t  jus t  no t  as  aud ib le  as  shou ld  be .   Maybe the  

techn ic ians can a t tend to  i t .   Okay.   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   Yes,  Mr  S ingh,  i t  i s  

amongst  one o f  the  th ings I  wanted you to  cons ide r.    10 

MR SINGH :    So ,  Mr  Cha i r,  in  te rms o f  me br ing ing  a  new 

procurement  event .   Mr  Cha i r,  as  you wou ld  see,  th is  has 

been contempla ted  as  a  cont rac t  ex tens ion  to  the  p rev ious 

cont rac t  tha t  –  to  the  cont rac t  tha t  we had w i th  Reg iments .   

So in  tha t  then,  Mr  Cha i r,  i t  seems not  to  be  a  new 

procurement  event .   As  I  have exp la ined yesterday,  i t  was  

–  there  were  two s t reams.    

 There  was an adv isory  s t ream tha t  p rov ided adv i ce  

on  the  cross  cur rency swops and then the re  was an  

adv isory  s t ream tha t  p rov ided adv i ce  on  the  ac tua l  ra is ing  20 

o f  the  fund ing  w i th  Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank in  t e rms o f  

reduc ing  the  cost  o f  fund ing  and reduc ing  the  cost  o f  the 

cross  cur rency as  we l l .   So  i t  was adv isory  in  na ture .   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  they  executed  

th is  fund ra i s ing  task .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  
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MR SINGH :    Look,  as  I  sa id  yeste rday,  Mr  Cha i r,  i t  was not  

executed by  them.   The counterpar t ies  to  the  ac tua l  

t ransact ions wou ld  have been JP Morgan and i t  wou ld  have 

been the  Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank but  what  they  d id  do  

was,  was  to  p rov ide  adv isory  serv ices  in  te rms  o f  reduc ing  

the  cost  o f  fund ing  re la t ing  to  the  cost  assoc ia ted  w i th  the  

Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank loan and the  cross  cur rency 

swops tha t  were  eventua l l y  executed to  JP Morgan.   And  

tha t  i s  ou t l ined in  the  document ,  Mr  Cha i r.   I f  you  wou ld  

l i ke  me to  take  you to  tha t .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  le t  us  go ,  i f  we may.   But  now 

you have to ld  us  they prov ided adv isory  serv ices  in  

reduc ing  costs .   Cou ld  you –  you can keep tha t  page open,  

bu t  cou ld  I  ask  you,  p lease,  to  go  to  BB-3(a)?    

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you remember  ea r l ie r  in  your  

ev idence f rom. . .  you re fer red  to  MSM 177.   Tha t  i s  the  

le t te r  o f  the  20 t h  o f  January  where  you made –  or  

handwr i t ten  no tes  were  re f lec ted  on i t .   Cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Do you remember?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    P lease,  wou ld  you tu rn  up  177,  

MSM? 

MR SINGH :    177? 
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    177.   You ind ica ted  to  us  yesterday 

tha t  the  e f fec t  o f  the  handwr i t ten  annota t ions a t  –  was tha t  

fundra ise  was exc luded f rom th is  cont rac t .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  le t  us  jus t  see what  i t  i s  tha t  

Reg iments  were  to  do ,  hav ing  taken over  f rom Nedbank.   

Cou ld  you go to  179 a t  parag raph 235? 

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Amongst  the  de l i verab les  was a t  

235:  10 

“Eva lua t ing  a l l  po ten t ia l  fund ing  sources and  

mechan isms,  se lec t  the  mos t  appropr ia te  

avenues to  pursue and execute . . . ”  

 I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Where  is  i t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    235.   So the i r  job ,  as  an  adv isor  who  

had been taken over  f rom Nedbank ,  was:  

“Eva lua t ing  a l l  po ten t ia l  fund ing  sources and  

mechan isms,  se lec t  the  mos t  appropr ia te  

avenues to  pursue and execute . . . ”  20 

MR SINGH :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  s i r.   Eva lua t ion  wou ld  

probab ly  have been where  they wou ld  look a t  what  was 

ava i lab le  and se lec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And 236:  

“Ass is t ing  the  prepara t ion  and management  o f  
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cap i ta l  ra is ing  re la ted  tenders ,  RFI . . . ”  

 I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i t s :  

“ . . .par t i c ipa te  in  the  negot ia t ion  o f  commerc ia l  

te rms o f  fund ing  f rom the  shor t l i s ted  funder. . . ”  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s . . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s . . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You seem tha t  you are  fad ing  away.  10 

MR SINGH :    I  sa id  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Now,  what  we do know i s  

tha t  they were  a l lowed to  work  on  th is  p ro jec t  fo r  about  12-

months w i thout  a  cont rac t . . .  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  s i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    They were  a l lowed to  work  on  the  

task  fo r  12-months w i thout  a  cont rac t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    No . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . .and one  was put  in  p lace  or  an  

ex tens ion  was pu t  in  p lace  ex post  fac to .   Cor rec t?  20 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And can we  dea l  w i th  the  quest ion  o f  

whethe r  you were  under  any lega l  ob l iga t ion  to  pay them 

th is  excess(?)?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  in  te rms  o f  the  document  tha t  the  –  
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we l l ,  in  te rms o f  the  ar rangement  tha t  we had w i th  

Reg iments  a t  the  t ime,  th is  was par t  o f  the  or ig ina l  scope 

o f  work .   As  I  sa id ,  i t  was th is  scope dur ing  th is  pe r iod  o f  

t ime as  –  when th is  LOI  was f ine(?)  due to  the  fac t  tha t  i t  

was no appropr ia te  fo r  them to  engage in  th is  t ype o f  

ac t i v i t y  a t  the  t ime but  the re  was a lways an unders tand ing  

tha t  they were  go ing  to  be  ab le  ass i s t ing  the  execut ion  o f  

the  fund ing .   So f rom tha t  perspect ive ,  there  was an  

unders tand ing .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  bu t  I  mean,  were  you ob l iged to  10 

pay them th is  amount?  

MR SINGH :    In  te rms o f  the  work  tha t  was executed,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The work  had a l ready been done.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then they  came to  you and they  

proposed tha t  you pay them R 166  mi l l ion .  

MR SINGH :    No,  no .   I t  was on the  bas is  tha t  the  work  was  

be ing  done a t  r i sk .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   I  see .   And when i t  was  agreed  

tha t  –  who agreed tha t  the  work  wou ld  be  done a t  r i sk?   20 

You?  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  in  te rms o f  the  unders tand ing  ou t  o f  th is  

LOI ,  Mr  Cha i r,  i t  was th is  scope a t  th is  t ime.   A t  th is  po in t  

in  t ime,  i t  was the  scope but  i t  was not  under  the  –  i t  was 

not  on  the  bas i s  tha t  the  work  wou ld  never  be  done.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Because re-scope,  so  i t  d id  no t  

p rov ide  fo r  i t .  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  s i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  was re-scoped in  the  sense tha t  i t  

d id  no t  p rov ide  fo r  i t .   I t  gave a  f i xed  fee .  

MR SINGH :    No,  I  do  no t  th ink  the  f i xed  fee  inc luded the  

issue o f  ac tua l  fundra i s ing  i n  te rms o f  the  mandate  tha t  

was then conc luded.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  we l l ,  tha t  i s  rea l l y  what  I  am 

get t ing  a t ,  was th is  fundra is ing .  10 

MR SINGH :    Look . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Jus t  now you sa id  i t  was not  

fundra is ing .   You sa id  i t  was adv isory  serv i ces .  

MR SINGH :    In  te rms o f  the  adv isory  se rv i ces  tha t  was  

pre fo rmed Reg iments  re la t ing  to  the  cross  cur rency swop 

to  JP Morgan bu t  the  cross  cur rency swop to  JP Morgan 

and the  Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank loan.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh,  d id  i t  invo l ve  some 

fundra is ing  or  no t?  

MR SINGH :    Look,  Mr  Cha i r,  th is  re la tes  to  adv i so ry.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Adv isory  se rv ices?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you say i t  fe l l  ou ts ide  o f  the  20  

January  document?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   A l r igh t ,  you have any o ther  

comments  you want  to  make on the  memorandum at  1039? 

MR SINGH :    O ther  than the  fac t  tha t  the  memorandum 

covers  the  va lue  tha t  was added  to the  process.   I  th ink  

you a lso  ra i sed  a  quest ion  yesterday,  re la t ing  to  the  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Myburgh.   A re  you go ing  

back to  Bund le  5?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   The memorandum at  1039.  

CHAIRPERSON :    1029 or  1039?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    1039.  

CHAIRPERSON :    39 ,  ja .   Okay.  

MR SINGH :    I  th ink  the re  was one  add i t iona l  quest i on  tha t  

you had,  re la t ing  to  a query  by  a  cer ta in  Mr  B luhm,  I  th ink  

i t  was.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    I  d id  no t  have the  oppor tun i ty  to  re f lec t  on  

tha t .   I  d id  no t  –  I  have not  seen  Mr  B luhm’s  comment .   I  

jus t  take  i t  on  face  va lue  in  te rms  o f  my(?)  name(? )  wh ich  

you proposed to  me.   You wou ld  have regard  to  the  fac t  20 

tha t  I  d id  say there  were  two s t reams o f  work  tha t  was  

per fo rmed.   One was adv i so ry,  re la t ing  to  the  cross  

cur rency swops  and one was adv isory  re la t ing  to  the  

product ion  o f  the  costs ,  re la t ing  to  the  Ch ina  Deve lopment  

Bank fund ing  fac i l i t y.    
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 So  f rom tha t  pe rspect ive  the re  are  two d i f fe ren t  

s t reams o f  work  tha t  was per fo rmed by  Reg iments  and tha t  

may account  fo r  the  d i f fe rence in  the  expected fee  tha t  

Dr  B luhm was re fer r ing  to  versus to  what  we had ac tua l l y  

pa id .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Now,  can I  take  you to  the 

re la ted  ev idence o f  Ms Makgatho?  And tha t  you w i l l  f ind  in  

Exh ib i t  BB-10.    

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja  perhaps I  cou ld  –  oh ,  sor ry.   I f  10 

you cou ld  tu rn  on  page to  p ick  up  f rom page 29? 

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now,  Mr  S ingh,  perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  

summar ise  aspec ts  o f  Ms Makgatho ’s  ev idence.   You dea l t  

w i th  i t  in  your  a f f idav i t  and then we can go th rough i t  in  

more  de ta i l .   Bu t ,  I  mean,  essent ia l l y,  the  po in t  tha t  she  

makes,  i s  tha t  in  her  v iew the re  rea l l y  was not  a  need fo r  

Reg iments .    

 She gave ev idence about  a  t r ip  to  Be i j ing  w i th  you  

in  Ju l y  2014 to  meet  Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank.   She  20 

tes t i f ied  about  the  fac t  tha t  when she re turned f rom 

Europe,  a f te r  fu r ther  in te rna t iona l  t rave l  a t  the  end o f  Ju ly,  

she was shocked to  f ind  ou t  tha t  Reg iments  was  on the  

scene and negot ia t ing  w i th  CDB.    

 And then she ta lks  about  va r ious emai ls  and  
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memos tha t  she  sent  to  you and Mr  Mole fe  about  he r  

concerns regard ing  Reg iments .   And i t  i s  –  tha t  exchange  

where  you put  in  a  memo,  she put  in  a  memo.   I t  was noted  

by  Mr  Mole fe .   And then she ends o f f  by  re fer r ing  to  the 

conc lus ion  o f  the  CDB agreement .   You have s tud ied  her  

ev idence,  I  take  i t?  

MR SINGH :    The re levant  paragraph tha t  was re fer red  to  

in  the  10(6) .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Wel l ,  le t  us  go  to  –  a t  page  

29.   She ta lks  about  a t  paragraph 113 a  t r ip  and tha t  takes 10 

us  to  115.   She says”  

“On 1  Ju l y  2014,  Ano j  S ingh and I  a t tended the  

p lanned meet ing  w i th  CBD in  Be i j ing .  

The d iscuss ion  s ta r ted  w i th  no rmal  g ree t ings 

and in t roduct ions .  

As we were  busy w i th  in t roduct i ons,  a  young 

Ch inese o f f i c ia l  handed out  a  page dated 

29 October  2013  to  everybody in  a t tendance 

w i th  a  l i s t  o f  names on i t . . . ”  

 Do you conf i rm tha t  you had th is  meet ing  on  the  20 

1 s t  o f  Ju ly  2014?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  o f f  hand reca l l  the  meet ing ,  

the  Ju ly  2014 meet ing   I  do  no t  have any need to  doubt  

Ms Makgatho ’s  ve rs ion .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  bu t  you do,  p resumable ,  reca l l  
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go ing  to  Be i j ing  in  Ju l y  together  w i th  Ms Makgatho?  

MR SINGH :    Look,  the  reason  why I  do  no t  reca l l  i t  

spec i f i ca l l y,  Mr  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  I  qu i te  a  few occas ions to  

v is i t  Be i j ing ,  no t  on ly  fo r  CBD but  o ther  investor  meet ings  

as  we l l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  do  you not  remember  the  

meet ing  you had?  

MR SINGH :    I  remember  hav ing  meet ings w i th  CBD but  

th is  par t i cu la r  one,  I  cannot  conf i rm tha t  i t  d id  o r  d id  no t  

happen.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  had you had o ther  meet ings 

be fore  th is  w i th  CBD? 

MR SINGH :    I  may have,  s i r.   I  do  no t  reca l l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   And i f  you go to  116,  she 

says:  

“ I  may be specu la t ing  . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am so r ry.   I  th ink ,  Mr  S ingh,  

Mr  Myburgh was a lso  ask ing  whether  you do not  remember  

a  meet ing  where  you went  there  w i th  he r,  w i th  

Ms Makgatho.  20 

MR SINGH :    No,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  –  there  wou ld  have been 

occas ion  fo r  me to  have a  meet ing  w i th  CBD meet ing  w i th  

Ms Makgatho.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  there  wou ld  have . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    There  wou ld  have been,  yes .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    . . .be  more  than  one or  jus t  one as  you 

reca l l?  

MR SINGH :    I  do  no t  reca l l .   I  wou ld  assume 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Assume tha t  there  wou ld  have been one?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  there  wou ld  have been a t  leas t  one.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   She says a t  116:  10 

“ I  may be specu la t ing  bu t  g i ven the  demeanour  

o f  everyone who rece ived the  29  October  2013 

l i s t ,  I  expected tha t  a  meet ing  m ight  have been 

he ld  on  tha t  day and tha t  d iscuss ions and  

poss ib le  agreements  m ight  have been  

reached. . . ”  

 What  do  you say to  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  as  she says,  she is  –  she may be 

specu la t ing .   Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  reca l l  th is ,  

29  October  2013  l i s t  o f  the  na ture  o f  the  meet ing  tha t  20 

wou ld  probab ly  po ten t ia l l y  occur red  on the  day.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Had you gone to  Be i j ing  and had you 

a t tended a  meet ing  w i th  CDB befo re  the  1s t  o f  Ju ly  2014?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  say,  I  w i l l  be  rea l l y  specu la t ing .   

I  –  as  I  sa id ,  I  been to  Be i j ing  on  a  number  o f  occas ions 
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fo r  CBD meet ings ,  par t i cu la r ly,  and  o ther  meet ings re la t ing  

to  investors  as  we l l .   So  i t  cou ld  poss ib ly  be  t rue  bu t  I  

cannot  comple te ly  conf i rm tha t  i f  I  was there  on  the  29 t h  o f  

October.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then  a t  parag raph 121,  she 

says:  

“We cont inued w i th  the  d iscuss ions .  

A l though we had to  s ta r t  f rom a  ze ro  base,  the  

d iscuss ions las ted  the  who le  day.  

We f in ished between 04:30 and 05 :00.  10 

As we were  mak ing  our  way out ,  Ano j  S ingh  

requested to  have a  pr i va te  d i scuss ion  w i th  

the  execut ive  in  charge o f  the  CDB inner (?)  

b ranch together  w i th  an  in te rpre ter  who was 

f luent  in  Eng l ish .  

The meet ing  las ted  approx imate ly  30-

minutes . . . ”  

 Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  there  is  no th ing  unusua l  a round the  

CFO hav ing  a  d iscuss ion  w i th  the  counte rpar t  o f  the  bank  20 

and the  d iscuss ions,  I  wou ld  assume,  wou ld  have been  

around the  fac t  tha t  we were  d iscuss ing  the ,  le t  us  ca l l  i t  

the  most  s t ra teg i c  re la t ionsh ip  be tween Ch ina  and  South  

A f r i can and Transnet  and the  impact  o f  the  –  how can I  say  

–  the  –  or  the  impact  tha t  the  loan wou ld  have in  te rms o f  
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the  South  A f r i can  env i ronment  and  the  count ry.   So i t  wou ld  

have been d iscuss ions around a  more  s t ra teg i c  na ture  o f  

the  re la t ionsh ip  be tween CBD and Ch ina .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Then a t  parag raph 122:  

“A f te r  the  meet ing ,  Ano j  S ingh to ld  me tha t  h is  

t rave l  p lans had sudden ly  changed and he was 

no longer  t rave l l ing  back home wi th  me the  

fo l low ing day.  

He ind i ca ted  tha t  he  w i l l  be  t rave l l ing  v ia  

London to  South  A f r i ca  tha t  same a f te rnoon.  10 

He then requested me to  co l lec t  h is  su i t case 

wh ich  he  had le f t  in  h is  ho te l  room before  I  

leave fo r  South  A f r i ca .  

The fo l low ing day,  be fore  I  booked out  o f  the  

ho te l ,  I  p icked up Ano j  S ingh ’s  red  su i tcase 

f rom h is  home.  

I  t rave l led  back home wi th  my luggage and h is  

red  su i tcase.   

I  do  no t  know what  was in  the  su i t case. . . ”  

 Oh,  so r ry.  20 

“ I  do  no t  know what  h is  su i t case conta ined as  I  

d id  no t  open i t . . . ”  

 Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  deny th is  ever  took p lace.   I  do 

no t  reca l l  ever  g i v ing  any o f  my luggage to  anybody and i t  
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i s  a  h igh l y  s t range th ing  fo r  her  to  say bu t  as  I  sa id ,  I  deny 

i t .   I  do  no t  reca l l  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    She says a t  123:  

“When I  landed  a t  O.R.  Tambo A i rpo r t ,  I  

thought  I  wou ld  take  the  su i tcase w i th  me 

when I  go  back to  work .  

However,  when I  sw i tched my ce l l  phone on,  I  

rece ived a  message f rom Ano j  S ingh tha t  h is  

d r iver  w i l l  co l lec t  h is  su i t case f rom me a t  the  

a i rpor t .  10 

When I  en tered the  ar r i va l  ha l l ,  I  met  

Ano j  S ingh ’s  d r i ver  who co l lec ted  the  red  

su i tcase f rom me. . . ”  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  have any reco l lec t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You have now –  what  d id  you have then?  

A red  su i tcase?  

MR SINGH :    Not  tha t  I  reca l l ,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   But  when I  heard  th i s  o r  when I  

heard  her  g i ve  ev idence,  the  thought  tha t  c rossed my mind  

is ,  why you wou ld  have asked her  to  take  the  su i tcase w i th  20 

her  ins tead o f  t rave l l ing  w i th  your  own su i tcase.   I t  seems 

s t range to  me.  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  tha t  –  hence me say ing  i t  seems 

s t range to  me too ,  Mr  Cha i r.   As  –  i f  I  was go ing  to  London,  

what  d id  I  go  to  London w i th?  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  sor ry.   We cannot  

hear  you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And even me? 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    We cou ld  no t  hear  you -  the  

quest ion  tha t  you  posed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    I f  you  can jus t  p lease jus t  

repeat  i t  so  tha t  we can hear  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Wel l ,  I  jus t  sa id  to  h im.   When  10 

I  –  when th is  w i tness gave ev idence and when I  read the  

a f f idav i t ,  i t  seems a  s t range th ing  tha t  he  wou ld  ask  – he  

wou ld  have asked somebody to  take  h i s  su i t case and come 

back to  South  A f r i ca  w i th  h is  su i t case and he went  v ia  

another  rou te .   So he –  h is  response was i t  i s  s t range to  

h im as we l l ,  because why –  what  wou ld  he  have taken w i th  

h im to  London.   That  i s  what  you sa id ,  r igh t /  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Of  course ,  the  o ther  quest ion  is .   I t  

i s  wou ld  a lso  be  s t range,  wou ld  i t  no t ,  fo r  her  to  f abr i ca te  20 

such a  s to ry?   I s  i t  no t?   I f ,  say  somebody asked me to  

take  the i r  su i t case w i th  me wh i le  they t rave l  somewhere  

and when I  a r r i ve  a t  O.R.  Tambo,  I  thought  I  wou ld  take  i t  

home and then  come to  work  w i th  i t  on  Monday or  

whatever,  the  next  work ing  day  bu t  then there  was a  
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message wh ich  sa id  tha t  somebody wou ld  p i ck  i t  up  and  

somebody p i cked  i t  up  and tha t  i s  where  i t  ends because 

tha t  i s  where  i t  ends.   Noth ing  tu rns  on  the  who le  th ing .   

But  i t  i s  no t  the  k ind  o f  th ing  one  wou ld  expect  somebody 

to  fabr ica te .    

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  equa l l y,  Mr  Cha i r,  i t  wou ld  no t  be  

someth ing  tha t  I  wou ld  request .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    Fo r  someone to  do .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  10 

MR SINGH :    And,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  mean,  I  am –  m iss  –  I  am not  

too  sure  why she  wou ld  do  th is ,  Mr  Cha i r,  bu t  aga in ,  i f  you 

look a t  the  procedures a t  the  a i rpor t ,  Mr  Cha i r,  one o f  the  

th ings tha t  they wou ld  ask  you are  you a l l  your  bags?  Are  

you t rave l l ing  a l l  your  bags?  D id  anyone pack your  bags  

fo r  h im?  So she wou ld  have had to  make  these  

dec lara t ions.   How d id  she make those dec la ra t ions  a t  the 

a i rpor t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  she –  wou ld  she be somebody tha t  

you wou ld  have  thought  she wou ld  fabr i ca te  someth ing  20 

aga ins t  you in  te rms o f  your  re la t ionsh ip?  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  as  I  charac ter i sed my re la t ionsh ip  w i th  

he r.   I t  was cord ia l  and p ro fess iona l .   So. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   And then to  p ick  up  a t  

page 31.   I  w i l l  fas t  fo rward  to  paragraph 126 under  the  

head ing :   Reg iments  tak ing  over  the  CBD Negot ia t ions :  

“Upon my re tu rn  f rom Europe,  wh ich  was 

around end Ju ly  2014,  I  was shocked to  f ind  

ou t  tha t  CBD was now communica t ing  d i rec t l y  

w i th  Reg iments  and tha t  Er ic  Wood was 

lead ing  the  negot ia t ions .  

Th is  was in  pa ra l le l  to  Transnet  fu r ther ing  10 

negot ia t ions  w i th  CBD. . . ”  

 Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.   I  th ink  a t  th is  po in t  in  t ime,  I  

th ink  we need to  unders tand the  contex t  and I  th ink ,  aga in  

no t  to  –  we l l ,  the  contex t  a t  th is  po in t  in  t ime was tha t  –  

g iven the  fac t  tha t  we had  s igned the  locomot ive  

agreements  in ,  I  th ink  i t  was March  2014.    

 The locomot ive  agreements  tha t  we have s igned 

created the  commi tment  fo r  us  t o  be  i n  a  pos i t ion  to  pay  

aga ins t  the  locomot ive  agreements .   Now one  o f  the  20 

cr i te r ia  tha t  the  ra t ing  agenc ies  employed a t  Transnet ,  I  

th ink  i t  was pa r t i cu la r ly  the  SNP,  was a  ra t io  ca l led  an  AB 

ra t io .   

 And the  AB ra t io ,  bas ica l l y,  looked a t  the  

commi t ted  fund ing  fac i l i t i es  tha t  any en t i t y  wou ld  have 
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versus the  commi tments  tha t  tha t  o rgan isa t ion  had  in  te rms  

o f  be ing  ab le  to  pay.   So they wou ld ,  bas ica l l y,  look  a t  and  

say okay your  cash opera t ions  is  X ,  your  commi t ted  

fac i l i t i es  f rom banks is  Y,  your  commi t ted  fund ing  fac i l i t i es  

i s  Z and a l l  o f  tha t  add up i f  i t  came to  ten .    

 And then i f  you then had commi tments  or  

cont rac tua l  commi tments  to  pay,  they wou ld  then add tha t  

up  and i f  tha t  came to ,  le t  us  say  f i ve ,  then your  AB ra t ion  

was cho ice(?)  one.   And tha t  i s  the  ra t io  tha t  they wou ld  –  

tha t  i s  one o f  the  ra t ios  tha t  they ac tua l ly  was qu i te  10 

par t i cu la r  about  in  the  case o f  Transnet  because we were  a  

s ign i f i can t  –  we were  in  a  s ign i f i can t  cap i ta l  expend i tu re  

programme a t  the  t ime.    

 And so  we were  under  s ign i f i can t  p ressure  to  be  

ab le  to  demonst ra te  th rough SNP tha t  we had a  AB ra t io  

tha t  was acceptab le . . .   In  te rms o f  the  t reasury  funct ion  a t  

the  t ime,  Mr  Cha i r,  Ms Makgatho and the  team had been 

reach ing  a  po in t  where  there  was no s ign i f i can t  fac t ion  on  

the  d iscuss ion  tha t  were ,  I  th ink  w i th  Ch ina  Deve lopment  

Bank.    20 

 And th is  i s  where ,  a t  the  po in t  a t  wh ich  I  then  

dec ided to  ge t  Mr  Wood invo lved and Reg iments  invo lved  

to  unders tand to  what  ex ten t  they can ac tua l l y  acce le ra te  

the  process and the  d iscuss ions w i th  Ch ina  Deve lopment  

Bank w i th  the  v iew to  conc lude i t s  t ransact ion  w i th  Ch ina  
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Deve lopment  Bank.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  a t  127,  she says:  

“ I  then compla in t  b i t te r l y  to  bo th  Ano j  S ingh  

and Br ian  Mole fe  as  I  be l ieved tha t  there  was 

no need to  use  Reg iments  because o f  ou r  

in te rna l  t reasury  capac i ty. . . ”  

 And then a t  128 and fu r the r,  she says:  

“Ano j  S ingh and I  cont inued to  a rgue about  the  

CBD pr ic ing  proposa l  and tha t  then. . . ”  

 I f  you  look a t  131 :  10 

“ . . .gave r i se  to  a  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Mole fe . . . ”  

 Wou ld  you agree w i th  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Aga in ,  I  do  no t  reca l l  th is  meet ing ,  Mr  Cha i r,  

bu t  I  have no reason to  d isbe l ieve  Ms Makgatho ’s  vers ion  

o f . . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  a t  131:  

“Br ian  Mole fe  organ ised a  meet ing  be tween 

Transnet  and Reg iment  to  reso lve  the  CBD 

pr ic ing  proposa l  impasse.  

The meet ing  was he ld  a t  the  Mel rose A rch 20 

Hote l .  

Transnet  was represented by  Messrs  S ingh,  

Mole fe  and myse l f ,  Reg iments  by  Er ic  Wood 

and Mervyn P i l lay. . . ”  

 I s  tha t  r igh t?  
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MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then she records tha t :  

“Mr  Mole fe  suggested tha t  eve ryone seemed to 

th ink  tha t  my p r ic ing  i nd ica t ion  i s  o f f  the  mark  

and tha t  the  one tha t  Er ic  Wood rece ived f rom 

Nedbank seemed reasonab le .  

I  shou ld  agree w i th  them as I  was the  on ly  one 

who d id  no t  agree.  

I  to ld  Br ian  Mole fe  tha t  my pos i t ion  had not  

changed and w i l l  no t  change as  the  CBD 10 

fac i l i t y  i s  expens ive  and not  wor th  i t . . . ”  

 Do you conf i rm  tha t  tha t  was the  s tance tha t  

Ms Makgatho adopted a t  th is  meet ing?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  sa id ,  I  do  no t  reca l l  th is  

meet ing .   But  aga in ,  i f  Ms Makgatho says the  meet ing  

happened,  I  wou ld  take  i t  on  face  va lue .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then a t  133 :  

“ I  then dec ided to  record  my recommendat ion  

and concerns.  

On 21 August  2014,  I  sent  an  emai l  to  bo th  20 

Br ian  Mole fe  and  Ano j  S ingh,  de ta i l ing  my key 

concerns. . . ”  

 Can we jus t  go  to  tha t  emai l ,  p lease?  That  you w i l l  

f ind  a t  page  241,  MEN-241.   So a t  241 in  t h is  e -mai l  tha t  

she addresses to  you and Mr Mole fe ,  in  the  f i rs t  parag raph  
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she says:  

“This e-mai l  is  a fo l low-up of  var ious 

discussions I  have had with yoursel f ,  and in 

some instances wi th Regiments included,  

where I  had ind icated my discomfort  and 

disagreement on how the China 

Development Bank Faci l i ty negot ia t ions are 

being handled,  Regiments’ pr ic ing 

methodology,  as wel l  as my disagreement of  

the appointment  of  Regiments as the 10 

t ransact ion advisor for the faci l i ty.   For the 

avoidance of  any doubt,  I  would l ike to br ing 

the fol lowing to your at tent ion. ”  

Then the  f i rs t  po in t  i s :  

“ I  respect  of  your  execut ive author i ty and 

powers that  go wi th i t ,  but  I  a lso bel ieve that  

i t  is  my responsibi l i ty as the current  

Transnet Treasurer to advise you on matters 

re lat ing to Treasury act iv i ty.   As I  indicated,  I  

was not  consul ted,  nor was I  aware that  20 

Regiments was appointed as the t ransact ion 

advisor and lead negot iator for the faci l i ty,  

as I  bel ieve that  there is no need for them to 

be appointed,  given the progress that  we 

have made. ”  
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Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  aga in  here  the  reason tha t  

Reg iments  or  Ms  Makgatho re fe rs  to  Reg iments  be ing  the  

lead negot ia to r,  when we had the  d iscuss ion  w i th  Ch ina  

Deve lopment  Bank in  te rms o f  Reg iments ,  par t  o f  the  team 

to  be  ab le  to  negot ia te  and conc lude the  t ransact ion ,  there  

was a  request  f rom them tha t  sa id  l i s ten ,  we unders tand  

tha t  we are  dea l ing  w i th  Transnet ,  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  

Transnet  requ i res  us  to  dea l  w i t h  any o ther  par t y  there  

wou ld  need to  be  a  le t te r  f rom us tha t  ac tua l l y  recogn ises 10 

the  ident i t y  o f  the  o ther  par ty  and f rom a  bank ’s  

perspect ive  the  on ly  o the r  peop le  tha t  they wou ld  engage 

w i th  o ther  than the ,  le t  us  say pr inc ipa l  wh ich  in  t h is  case 

wou ld  be  Transnet  fo r  the  Transnet  team,  wou ld  be  peop le  

tha t  they recogn ise  as  lead negot ia to rs  o r  lead a r rangers ,  

so  tha t  i s  the  reason we sent  a  l e t te r  to  CDB or  I  sent  a  

le t te r  to  CDB in fo rming them tha t  Reg iments  wou ld  be  par t  

o f  the  team as lead negot ia to rs  together  w i th  [ ind is t inc t ] .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  unders tand your  ev idence  cr isp l y  

rea l l y  to  be  tha t  as  fa r  as  you are  concerned,  she ac tua l l y  20 

d id  no t  have the  capac i ty  to  hand le  th is  so r t  o f  t ransact ion .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  os tens ib l y  they fa i led  to  reach 

conc lus ion  on  CDB for  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry,  I  cannot  hear  you,  Mr  S ingh.  

MR SINGH:    I  sa id  they had fa i led  to  reach conc lus ion 
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w i th  CDB up to  tha t  po in t  in  t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  bu t  do  I  unders tand your  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because o f  lack  o f  capac i ty,  I  th ink  tha t  

i s  the  quest ion .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l  Mr  Cha i r,  i t  was  bas ica l l y  Ms Makgatho,  

then there  was Ms Doro thy  Kobe and I  th ink  there  were  two  

o thers  a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime tha t  made up the  fu l l  Cap i ta l  

Marke ts  team a t  the  t ime and Ms Kobe was re la t i ve l y  new,  I  

th ink ,  a t  the  t ime.   Ms  Makgatho was re la t i ve ly  new in  her  10 

pos i t ion  o f  Group ,  so  I  th ink  she was jus t  appo in ted  I  th ink 

n ine  months  be fo re  tha t ,  i f  I  reca l l ,  I  do  no t  reca l l  cor rec t l y  

and she had not  run  a  corpo ra te  t reasury  be fore ,  so  tha t  

was the  contex t  w i th in  wh ich  the  fund ing  or  the  fund ing  

p lan  o f  Transnet  was be ing  executed then togethe r  w i th  the  

fac t  tha t  we had  to  demonst ra te  to  SNP the  fac t  tha t  we 

had an adequate  [ ind is t inc t ] ,  as  I  exp la ined.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  the  shor t  answer  i s  tha t  you are  

say ing  there  was no capac i ty  in  Transnet ’s  Treasury.  

MR SINGH:    In  my v iew . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  what  i t  amounts  to .  

MR SINGH:    In  my v iew a t  the  t ime,  Mr  Cha i r,  Transnet  

Treasury  had the  ab i l i t y  to  take  care  o f  the  normal  

mundane and day  to  day ac t iv i t ies  tha t  re la ted  to  fund ing .  

In  te rms o f  th is  par t i cu la r  fund ing  fac i l i t y  fo r  the  
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locomot ives ,  i t  was a  s ign i f i can t  account ,  we needed to  

ra ise  R50 b i l l i on  fo r  the  locomot ives ,  i t  was not  a  smal l  

amount .   The loca l  they kept  on  market  p robab ly  wou ld  

have been ab le  to  do  i t  over  a  pe r iod  o f  t ime,  bu t  in  o rde r  

fo r  us  to  be  ab le  to  dea l  w i th  the  A&B ra t io  tha t  SNP had 

asked us  to  comply  w i th ,  there  needed to  be  urgenc ies  

re la t ing  o f  the  fac t  tha t  we needed to  conc lude cont rac ts .  

The cont rac t  w i th  [ ind is t inc t ]  and I  th ink  there  was  

one add i t iona l  one,  I  cannot  remember  r igh t  now,  I  th ink  i t  

was [ ind is t inc t ]  o r  I  th ink  i t  i s  in  my a f f idav i t ,  bu t  there  10 

were  two add i t iona l  cont rac t  tha t  we had been negot ia t ing ,  

wh ich  a lso  were  beh ind  in  te rms o f  be ing  ab le  to  be 

conc luded and the  fac t  tha t  those two agreements  were  no t  

conc luded in  t ime,  there  were  cer ta in  pena l t ies  tha t  we 

incu r red .  

When we say  pena l t ies ,  i t  was not  phys ica l  

pena l t ies  tha t  we  had to  then pay R10 mi l l ion  fo r  example ,  

bu t  in  te rms o f  h igher  cost  o f  debt  in  te rms o f  be ing  ab le  to  

m iss  the  appropr ia te  t im ing  o f  the  market .  

So Mr  Cha i r,  in  te rms o f  th is  yes ,  the  Transnet  20 

Treasury  had capac i ty,  the  Transnet  Treasury  was there ,  

the  Transnet  Treasury  cou ld  do  a l l  o f  th is ,  bu t  a t  the  end o f  

the  day i t  needed  to  be  done w i th in  a  t imef rame wi th in  the  

contex t  o f  the  requ i rements  o f  agenc ies ,  g iven the  fac t  tha t  

we had an ex t ra  R50 b i l l i on  tha t  needed to  be  made.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    So  Transnet  Treasury  d id  have the  

capac i ty,  bu t  i t  was jus t  tha t  they wou ld  no t  be  ab le  to  do  i t  

w i th in  the  t ime tha t  i t  was requ i red  to  be  done.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  the  contex t  i s  the  Transnet  

Treasury  had the  capac i ty  to  take  care  o f  the  day  to  day  

fund ing  tha t  was requ i red .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Th is  was over  and above the  day  to  day  

fund ing ,  a l l  tha t  i t  fo rmed par t  o f  the  fund ing  p lan .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  they d id  no t  have capac i ty  to  10 

dea l  w i th  th is  t ype o f  mat te r.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  they  d id . . .   No Mr  Cha i r,  they  d id  

conc lude t ransact ions w i th  o the r  deve lopment  f inanc ia l  

ins t i tu t ions ,  AFD,  KFW,  a l l  o f  these peop le  are 

deve lopment  f inanc ia l  ins t i tu t ions .   We had not  conc luded 

a  t ransact ion  w i th  Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank befo re .  

Now in  te rms o f  dea l ing  w i th  the ,  I  am jus t ,  i f  you  

have dea l t  w i th  them before  Mr  Cha i r,  i t  i s  qu i te  easy to  

conc lude a  t ransact ion  w i th  them,  because you know what  

the i r  pa in  po in ts  a re ,  they have  a l ready dea l t  w i th  you,  20 

they have a l ready unders tood you.   I  th ink  th is  was the  

f i rs t  t ime tha t  ac tua l l y  Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank was  

mak ing  an inves tment  in to  South  A f r i ca ,  so  there  was a  

s ign i f i can t  amount  o f ,  how can  I  say,  g roundwork  tha t  

needed to  be  done to  be  ab le  to  make them unders tand the  
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South  A f r i can market  f i rs t l y  and what  they were  ge t t ing  

in to ,  and second ly  what  our  expecta t ions were  and what  

our  a l te rna t ives  were ,  to  pu t  i t  tha t  way,  because I  th ink  

one o f  the  th ings tha t  we found w i th  Ch ina  Deve lopment  

Bank was tha t  they be l ieved  tha t  we had no o ther  

a l te rna t ive  o ther  than to  come to  them fo r  fund ing  and th i s  

was one o f  the  issues tha t  we needed to  across  to  them,  

was tha t  yes ,  we  need your  fund ing ,  bu t  unders tand tha t  

we ac tua l l y  do  have a l te rna t ives .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  thank you.   Perhaps jus t  

dea l ing  w i th  the  ev idence about  the  s i ze  o f  the  team,  cou ld  

I  ask  you p lease to  go  to  page 4 ,  MEM4 and have a  look a t  

parag raph 7?  

MR SINGH:    MEM4? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  i s  in  the  same a f f idav i t ,  i t  i s  a t  

page 4 .  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Parag raph 7 .   The Treasury  team. . .   

A re  you there?  20 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

“Had a  complement  o f  about  40  s ta f f  

members ,  i .e .  32  pro fess iona ls  suppor ted  

by  e igh t  admin i s t ra t i ve  s ta f f .   O f f ic ia l  s ta f f  
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in  Treasury  had mul t id isc ip l ina ry  sk i l l s .  

Competenc ies  and exper ience,  th is  

inc luded mathemat ic ians,  accountants ,  

investment  bankers ,  commerc ia l  lawyers ,  

t raders ,  f inanc ie rs  and economis ts  who 

were  a l l  h igh ly  exper ienced  w i th  an  

average 10 to  30  years  o f  exper ience in  

the i r  respect ive  f ie lds . ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes Mr  Cha i r,  bu t  Ms  Makgatho fa i l s  to  10 

ac tua l l y  say  how many peop le  o f  those 32 p ro fess iona ls  

were  ac tua l l y  invo l ved in  the  m idd le  o f f i ce  in  te rms o f  

fundra is ing  ac t iv i t y.   As  fa r  as  I  can reca l l  Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  

no t  th ink  they were  more  than four  o r  s ix  peop le  in  the 

[ ind is t inc t ]  a t  tha t  t ime,  bu t  I  s t i l l  s tand cor rec ted ,  because 

i t  i s  a  long t ime ,  bu t  I  can reca l l  tha t  i t  was no t  many  

peop le .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Have a  look a t  paragraph 13 a t  

page 5 .  

“ In the months fo l lowing my appointment as 20 

Head of  Strategy Finance I  capaci tated my 

area by appoint ing two professionals and 

later added two addi t ional  resources. ”  

Paragraph 14:  

“ In  addi t ion,  more professionals were 
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appointed to the Treasury team,  including 

professionals in  Treasury Operat ions to  

handle complex f inancial  account ing matters,  

a Forex t rader and addi t ional  cash and debt  

management professional . ”  

MR SINGH:    So  paragraph 14 ac tua l l y  has no th ing  to  do  

w i th  fund ra is ing  or  cap i ta l  ra is ing .   Paragraph 13  is  more  

appropr ia te ,  as  you can see and when she was appo in ted  

Head o f  S t ruc tured F inance she bas i ca l l y  appo in ted  le t  us 

say [ ind is t inc t ] .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Perhaps we cou ld  jus t  go  back to  

241.   In  the  m idd le  o f  the  parag raph under  the  head ing  

‘ove ra l l  governance ’ i t  says :  

“When we negot iate and enter into 

agreement wi th lenders and invest igators we 

make certain undertakings and covenants 

that  should apply to future faci l i t ies as wel l .   

The fact  that  Transnet ’s biggest  ever  

t ransact ion is negot iat ing and decided by 

outsiders (Regiments) is  a  cause for 20 

concern,  as i t  exposes the company to 

undue r isk.   When a negot iator fac i l i ty r isks 

magni tude we assemble a mult id iscipl inary 

team that  includes Legal ,  Tax Account ing,  

Structured Finance and Risk Management 
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team members.   This is to ensure that  al l  

potent ia l  r isks relat ing to  the faci l i ty  are 

ident i f ied and mit igated to the extent  

possible. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  f i rs t l y  when Ms  Makgatho re fers  to  

the  fac t  tha t  Transnet ’s  ever  t ransact ion  is  negot ia ted  and  

dec ided by  ou ts iders ,  I  wou ld  assume she is  ta lk ing  about  

loca l  t ransact ions,  o r  i s  she ta l k ing  about  th is  fund ing  

fac i l i t y?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  you  wou ld  be  bet te r  p laced  

than me,  Mr  S ingh.   You responded to  th is  memo.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  i f  she  is . . .   Wel l ,  in  bo th  cases,  

Mr  Cha i r,  whethe r  she is  re fe r r i ng  to  the  CDB fund ing  

fac i l i t y  o r  whether  she is  re fe r r ing  to  the  locomot ive  

t ransact ions where  they a lso  p layed a  ro le  as  t ransact iona l  

adv isors  Mr  Cha i r,  they  do  not  negot ia te .  

A t  the  end o f  the  day u l t imate ly  the  adv i ce  comes 

f rom t ransact iona l  adv i so rs .   What  we as  Transnet  

management  dec ide  to  do  w i th  i t  i s  up  to  us .   They w i l l  20 

a lways adv ise ,  we w i l l  bas ica l l y  agree w i th  some adv ice ,  

we w i l l  d isagree w i th  some,  bu t  whoever  we be l ieve  tha t  is  

in  the  best  in te res t  o f  Transnet  we w i l l  then engage w i th  

the ,  e i ther  the  OEM or  whether  i t  was CDB.  

In  th is  case Mr  Cha i r,  when she says tha t  the  
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fac i l i t y  o f  th is  magn i tude,  we assembled mul t id i sc ip l inary  

team o f  Lega l ,  Tax,  Account ing ,  S t ruc tured F inance and 

R isk  Management ,  Mr  Cha i r,  there  was no d i f fe rence when  

we conc luded the  Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank t ransact ion .   

A l l  o f  these d i f fe ren t ,  Lega l ,  Tax ,  Account ing ,  S t ruc tu red  

F inance and R isk  Management  teams were  a l l  inc luded.    

You w i l l  see  la te r  on  Mr  Cha i r,  when we ac tua l l y,  

maybe i f  we get  there  you w i l l  see  there  were  cer ta in  

p roposa ls  tha t  were  made by,  tha t  were  recommended by  

Reg iments  together  w i th  JP Morgan tha t  were  re jec ted ,  and  10 

they were  re jec ted  par t i cu la r l y  fo r  the  adverse  account ing  

consequences tha t  i t  may have fo r  Transnet .  

You wou ld  reca l l  yes terday when we read an e-mai l  

f rom Mr  Dan ie  Smi t  in  te rms o f  the  t ransact ion  adv i sory  

s t ream tha t  they  were  adv i s ing  on  and you w i l l  reca l l  

Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  Mr  Smi t  sa id  t ha t  Mr  P i l lay  had p rov ided 

s ign i f i can t  ins igh t  in  te rms o f  op t ions.   Now these are  

op t ions tha t  we wou ld  cons ider  in  te rms o f  dea l ing  w i th  the  

fo re ign  exchange  r i sk  re la t ing  to  the  locomot ive  cont rac ts ,  

bu t  those opt ion  oppor tun i t ies ,  le t  us  ca l l  i t  the op t ion  20 

oppor tun i ty  tha t  was proposed  by  Mr  P i l lay  was not  

cons idered and was not  cons idered because aga in  o f  the  

adverse  tax  and account ing  imp l ica t ions tha t  i t  wou ld  have  

on Transnet .  

So notw i ths tand ing  the  fac t  tha t  Reg iments  was 
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invo l ved,  i t  d id  no t  take  away any o f  the  o ther  p rocesses or  

i t  d id  no t  over r i de  any o f  the  o the r,  how can I  say,  in te rna l ,  

normal  in te rna l  p rocesses tha t  wou ld  happen.   What  

Reg iments  wou ld  br ing  to  the  team,  they wou ld  br ing 

op t ions.    

When I  say  op t ions,  now these are  no t  f inanc ia l  

ins t rument  op t ions,  bu t  they wou ld  br ing  d i f fe ren t  th ink ing  

or  d i f fe ren t  a l te rna t ives ,  le t  us  say a l te rna t ives  to  the  

tab le ,  i t  was then up to  us  to  dec ide  whether  those  

a l te rna t ives  were  appropr ia te  o r  no t ,  were  good o r  bad o r  10 

ind i f fe ren t  and tha t  i s  what  wou ld  then go to  each  one o f  

these Lega l  peop le ,  Tax peop le ,  Account ing  peop le ,  

S t ruc tured F inance peop le ,  R isk  Management  peop le  to  

engage,  to  unders tand whether  th is  th ing  tha t  i s  be ing  

proposed,  i s  i t  good,  bad or  ind i f fe ren t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  i f  we then go back to  page 33 o f  

the  memorandum,  sor ry  o f  the  a f f idav i t ,  we see a t  page  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH:    Page 33?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Page 33,  MEM33.   We see a t  20 

parag raph 105 tha t  you then  wro te  a  respond ing  

memorandum,  co r rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Page?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    135,  Paragraph 135 a t  page 33.  

MR SINGH:    So  th is  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ano j  S ingh wro te  a  memorandum in 

response.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  bu t  I  am t ry ing  to  unders tand whethe r  

th is  memorandum is  in  response  to  the  e-mai l  o r  i s  i t  in  

response to  another  memorandum? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  i s  in  response,  i t  seems,  to  the  e -

mai l .  

MR SINGH:    No,  I  do  no t  th ink  so ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t  we l l ,  le t  us  go  to  your  

memorandum and  tha t  you w i l l  f ind  a t . . .   Wel l ,  inso far  as  i t  10 

is  impor tan t ,  a t  133 Ms Makgatho says tha t  she sent  an  e-

mai l ,  you and . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH:    so  th is  i s  there  one I  assume we jus t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes cor rec t ,  tha t  i s  the  one we 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  and  then she goes on to  say:  

“However,  Regiments recommended that  

Transnet should proceed with the 20 

t ransact ion.”  

E t  ce tera ,  and then a t  135 she says:  

“Mr Singh wrote a memorandum, at tached as 

annexure MM33, in response to the concerns 

that  I  had raised.”  
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MR SINGH:    Okay,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  so  I  want  to  take  you to  285,  

tha t  i s  where  you  w i l l  f ind  your  memorandum.  

MR SINGH:    So  i t  i s  MM36.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Page?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    285.   Now you s igned th is  on ,  a t  

287,  i s  tha t  21s t  o f  August?  

MR SINGH:    I t  i s  p robab ly  27 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    20?  10 

MR SINGH:    27 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    27  August  2014.  

MR SINGH:    I t  looks  l i ke  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  so  a t  285 you see Ch ina  

Deve lopment  Bank locomot ives  fund ing  response,  and 

u l t imate ly  a t  287 you seek th is  recommendat ion :  

“5.   I t  is recommended that  the Group Chief  

Execut ive approves the response to the 20 

Group Treasurer  for  issues raised on USP 

R2, 5 bi l l ion loan faci l i ty wi th  China 

Development Bank.  

So what  you are  ask ing  rea l l y  was tha t  Mr  Mole fe  shou ld  

pre fe r  your  response over  Ms Makgatho ’s  e -mai l .  
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MR SINGH:    No,  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  was the  pu rpose o f  the  

memo.   The purpose o f  the  memo was to ,  as  you wou ld  

have seen in  te rms o f  the  e-mai l  cor respondence and the  

communica t ion ,  Ms Makgatho had a  tendency o f  ac tua l l y  

no t  coming to  my o f f i ce ,  bu t  go ing  d i rec t l y  to  Mr  Mole fe  

because o f  he r  re la t ionsh ip  she had w i th  Mr  Mole fe  f rom 

Nat iona l  Treasury,  so  the  pu rpose o f  th is  e -mai l  was to  

ac tua l l y  no t  have th is  he  sa id ,  she sa id .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Bu t  to  ge t  to  a po in t  where  i f  Mr  Mole fe  10 

be l ieved tha t  she  was co r rec t ,  he  needed to  say i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    I f  he  thought  I  was cor rec t ,  he  needed to  say  

i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  th ink  we a re  say ing  the  same th ing .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.   A l r igh t ,  i t  was to  reso lve  the  

impasse one way or  the  o the r.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  you d id  no t  fee l  comfor tab le  20 

tak ing  the  dec i s ion  yourse l f ,  I  mean you accepted tha t  i t  

was content ious.  

MR SINGH:    No ,  i t  was not  content ious.   I  was jus t ,  th is  

was a  mechan ism to  dea l  w i th  the ,  le t  us  ca l l  i t  fo r  want  o f  

a  be t te r  word ,  the  HR issue.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    And Mr  Mole fe  then d id  no t  do  what  

you wanted.  

MR SINGH:    Yes s i r,  ev ident ly.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cor rec t .  

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  he  had noted,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja .   I  want  to  take  you to  page 285.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  2?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    285.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  jus t  the  prev ious page.   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You ta lk  about  Reg iments ,  10 

parag raph 3(a) :  

“Reg iments  Cap i ta l  was appo in ted  as  

t ransact ion  adv i sors ,  in  te rms  o f  the 

a forement ioned mandate  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  

was requ i red  to  adv ise  on  dea l  s t rugg l ing ,  

f inanc ing  and fund ing  opt ions to  m in im ise  

r i sks  fo r  Transnet . ”  

Cor rec t?   You have seen tha t .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  20 

“Accordingly,  the negot iat ion wi th  CDB to 

successful ly conclude a ZAR funding faci l i ty  

at  a ZAR cost  not  exceeding 9.3% for a  

tenure not  less than 15 years,  at  no 

addi t ional  fees,  part  of  the ir  mandate.”  
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I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Th is  was pa r t  o f  the i r  o r ig ina l  

mandate .  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  based on th is  memo,  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  and you say th is  as  a t  August  

2014.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then i f  I  cou ld  take  you back  p lease 

to  page 34,  so  now by th is  t ime Ms Makgatho a t  136 has 10 

ment ioned tha t  Mr  Mole fe  no ted,  wro te  ‘no ted ’ on  your  

memo.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  says  a t  137,  page 34:  

“On 20 August  2014 I  d ra f ted  an  in te rna l  

memorandum to  the  Board ,  seek ing  

approva l  fo r  fund ing  in i t ia t i ve ,  sub jec t  to  

acceptab le  te rms and cond i t ions . ”  

And then she goes in  to  say a t  138 :  

“ I  later d iscovered that  Anoj  Singh had 20 

replaced the Treasury Board memo with a 

PowerPoint  presentat ion that  was based on 

the f lawed, Regiments analysis. ”  

So i t  seems tha t  d is junct ion  be tween the  two  o f  you 

cont inued.  
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MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then jus t  to  comp le te  the 

chrono logy,  a t  pa rag raph 140 a t  page 35 i t  says :  

“Pursuant  to Anoj  Singh’s representat ion to  

the Board,  the at tached CDB Term Faci l i ty 

Agreement was signed on 4 June 2015, 

commit t ing Transnet to (she says) a very 

expensive loan agreement. ”  

But  leav ing  tha t  as ide ,  do  you accept  tha t  the  agreement  

was conc luded on  the  4 t h  o f  June 2015?  10 

MR SINGH:    I  do  no t  reca l l  the  da te ,  bu t  I  can conf i rm tha t  

we d id  conc lude  a  Term Fac i l i t y  Agreement  w i th  Ch ina  

Deve lopment  Bank.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Perhaps I  cou ld  take  you in  

conc lus ion  to  th is  to  Mr  Mohamadi ’s  ev idence.   Sor ry,  i f  I  

cou ld  jus t  have  a  second,  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  now seeming ly  

m is la id  one o f  my  f i les .    

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja ,  I  wou ld  have to  come back to  

tha t  perhaps a f te r  the  tea  ad jou rnment .   Perhaps what  I  

can do is  I  am go ing  to  take  you to  h is  a f f idav i t  when I  f ind 20 

mine,  bu t  le t  me jus t  quote  to  you what  he  sa id  in  ev idence  

f rom the  t ranscr ip t .  

He is  in  h is  ev idence conc lud ing  tha t  the  te rms o f  

the  CDB loan made no commerc ia l  sense to  h im.   He 

tes t i f ied  tha t ,  and th is  i s  a  quote ,  the  on ly  p laus ib le . . .   
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Sor ry.  

“The only possib le,  p lausible explanat ion in 

my perspect ive would be that  there was an 

agenda for payment to be made to 

Regiments ul t imately,  or some ent i ty that  

existed outside of  the system.”  

He sa id  tha t  on  day 93  on page 144 o f  the  t ranscr ip t .   I  am 

go ing  to  read tha t  aga in .   He says:  

“The only possib le,  p lausible explanat ion in 

my perspect ive would be that  there was an 10 

agenda for payment to be made to 

Regiments ul t imately,  or some ent i ty that  

existed outside of  the system.”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes ,  Mr  Cha i r.   F i rs t l y  Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  th ink  

Mr  Mohamady is  competent  to  make tha t  assessment ,  I  do 

no t  th ink  he  has ac tua l l y  been invo lved in  a  loan  

negot ia t ion  in  h is  p ro fess iona l  career  tha t  wou ld  requ i re  a 

fac i l i t y  o f  2 ,  5  b i l l i on  Do l la rs  f rom Chinese investors ,  and I  

say  tha t  very  par t i cu la r ly  because investors  are  f in icky  20 

about  what  they want .  

So when you dea l  w i th  US investo rs  there  i s  a  

par t i cu la r  fo rmat  in  wh ich  they wan t  loan agreements  to  be ,  

there  are  cer ta in  fo rmats  in  wh ich  they w i l l ,  there  are  

cer ta in  te rms and cond i t ions  tha t  they w i l l  accept ,  there  
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a re  cer ta in  te rms and cond i t ions  tha t  they w i l l  no t  accept .  

When we dea l t  w i th  the  Ch inese there  were  ce r ta in  

te rms and cond i t ions  tha t  they wou ld  accept ,  there  were  

cer ta in  te rms and cond i t ions  tha t  they wou ld  no t  accept  

and Mr  Cha i r,  in  te rms o f  the  CDB loan fac i l i t y  tha t  was  

conc luded,  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  I  do  have an oppor tun i ty  in  the  tea 

break I  w i l l  re fe rence my a f f idav i t ,  there  i s  a t tached there to  

a  document  tha t  e f fec t i ve l y  ou t l ines  the  benef i t s  assoc ia ted  

w i th  the  Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank  loan fac i l i t y  tha t  I  th ink  

w i l l  take  a  long way to  pu t  Mr  Mohamady ’s  concerns a t  10 

ease.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You see,  the  o the r  th ing  tha t  

Mr  Mohamady sa id ,  and I  th ink  tha t  i s  in  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  I  

fo r  some reason cannot  loca te ,  i s  he  echoed  

Ms Makgatho ’s  pos i t ion  in  tha t  he  fe l t  tha t  Treasury  wou ld  

have been ab le  t o  do  th is  job .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l  Mr  Cha i r,  aga in  w i th  h inds igh t  i t  i s  

per fec t  sc ience to  be  ab le  to  say  yes,  I  th ink  they wou ld  

have been ab le  to  do  i t .   Mr  Mohamady was pa r t  o f  the  

Group F inance team a t  the  t ime,  he  was par t  o f  the  20 

locomot ive  acqu is i t ion  process and had he had the  

fo res igh t  to  say tha t  you know,  the  Treasury  team cou ld  

have done i t  a t  the  t ime he wou ld  have,  he  shou ld  have  

ra ised h i s  concerns a t  the  t ime w i th  me,  bu t  he  d id  no t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  want  to  [ ind is t inc t ]  Ms Makgatho ’s  
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a f f idav i t  by  tak ing  you to  someth ing  d i f fe ren t .   Cou ld  you 

p lease tu rn  to  page 19?  

MR SINGH:    19 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    19 .  

MR SINGH:    MEM? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja ,  MEM19.   Th i s  i s  someth ing  tha t  I  

dea l t  w i th ,  w i th  Mohamady.   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  jus t  dea l  w i th  i t  

now f rom 71 to  76 ,  no t  very  long.   She ta lks  about  the  fac t  

a t  71 ,  f i ve  l ines  down,  on  tha t  day,  and tha t  wou ld  have 

been in  about  the  th i rd  quar te r  o f  2015:  10 

“Anoj  Singh gave me a funding proposal  

f rom Regiments in hard copy and informed 

me that  i t  was a very important  matter that  

Br ian Molefe needed executed speedi ly.   He 

said that  I  should excuse mysel f  f rom 

at tending FinCo and Capec and rather spend 

a day working on this urgent  proposal  and 

draf t  a memo recommended the proposal  for  

his signature and approval  by Br ian Molefe. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  20 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  reca l l  the  spec i f i c  event  in  

te rms o f  be ing  ab le  to  go ing  to  Ms Makgatho.   I  d id  rece ive  

proposals f rom Regiments,  f rom Absa,  f rom al l  the banks 

regular ly and the f i rst  th ing that  I  would do,  Mr Chai r,  is  take 

the proposals and provide i t  to  Treasury and say we have 
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received this th ing,  please review i t  and let  us know what  

you think of  i t ,  so i t  was a matter of  cause.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now what th is ref lects is  that  what 

was required of  her was to draf t  a memo recommending the 

proposal  for Mr Molefe ’s signature and approval .  

MR SINGH:    Mr Chai r,  I  would,  i t  is unl ike me to basical ly 

say to anyone to take something and draf t  a memo on the 

basis that  i t  is not  reviewed or understand the impl icat ions 

thereof  on Transnet .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l  that ,  I  th ink,  is  the issue,  10 

because she says you did do i t .  

MR SINGH:    I  deny i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You deny i t .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    At  72 she says:  

“The Regiments proposal  was that  

Regiments wi l l  faci l i tate a f ive year  

R5 bi l l ion loan faci l i ty that  was to be funded 

by Nedbank.”  

Do you reca l l  tha t?  20 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  sa id  I  do  no t  reca l l  spec i f i ca l l y  

th is  Reg iments  proposal ,  but  as I  said the reason maybe is 

because I  received proposals almost  weekly f rom banks,  i f  

not  more f requent ly than that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  but  just  to retrace the steps,  i t  is 
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not  a matter of  s imply receiving a proposal .   On her  version 

she says that  you wanted her to cancel  al l  of  her meet ings 

and spend the day working on an urgent  proposal  and draf t  

memo recommending the proposal .  

MR SINGH:    As I  said,  th is would not  be something that  I  

would have proposed to Ms Makgatho.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then at  73 she says that :  

“The proposed faci l i ty was pr iced much 

higher than normal faci l i t ies or smal ler loan 

faci l i t ies or domest ic bonds.   My calculat ion 10 

indicated that  Transnet  would have to pay an 

addi t ional  R150 mi l l ion per annum in interest  

payments on behal f  of  what  Transnet  

normal ly pays for s imi lar faci l i t ies.   This 

t ranslated into potent ia l  losses of  

R750 mi l l ion over a f ive year per iod.   I  

shared my analysis wi th Anoj  Singh and 

indicated that  I  d id not  recommend the 

proposal ,  g iven potent ia l  excessive costs in  

interest  payments.   He responded saying 20 

that  i t  is an inst ruct ion f rom Brian Molefe 

and that  I  should quick ly complete the 

memorandum for approval  the same day.”  

Comment  on  tha t .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  sa id ,  I  do  no t  reca l l  th is  and  
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th is  i s  no t  someth ing  tha t  I  wou ld  have ins t ruc ted  

Ms Makgatho to  do  in  any way,  shape or  fo rm.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A t  74 :  

“ I  fe l t  very uncomfortable wi th the same day 

approval  request ,  as we have never rushed 

funding in i t iat ives before,  and def in i te ly not  

same day,  especial ly given the potent ia l  

losses of  R750 mi l l ion over a f ive year 

per iod. ”  

She goes on to  say a t  75 :  10 

“ I  decided to discuss the matter d i rect ly wi th  

Br ian Molefe and went to his off ice.   I  to ld  

him that  I  understand that  he expects me to 

urgent ly recommend a R5 bi l l ion f ive year  

loan that  Regiments is proposing,  wherein 

R150 mi l l ion would be unnecessari ly  

occurred per annum, accumulat ing to  

R750 mi l l ion over  a f ive year per iod,  wi th no 

clear benef i ts for Transnet .    

I  was i rate at  that  t ime, but  I  20 

speci f ical ly to ld h im that  should we approve 

the structure,  we wi l l  go to ja i l  for steal ing 

money,  as we are the custodians of  

Transnet ’s funds. ”  

And then th is  p iece  conc ludes.  
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“The structure was overpr iced.   We had a 

di rect  relat ion wi th Nedbank,  there was no 

need to use a condui t  l ike Regiments to  

engage with Nedbank.   Br ian Molefe agreed 

with me and said that  he wi l l  handle the 

matter.   The st ructure was never  

implemented. ”  

Do you have any comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  reca l l  Mr  Mole fe  ever  

engag ing  me on th is  mat te r,  to  the  best  o f  my knowledge  10 

th is  was never  d iscussed between B r ian  and  myse l f .   

Mr  Cha i r,  th is  was ac tua l l y  someth ing  tha t  was phased in  

rea l i t y.   My response to  th is  i ssue wou ld  have been to 

Ms Makgatho to  engage w i th  Nedbank to  unders tand why  

was Nedbank,  as  she says we had a  d i rec t  re la t ionsh ip  

w i th  Nedbank,  why wou ld  i t  be  necessary  fo r  Nedbank to  

engage w i th  us  v ia  Reg iments?    

So tha t  wou ld  have been someth ing  tha t  I  wou ld  

have ra ised a t  tha t  t ime,  g iven tha t  th is  was a ,  i t  seems 

l i ke  a  re la t i ve ly  van i l la  fund ing  fac i l i t y.   There  was noth ing  20 

ex t raord ina ry  about  th is ,  except  tha t  they were  p rov id ing  

money to  us ,  so  there  was no need fo r  Reg imen ts  to  be  

invo l ved in  any way,  shape or  fo rm .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  wou ld  l i ke  to  tu rn  now to  a  d i f fe ren t  

top ic .   Cha i rpe rson,  I  do  no t  know i f  th is  wou ld  be  a  
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conven ien t  t ime to  take  tea .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  maybe i t  wou ld  be .   Le t  us  take  the  

tea  ad journment .   I t  w i l l  be  15 minutes .   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you  Cha i rperson.    Mr  S ingh  

you sa id  tha t  you  wanted to  re fe rence a  document ,  d id  you  

manage to  f ind  i t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t  s i r  I  d id ,  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  bund le  10 

BB23.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  i s  tha t  bund le  5B o r  5A? 

MR SINGH:    5C.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry  yes,  okay.  

MR SINGH:    5C.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You sa id  a t  page?  

MR SINGH:    Page,  back numbers  1551.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    1551.   Yes?  

MR SINGH:    I  am jus t  wa i t ing  fo r  Mr  Cha i r  to  ge t  h is  

document .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  i s  annexure  AS4,  i s  i t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  annexure  AS4 ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    P lease go ahead.  

MR SINGH:    Thank you,  s i r.   Mr  Cha i r,  you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  

Mr  Myburgh led  some ev idence re la t ing  to  Mr  Mohamady ’s  
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comments .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    And  I  have responded by  say ing  tha t  there  is  

a  document  tha t  ou t l ines  the  bene f i t s  re la t ing  to  the  Ch ina  

Deve lopment  Bank loan.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    And th is  document ,  Mr  Cha i r,  pu rpor ts  to  

record  tha t  in  te rms o f  the  va lue  tha t  was added th rough 

the  Reg iments  in te rac t ions w i th  Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank.   

Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  look a t  1557 you w i l l  see  tha t  th is  i s  a  10 

summary o f  the  va lue  added f rom negot ia t ion  suppor t  

p rov ided by  Reg iments .  

A 15  year  amor t i s ing  pro f i le  was negot ia ted  as  

opposed to  CDB ’s  proposed 10 year  amor t i s ing  pro f i le .   

The longer  p ro f i le  dura t ion  prov ides a  be t te r  asset  

management  l iab i l i t y  match .   So Mr  Cha i r,  bas i ca l l y  what  

th is  means is  tha t  Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank had o f fe red  a  

10  year  fac i l i t y,  mean ing  tha t  you  wou ld  repay the  loan in  

10  years ,  bu t  we  ins is ted  in  Reg iments ’ in te rac t ions w i th  

Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank tha t  i t  ac tua l l y  su i t s  Transnet  20 

be t te r  i f  we have  a  15  year  fac i l i t y  in  tha t  the  locomot ives  

ac tua l l y  a re  long- te rm assets ,  because i t  takes th ree  years  

fo r  them to  bas ica l l y  bu i ld  and come in to  product ion .  

So i f  you  g ive  us  a  10  year  loan  we bas ica l l y  on ly  

have seven years  to  repay th is  loan,  i t  then becomes qu i te  
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expens ive .   So the  longer  the  dura t ion  o f  the  loan,  the 

be t te r  revenue genera t ion  and repayment  o f  the  l oan,  so  

you have bet te r  match ing  o f  the  revenue genera t ion  o f  the  

assets ,  so  you genera te  the  revenue f rom the  asset  and 

then have the  ab i l i t y  to  pay the  loan.  

The cap i ta l  g race per iod  was ex tended f rom 36 to  

54  months  and aga in  Mr  Cha i r,  in  te rms o f  the  cap i ta l  

g race per iod  th is  i s  bas ica l l y  a  g race per iod  be tween wh ich  

you ac tua l l y  d raw down the  fac i l i t y,  so  le t  us  say you take  

the  money today,  the  grace per iod  then enab les   you a  10 

per iod  o f  54  months  w i th in  wh ich  to  then make your  f i rs t  

payment ,  so  you  are  ac tua l l y  a l l ow ing the  en t i re  per iod  

dur ing  wh ich  the  locomot ives  are  be ing  bu i l t  to  ac tua l l y  no t  

pay anyth ing  on  the  loan.   The f ina l ,  the  CDB in i t ia l  p r i c ing  

was . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  course  I  take  i t  a l though you were  no t  

pay ing ,  in te res t  i s  be ing  added on .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  you  w i l l  have to  accrue the  in te res t ,  

Mr  Cha i r,  because you have got  the  benef i t  fo r  the  fac i l i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

MR SINGH:    You have ac tua l l y  t aken the  money,  except  

tha t  you not  re ta in  cap i ta l ,  because the  locos a re  no t  ye t  

genera t ing  any revenue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    CDB’s  pr i c ing  Mr  Cha i r,  now pr i c ing  is  the  
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ac tua l  cos t  o f  the  fac i l i t y.   You w i l l  see  i t  was or ig ina l l y  300 

bas is  po in ts  and i t  ended up be ing  257 bas is  po in ts ,  wh ich  

is  a  43  bas i s  po in t  sav ing .    

Then Mr  Cha i r,  as  you can see  the  four th  bu l le t  

po in t ,  in  o rde r  fo r  us  to  have an appropr ia te  l eve l  o f  

in te res t  cos t  re la t ing  to  the  locomot ives ,  because the  

locomot ives  was a  s ign i f i can t  chunk o f  the  cap i ta l .   You w i l l  

reca l l  we sa id  tha t  we had a  cap i ta l  spend o f  R300 b i l l i on ,  

the  locos was R50 b i l l i on  o f  tha t ,  now tha t  i s  a  s ign i f i can t  

por t ion  o f  the  en t i re ,  i t  i s  a lmost  20% of  the  en t i re  cap i ta l  10 

spent  tha t  we were  to  do .  

So i f  you locked yourse l f  in to  a  ve ry  expens ive  

fac i l i t y  fo r  20% o f  the  fac i l i t y,  o f  the  cap i ta l ,  i t  wou ld  be  a ,  

i t  wou ld  be  a  burden on the  in te res t  l ine  fo r  qu i te  a  

s ign i f i can t  amoun t  o f  t ime,  so  in  o rde r  to  ac tua l l y  ge t  to  a  

po in t  where  we had an acceptab le  leve l  o f  in te res t  cos t  we  

ac tua l l y  dec ided to  pu l l  a  b lended fac i l i t y,  wh ich  is  a  Do l la r  

fac i l i t y  as  we l l  as  a  Rand fac i l i t y.  

Mr  Cha i r,  you have to  accept  i t  is  jus t  economics  

tha t  when you bo r row in  South  A f r i can Rand i t  i s  cheaper,  20 

when you bo r row in  US Do l la r  i t  i s  more  expens ive  and  

jus t ,  i t  i s  jus t  because o f  the  cur rency and obv ious ly  o ther  

fac tors ,  bu t  the  b iggest  po in t  i s  tha t  s imp ly  pu t  i t  i s  jus t . . .  

So in  o rde r,  each t ime you bor row overseas i t  i s  

ac tua l l y  more  expens ive  than bor rowing loca l ,  so  in  o rder  
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to  manage tha t  appropr ia te l y  we  had to  have a  b lended 

lend o f  Rand f i nanc ing  as  we l l  as  Do l la r  o r  any o ther  

cur rency f inance.  

Then Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  go in to  the  next  page you w i l l  

see  tha t  we ac tua l l y  had o the r  in te rac t ions  tha t  we have 

a lso  ach ieved,  tha t  i s  on  page 1558.   So these are  

re la t i ve ly  techn ica l  [ ind is t inc t ]  Mr  Cha i r,  bu t  bas ica l l y  in  

te rms o f  the  change o f  the  re fe rence ra te ,  so  Mr Cha i r  you 

wou ld ,  the  re ference ra te  means tha t  the  cost  o f  the ,  the  

in te res t  cos t ,  you cou ld  e i ther  do  tha t  quar te r ly  o r  10 

b iannua l ly  o r  annua l l y  and depend ing  on wh ich  one you 

choose,  u l t imate ly  the  amount  o f  debt  tha t  you,  the  amount  

o f  in te res t  you ac tua l l y  pay ove r  the  l i fe  o f  the  loan i s  

d i f fe ren t .  

So in  chang ing  the  re fe rence ra te  f rom le t  us  say  

annua l l y  to  semi -annua l ly  o r  quar te r ly,  there  is  e i ther  a  

sav ing  or  there  is  a  cost  invo l ved there ,  so  tha t  was 

ident i f ied  and captured.  

Sens i t i v i t y  in  execut ing  the  CCS,  now the  CCS 

s tand fo r  a  c ross  cur rency swop  or  a  cont ingent  c ross  20 

cur rency swop in  th is  case.   Th is  was executed w i th  

JP Moran and i t  resu l ted  in  a  sav ing  o f  a  fu r ther  112 bas is  

po in ts ,  bu t  in  execut ing ,  the  execu t ing  s t ra tegy Mr Cha i r,  in  

te rms o f  the  cont ingent  c ross  cur rency swop fo r  JP Morgan 

was changed and  tha t  was the  reason why we ac tua l l y  had 
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done to  the  ADC,  i f  you  w i l l  reca l l  on  tha t  memo,  to  request  

the  ADC to  conf ine  the  CCDS to  JP Moran,  because what  

we ac tua l l y  found  tha t  i s ,  i f  we go to  the  market  and  say to  

the  market ,  now the  market  i s ,  i f  you  a re  execut ing  a  swop 

you have to  execute  i t  w i th  the  counte rpa r ty,  now the  

counterpa r ty  can on ly  be  the  banks .  

Now when,  as  you approach the  banks,  say  g ive  me 

a  quote ,  they a l ready know tha t  a  t ransact ion  i s  coming  

[ ind is t inc t ]  r igh t ,  and the  way tha t  you ask  them,  the  way  

you tes t  the  market  i s  you ask  a  number  o f  banks,  bu t  as  10 

soon as  you ask  a  number  o f  banks,  what  happens?   A l l  o f  

them know a  t ransact ion  is  coming and automat i ca l l y  the  

pr ice  fo r  tha t  ins t rument  immedia te ly  goes up by  10  to  15  

bas is  po in ts .  

So in  o rde r  to  p revent  tha t  what  we ca l l  fund 

runn ing  o f  the  t ransact ion ,  because o f  the  s ize  o f  th is  

t ransact ion  those  10 or  15  bas is  po in ts  ac tua l l y  add up to  

qu i te  a  lo t  o f  money.   So what  was dec ided  in  th is  

t ransact ion  was to  say le t  us  tes t  JP Moran ’s  p r ic ing ,  i f  we 

are  comfor tab le  w i th  JP Moran ’s  p r ic ing  there  i s  no  need 20 

fo r  us  to  go  and  tes t  the  market  in  execut ing  th i s ,  so  we  

wou ld  ac tua l l y  jus t  execute  w i th  JP Moran a lone and not  

run  the  r i sk  o f  the  add ing  in  these  po in t s  on  the  t ransact ion 

re la t ing  to  the  f ron t  runn ing  r i sk .  

The o ther,  I  w i l l  move to  the  o the r,  the  o ther  two  
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i tems on page 1558 I  w i l l  sk ip ,  as  we l l  as  the  two i tems on 

page 1559 I  w i l l  sk ip  in  the  in te res t  o f  t ime,  Mr  Cha i r,  bu t  i t  

i s  the  a f f idav i t  i s  on  record ,  the  annexure  is  on  reco rd ,  

Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    The las t  one tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  ac tua l l y  

comment  on  is  the  las t  th ing  on  page 1559 o r  the  l as t  i tem 

on page 1559,  wh ich  re la tes  to  the  s tandby fac i l i t y.   Now 

Mr  Cha i r,  a l l  o f  these th ings tha t  I  have ment ioned  to  you,  

me as  CFO actua l l y,  th is  s tandby  fac i l i t y  was ac tua l l y  the  10 

most  impor tan t  th ing  tha t  came out  o f  th is  en t i re  th ing ,  

because as  I  sa id  to  you or ig ina l l y  the  reason why we  

ac tua l l y,  o r  why we ac tua l l y  op ted  fo r  Reg iments  to  par tne r  

w i th  Transnet  Treasury  to  negot ia te  the  fac i l i t y  w i th  Ch ina  

Deve lopment  Bank was ac tua l l y  fo r  us  to  sa t i s fy  what  we  

ca l led  the  requ i rements  o f  SNP in  re la t ion  to  the  A&B ra t io .  

Now hav ing  s igned the  fac i l i t y  w i th  Ch ina  

Deve lopment  Bank o f  2 ,  5  b i l l i on  Do l la rs ,  i f  you  go in to  the  

de ta i l  o f  the  loan agreement  the  fac i l i t y  was fo r  2 ,  5  b i l l i on  

Do l la rs ,  bu t  the  commi tment  to  d raw down was on ly  20 

1 ,  5  b i l l i on  Do l la rs ,  wh ich  meant  there  was a  b i l l i on  Do l la rs  

tha t  Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank had  commi t ted  to  us  w i th  no  

ac tua l  d rawdown requ i rement ,  so  tha t  was as  a  fac i l i t y  tha t  

we cou ld  de te rm ine whether  we requ i red  i t  in  I  th ink  in  

12  months  or  18  months  in to  the  fu tu re ,  bu t  tha t  fac i l i t y  
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was there .   So i t  was a  commi tment  tha t  Ch ina  

Deve lopment  Bank had g i ven us  in  wr i t ing  tha t  we  had a  

b i l l i on  Do l la rs  ava i lab le  to  us  a t  any g i ven po in t  in  t ime.  

So tha t  sa t is f ied  the  requ i rement  o f  SNP as a  

commi t ted  fac i l i t y,  so  the  b i l l i on  Do l la rs  bas ica l l y  was  

there ,  enab l ing  me to  sa t is fy  SNP 's  commi tment  in  te rms o f  

the  A&B ra t io ,  bu t  to  me Mr  Cha i r,  th is  was one  o f  the 

th ings tha t  was rea l l y,  rea l l y  he lped in  te rms o f  be ing  ab le  

to  sa t is fy  SNP requ i rements .  

So Mr  Cha i r,  th is  I  submi t  as  the  benef i t  re la t ing  to  10 

the  Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank fac i l i t y  in  response to  

Ms Makgatho ’s  comments  and cr i t i c i sms and  

Mr  Mohamady ’s  comments  in  re la t ion  there to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  you have,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  

add ressed the  va lue  tha t  you say Reg iments  added.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now I  th ink  the  essent ia l  cont roversy  

though is  whether  the  i n te rna l  Treasury  cou ld  no t  have 

added the  same va lue .  20 

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  hence Mr  Cha i r,  I  w i l l  then ask  the  

quest ion ;  where  were  a l l  o f  these th ings tha t  I  jus t  read out  

to  you?  There  were  none o f  these ideas tha t  emanated  

f rom Transnet .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  bu t  o f  course  you engaged,  
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they  d id  no t  have  the  oppor tun i ty  to  do  tha t ,  o r  do  I  ge t  the  

chrono logy wrong?  What  happened is  when Ms Makgatho  

came back f rom t rave ls  in  the  m idd le  o f  Ju l y  you had 

engaged Transne t ,  no  sor ry,  Reg iments .  

MR SINGH:    No  Mr  Cha i r,  you wou ld  reca l l  tha t  they had 

an oppor tun i ty  to  engage w i th  CDB for  a  per iod  o f  t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .  

MR SINGH:    When those engagements ,  in  my v iew,  were  

break ing  down the  va lues in  Reg iments  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  i s  when you . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  when I  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .  

MR SINGH:    Bu t  even then Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  

c la r i f y  and make th is  po in t  very  c lea r,  and I  though t  I  had 

done i t  be fore  bu t  I  w i l l  re i te ra te ,  there  was no  po in t  in  

t ime tha t  I  can reca l l  where  Reg iments  had exc lus ive  and  

unf re t ted  access  to  e i ther  locomot ive  manufac ture rs  or  

Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank.  

Reg iments  worked in  concer t  w i th  Transne t  

Treasury  fo r  a l l  in ten ts  and purposes.   They worked w i th  20 

the  Cross Funct ion  Eva lua t ion  team when they were  do ing  

the  locomot ive  negot ia t ions ,  together  w i th  Transnet  

Treasury  and the  eng ineers ,  so  f rom tha t  pe rspect ive  i t  

was not  as  i f  Reg iments  had th is  and they then went  o f f  

and there  was no one e l se  w i th  them.   I t  was never  tha t  
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case.  

I f  they  were  dea l ing  w i th  Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank 

there  was a lways a  case tha t  they wou ld  dea l  w i th . . .   

Maybe they d id  no t  have a  Transnet  person s i t t ing  w i th  

them every  t ime they spoke to  Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank,  

bu t  cer ta in ly  when the  feedback was g iven to  Transnet  i t  

was g i ven to  Transnet  on  the  bas i s  tha t  i t  was g iven to  me 

as we l l  as  Treasury.   There  was no way tha t  these Lega l  

peop le ,  the  Tax peop le ,  the  o the r  peop le  tha t  Ms Makgatho 

ment ions in  her  a f f idav i t  wou ld  have been ab le  to  engage  10 

w i th  these mat te rs  i f  Reg iments  was go ing  o f f  and do ing  

the i r  own th ing  w i thout  in te rac t ion  w i th  Transnet ,  w i thout  

in te rac t ion  w i th  Transnet  ind iv idua ls  and s ta f f .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And sor ry,  there  is  someth ing  tha t  I  

fo rgo t  to  ment ion  to  you,  jus t  rem inded me,  Ms Makgatho 

a l leges tha t  you exc luded her  f rom the  Data  Room,  

someth ing  I  d id  no t  pu t  to  you.   Do you want  to  comment  

on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  aga in  I  th ink  Ms Makgatho does  

make tha t  a l legat ion ,  there  was no  tha t  I  wou ld  have g iven  20 

an ins t ruc t ion  l i ke  tha t  fo r  anyth ing .   Ms Makgatho was,  on  

her  own vers ion ,  a  member  o f  the  Cross Funct ion  

Eva lua t ion  team,  she had fu l l  access and r igh ts  to  be  in  

the  Data  Room and get  access to  any in fo rmat ion  she 

requ i red .  
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The Data  Room was not  under  my cont ro l ,  Mr  Cha i r.   

As  I  ment ioned in  tes t imony  yesterday,  the  en t i re  

eva lua t ion  process re la t ing  to  the  OEMs and the  Data  

Room was ac tua l l y  a t  Transnet  F re igh t  Ra i l ,  i t  was  not  a t  

Corpora te  Cent re .   I  had no overs igh t  ove r  tha t  Data  Room, 

i t  ac tua l l y,  overs igh t  l ied  w i th  Mr  Gama and [ ind i s t inc t ] .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  ask  

you w i th  re ference to  your  s l ide ,  a t  page 1559 you ment ion  

to  the  Cha i rperson tha t  you thought  the  adv i ce  in  re la t ion  

to  the  s tandby fac i l i t y  was par t i cu la r ly  use fu l  and va luab le .   10 

Do I  unders tand you cor rec t l y?  

MR SINGH:    1?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    1559.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .   Ja ,  I  am there .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And is  tha t ,  so  tha t  s tandby  fac i l i t y  

o f  a  b i l l i on  Do l la rs ,  cor rec t  me i f  I  am wrong,  i s  tha t  the  

then what  was dea l t  w i th  by  way o f  the  ZAR Club loan? 

MR SINGH:    I  wou ld . . .   Th is  one  and tha t  one is  no t  the  

same.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A re  they d i f fe ren t  th ings?  20 

MR SINGH:    They are  d i f fe ren t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l l  r igh t ,  thank you.  

MR SINGH:    Th is  i s  a  s tandby fac i l i t y,  so  i f  you  need i t  

you cou ld  have drawn down.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  was  not  anothe r  fundra is ing  
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mechan ism.  

MR SINGH:    Th is  one?  No,  no ,  th is  was. . .   So i f  we,  le t  us 

pu t  i t  th is  way;  i f  we needed th is  there  was no o ther  

agreement  tha t  you needed to  s ign ,  a l l  you  needed  to  send  

is  a  le t te r  to  CDB to  say we are  ac t iva t ing  th is  fac i l i t y,  can 

you p lease proceed us  a  b i l l i on .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then I  have now found,  

thankfu l l y,  my Mohamady f i le ,  EXHIBIT BB3A,  BB3A.   

Cou ld  you p lease  tu rn  to  page MSM18? 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So Mr  S ingh,  I  have a l ready  put  th is  

to  you,  bu t  jus t  fo r  the  purpose o f  the  record ,  MSM,  

page 18,  paragraph 5 .5 .9 ,  Mr  Mohamady s ta tes :  

“The Transnet Treasury team had suff ic ient  

expert ise to enter  into loan t ransact ions 

wi thout  the need for external  support .   In my 

view there was no need for the 

abovement ioned loan arrangement fee to be 

incurred.”  

And i t  then makes ce r ta in  o ther  s ta tements  to  tha t  e f fec t .   20 

Do you have anyth ing  to  add to  what  you have  a l ready  

sa id?  

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  th ink  you have a l ready to ld  the  

Cha i rperson tha t  f i rs t l y  you do not  th ink  tha t  he  has the  
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exper t i se  to  p ro f fe r  th is  v iew,  and  second ly  i f  my memory  

serves me cor rec t ly  you sa id  tha t  i f  he  had tha t  concern  he  

shou ld  have ra i sed i t  a t  the  t ime.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And is  i t  your  ev idence tha t  he  d id 

no t  do  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  take  

you to  one aspect ,  some regu la tory  i ssues.   In  

EXHIBIT BB27,  so  tha t  i s  the  POI  bund le .  10 

MR SINGH:    Ja .   Can I  jus t  do  some housekeep ing?  I  am 

there ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you to  

page 395,  par t  o f  the  MNS t ransact ion  adv i so r  repor t .   

Paragraph 2 .7 .12  in  the  m idd le  o f  the  page,  the  repor t  

reads:  

“The guidel ine on cost  containment 

measures,  the DOA f ramework of  

1 September 2014 and the PPM October 

2014 al l  make reference to the use of  20 

internal  ski l ls  and resources before the 

procurement of  external  consul tants.   I t  is 

only in the event  that  there are no ski l ls and 

resources internal ly that  a publ ic  inst i tute 

such as Transnet had then procured external  
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consul tants. ”  

Do I  unders tand  you to  be  say ing  tha t  Transnet  d id  no t  

have these sk i l l s  in te rna l l y?  

MR SINGH:    Ja  Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  as  I  have sa id  in  my v iew 

Transnet  Treasury  was not  su f f i c i en t ly  capac i ta ted  a t  the 

t ime to  meet  the  needs o f  the  organ isa t ion  a t  the  t ime,  tha t  

i s  why we engaged w i th  Reg iments .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  I  apprec ia te  tha t .   And then jus t  

fo r  the  sake o f  comple teness,  2 .7 .13 :  

“Further to the fact  that  Transnet is requi red 10 

to ensure that  there are no internal  sk i l ls 

and resources avai lable for  procuring 

external  consul tants,  the Transnet DOA 

framework also places an obl igat ion on 

Transnet employees/business uni ts to  

always obtain on FX rates and l ia ise wi th 

Transnet Treasury Trading Desk.   I t  wi l l  

ver i fy  the rates to ensure i t  is market  

re lated.    

The business uni ts can only enter into 20 

the FX hedges wi th the suppl ier  once the 

rates are accepted by the Treasury Trading 

Desk via e-mai l .   Once the above approvals 

are obtained,  the Treasury Traders wi l l  s ign 

off  on the rate acceptance. ”  
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Then a t  paragraph 2 .7 .14 :  

“The exclusion of  Transnet Treasury in terms 

of  the CDB faci l i ty was in contravent ion of  

the guidel ines on cost  containment 

measures and (which we have deal t  wi th) the 

DOA f ramework.   The use of  Regiments 

should not  have been approved without  

having obtained the Treasury Trader ’s  

signoff  on the rate acceptance.”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  10 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  aga in  I  th ink  as  you wou ld  see in  

tes t imony tha t  wou ld  fo l low,  I  th ink  MNS takes e lements  o f  

app l i cab le  lead negot ia to r  o r  p rocedures or  po l i cy  ou t  o f  

contex t  and uses  i t  fo r  the i r  purpose to  ob ta in  the i r  p re-

determined outcome,  in  my v iew.  

I f  you look a t  th is  par t i cu la r  DOA f ramework  tha t  

they a re  ac tua l l y  re fe r r ing  to  Mr  Cha i r,  and I  am not  too  

sure  i f  Mr  Cha i r  wou ld  ac tua l l y  want  to  go  to  i t .   I f  you  

wou ld  l i ke  to  we can,  because I  th ink  there  is  a  de legated  

author i t y  f ramework  a t tached in  one o f  my a f f idav i t s .  20 

You w i l l  see  Mr  Cha i r,  th is  de legated author i t y  

f ramework  tha t  they re fer  to  and  th is  i ssue o f  Transnet  

employees,  Mr  Cha i r,  and bus iness un i ts .   Th i s  i s  say ing  

tha t ,  remember  we have a  cent ra l i sed  Treasury,  so  there  is  

a  Treasury  Depar tment  tha t  does  whatever  they do  and  
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Treasury  ac t i v i t ies ,  they are  the  on ly  ones tha t  a re  a l lowed  

to  engage w i th  banks.  

So what  th is  i s  say ing ,  i t  i s  say ing  employees o the r  

than these Treasury  employees,  i t  makes re ference to  

bus iness un i ts ,  bus iness un i ts  a re  a l l  o f  the  peop le  ou ts ide  

Treasury,  so  i t  w i l l  be  Transnet  Fre igh t  Ra i l ,  i t  w i l l  be  

Transnet  Nat iona l  Por ts  Autho r i t y,  P ipe l ine ,  a l l  o f  these 

o ther  peop le .  

I f  they  had to  engage in  a  fo re ign  t ransact ion ,  i f  

they  had to  engage w i th  a  supp l ie r  re la t ing  to  equ ipment  10 

tha t  needs to  be  bought  in  Do l la rs ,  what  th is  says,  they  

had no autho r i t y  to  commi t  Transnet  to  tha t  par t i cu la r  ra te  

tha t  the  supp l i e r  i s  o f fe r i ng  w i thout  ac tua l l y  hav ing  

re ference to  Transnet  Treasury  f i rs t ,  tha t  i s  wha t  tha t . . .   

The purpose o f  the  de legated author i t y  f ramework ,  tha t  i s  

the  purpose o f  why i t  i s  there .   

I t  i s  no t ,  th is  in te rp re ta t ion  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  MNS 

supp l ies  to  tha t  p rov is ion  o f  the  de legated author i t y  

f ramework  i s  incor rec t  and Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  wou ld  l i ke  we 

cou ld  go  to  tha t  de legated author i t y  f ramework  to  look a t  20 

tha t  spec i f i c  e lement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So th is  comes  f rom 2 .7 .12  and  then i t  

goes up to  2 .7 .14 .  

MR SINGH:    So  the  one tha t  I  am re fer r ing  to ,  Mr  Cha i r,  i s  

2 .7 .13 .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    I f  you  look a t  the  th i rd  l ine  i t  says  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  le t  me go back to  12 .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The gu ide l i ne  on  cost  con ta inment  

measures,  the  DOA f ramework  o f  1  September  2014 and  

the  EPM October  2013,  a l l  make re ference to  the  use o f  

in te rna l  sk i l l s  and resources be fore  the  procurement  o f  

ex te rna l  consu l tan ts ,  wh ich  a l l  makes sense.   I t  i s  on ly  in  10 

the  event  tha t  there  are  no  sk i l l s  and o r  resources 

in te rna l l y  tha t  a  pub l i c  ins t i tu te ,  a  pub l i c  ins t i tu te  such as  

Transnet  may  then procure  ex terna l  consu l tan ts ,  I  guess no  

prob lem the re .  

MR SINGH:    So  Mr  Cha i r,  I  have  g iven the  response and 

sa id  in  my v iew we d id  no t  have . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   Then 13:  

“Re la t i ve  e f fec ts ,  Transnet  i s  requ i red  to  

ensure  tha t  there  are  no  in te rna l  sk i l l s  and 

resources ava i lab le  to  i t  be fore  procu r ing  20 

ex te rna l  consu l tan ts .   The Transnet  DOA 

f ramework  a lso  p laces an  ob l iga t ion  on  

Transnet  employees/bus iness un i ts  to  

a lways obta in  quotes  on  FX. ”  

I s  tha t  fo re ign  exchange?  
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MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  fo re ign  exchange.  

CHAIRPERSON:    R igh t .  

“Or what rates and l ia ise wi th Treasury 

Trading Desk that  wi l l  ver i fy the rates to 

ensure i t  is market  related.   The business 

uni ts can only enter into the FX edges wi th  

the suppl ier once the rates are accepted by 

the Treasury Trading Desk via e-mai l .   Once 

the above approvals are obta ined,  the 

Treasury Traders wi l l  provide s ignoff  on the 10 

rate’s acceptance. ”  

And then 14:  

“The exclusion of  Treasury in  terms of  CDB 

faci l i t ies was in contravent ion of . . . ”  

So what  i s  your  content ion  o f  what  th is  means?  Obv ious l y  

you are  say ing  MNS has misapp l ied  or  m is in te rpre ted  the  

de legated author i t y.  

MR SINGH:    They quoted the  de legated author i t y  in  2 .7 .13  

cor rec t l y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Cor rec t ly?  20 

MR SINGH:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    So  tha t  i s  what  i t  says .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    I  can  conf i rm tha t .   In  app ly ing  i t  in  2 .7 .14  
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they  a re  incor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

“The exc lus ion  o f  Transnet  Treasury  in  

te rms o f  CDB fac i l i t y  was in  cont ravent ion  

o f  the  gu ide l ine  on  cost  conta inment  

measures and the  DOA f ramework .   The 

use o f  Reg iments  shou ld  no t  have been  

approved w i thout  hav ing  ob ta ined the  

Treasury  Trader ’s  s ignof f  on  the  ra te  

acceptance. ”  10 

Okay,  jus t  repeat  what  your  po in t  i s ,  why you say they were  

wrong.  

MR SINGH:    So Mr  Cha i r,  in  terms o f  the ,  so  they are  

say ing  the  use o f  Reg iments  cou ld  no t  have been approved  

w i thout  hav ing  ob ta ined the  Treasury  Trader  s ignof f  on  the  

ra te  acceptance and Mr  Cha i r,  in  my v iew they are  dea l ing  

w i th  two mat te rs .   F i rs t l y  they a re  say ing ,  and I  do  no t  

know,  they seem to be  confused,  the  use o f  Reg iments  

shou ld  no t  have been approved,  okay.   Now I  am say ing 

the  use o f  Reg iments  cou ld  no t  have been approved and I  20 

am assuming in  te rms o f  the  cost  conta inment measures,  

which I  have given a response for,  wi thout  hav ing  ob ta ined 

the  Treasury  Trader  s ignof f  on  the  ra tes  accepted.  

Now aga in  Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  have sa id  to  you  

Reg iments  does  not  have the  ab i l i t y  to  approach the 
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marke t ,  they  have the  ab i l i t y  to  go  and look a t  the i r  

sc reens and do  whatever  they do  on [ ind i s t inc t ]  because  

everyone has access to  [ ind is t inc t ] ,  bu t  a t  the  end o f  the  

day i t  s t i l l  comes back to  the  Transnet  Trad ing  Desk tha t  

has to  i ssue the  ins t ruc t ion  to  JP Moran to  say  p lease  

p lace th is  ins t rument  in  the  market .    

JP Moran w i l l  never  i ssue an  ins t ruc t ion  on  

Reg iments ,  they  w i l l  never  accept  an  ins t ruc t ion  f rom 

Reg iments .   They have to  accept  an  i ns t ruc t i on  f rom 

Transnet  and the  on ly  peop le  tha t  they wou ld  accept  tha t  10 

ins t ruc t ion  f rom is  the  Trader.   They wou ld  no t  even accept  

an  ins t ruc t ion  f rom me be ing  the  CFO,  because I  am not  

the  de legated counterpa r ty  to  i ssue tha t  ins t ruc t i on .   So 

f rom tha t  perspect ive ,  Mr  Cha i r,  and fo r  a l l  appropr ia te 

t imes the  Traders  wou ld  have to  be  invo lved in  i ssu ing  the  

ins t ruc t ion  to  execute  the  hedge o f  execute  the  ins t rument .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   So are  you say ing  tha t  a l though  

Reg iments  u l t ima te ly  there was no breach because before 

anyth ing could happen they would have to  go back to  

t reasury.  20 

MR SINGH:   Treasury was the only  approved counter  par ty  

to  i t  –  to  engage – to  – they were the approved counter  

par ty  wi th  BADC to basica l l y  i ssue instant .   And th is  

paragraph that  they have quoted Mr Chai r  2 .7.13 as  I  sa id 

re la tes to  business 00:00:24 not  to  Treasury i tse l f .  
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 Because remember th is  inst rument  was being issued 

not  on behal f  o f  Transnet  Fre ight  Chai r.   There is  no  

Transnet  Fre ight  here.   Transnet  Fre ight  is  not  a  legal  

ent i ty.   Transnet  was a legal  ent i ty.   Th is loan was entered 

in to between Transnet  the legal  ent i ty  and China 

Development  Bank.  

 Transnet  Treasury would then be the author ised 

ent i t y  to  enter  in to a cross-currency swop wi th  a counter 

par ty  which was JP Morgan in  th is  case.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Myburgh.  10 

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes thank you Chai rperson.   So I  want  to  

deal  now wi th  another  top ic  and tha t  is  McKinsey Reg iments  

Consul tancy cont racts on conf inement  four  in  four  days.  

 So so far  we have been deal ing wi th  the 1064 

t ransact ion advisors cont ract  and fund ra is ing.   There were 

other  par ts  of  the  fund ra is ing that  you were not  involved in  

which occur red in  the t ime of  Mr Gama the – pr inc ipa l ly  the  

ZAR c lub loan.  

 Can I  take you p lease to  Bundle 5(b)  page 499.   No 

Mr S ingh sor ry I  –  i t  is  your  exhib i t .  20 

MR SINGH:   Oh sor ry.  

ADV MYBURGH:   5(b) .    

MR SINGH:   Th is is  the f i le .    

CHAIRPERSON:   499 ne? 

MR SINGH:   Sorry which page? 
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ADV MYBURGH:   Yes Chai r.  

MR SINGH:   What  page S i r?  

ADV MYBURGH:   499.   I f  I  can d i rect  your  at tent ion  p lease 

– so th is  is  a  par t  o f  one of  the money f low repor ts  at  499.   

Could I  d i rect  your  at tent ion to  paragraph 44/5 and 6.   You 

wi l l  see at  44 –  

“31 March 204 Transnet  decides to  award 

the coal  l ine  cont ract .   31 March 2014 

Transnet  decides to  award the coal  l ine  

contact  to  McKinsey and Regiments on a 10 

conf inement  basis wi thout  compet i t i ve  

b idd ing.  

Then 1 Apr i l  2014 the next  day Transnet  

decides to  award the Kumba I ron Ore  

cont ract  to  McKinsey and Regiments on a  

conf inement  basis wi thout  compet i t i ve  

b idd ing.  

And paragraph 46 on 3 Apr i l  2014 Transnet  

decides to  award the manganese cont ract  

and the NMPP cont ract  to  McKinsey and 20 

Regiments on  conf inement  wi thout  

compet i t ive b idd ing. ”  

 You see that?   So there  are  the four  cont racts in  four  

days.   You see that?  

MR SINGH:   Exact ly.  
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ADV MYBURGH:   So you accept  that  happened? 

MR SINGH:   I  remember – I  recal l  that  these cont racts 

were… 

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   Or  these conf inements  d id occur.  

ADV MYBURGH:   We wi l l  come – we wi l l  come to –  we wi l l  

come to some of  them in a moment .  

MR SINGH:   The basis I  am not  too sure but  I  do conf i rm 

that  they d id occur.  

ADV MYBURGH:   I  just  want  to  take you – and i t  is  10 

someth ing that  we touched on yesterday.   Could I  ask you 

p lease to  go to  page 716.  

MR SINGH:   Of  the same bundle?  

ADV MYBURGH:   Same bundle 716 i t  is  an annexure to  th is  

repor t .   Now what  you see at  716 perhaps you cou ld keep 

your  f inger  there and then turn back to  page 700.  

MR SINGH:   I f  I  put  my f inger  here go back to  page 700.  

ADV MYBURGH:   So you wi l l  see at  700 that  th is  is  a  b id  

submi t ted in  respect  o f  the coal  l ine.  Do you see tha t? 

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  20 

ADV MYBURGH:   But  i f  you go forward to  716 th is  was a  

b id submi t ted by  McKinsey and Regiments Capi ta l  jo in t l y  

and 716 says:  

“We,  that  be ing Regiments Capi ta l  wi l l  sub-

cont ract  consul tants and serv ices  f rom a  



28 MAY 2021 – DAY 405 
 

Page 95 of 239 
 

company advisory Homix and A lber t ine and 

provide them wi th sk i l l s  development  

opportuni ty. ”  

 You see that .  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH:   So when I  ment ioned to you that  –  what  

happened in  respect  o f  these cont racts is  that  Reg iments  

actual ly  used Homix and A lber t ine  as Suppl ier  Deve lopment  

par tners,  do you see that?  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  10 

ADV MYBURGH:   And these are the two main – or  amongst  

the two main money launder ing ent i t ies.   You see tha t? 

MR SINGH:   I  see that  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:   D id you ever  read th is  b id?  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  as I  expla ined previously Mr Chai r  

these –  the conf inements that  Mr Myburgh referred to  would  

be prepared by procurement  based on the facts that  i s  g iven 

by business i f  they bel ieve that  the  conf inement  ru les apply 

in  the business c i rcumstances they would then prepare the 

necessary conf inement  documentat ion that  would  then be 20 

approved and submi t ted to  mysel f  and u l t imate ly  to  be  

approved by Mr Molefe.  

 Once those documents are then approved Mr Chai r  

the conf inement  document  is  approved i t  goes back to  

procurement .  Procurement  then basica l l y  sends out  a  
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request  fo r  proposal  –  a fo rmal  document .   That  formal  

document  would then set  out  the  business requi rements and 

what  i s  requi red f rom the potent ia l  serv ice provider  or  the 

potent ia l  serv ice providers.  

 A cross- funct iona l  team would then s i t  –  oh sorry  

before that  the – the RFP would then set  out  the return date 

and a l l  o f  those requi rements that  needs to  be fu l f i l led.  

 The cross- funct ional  evaluat ion  team wi l l  be 

ident i f ied and they would s i t  and receive these – the b id or  

b ids as the case may be and they wi l l  evaluate that  b id  10 

against  the business requi rements  that  were 00:08:00 and 

the evaluat ion cr i ter ia  that  was set  up.  

 This par t i cu la r  document  Mr Chai r  would go to  the –  

would go to  the procurement  team or  the evaluat ion team 

that  would then evaluate that .  

 I  –  I  would not  necessar i l y  ord inar i l y  receive an RFP 

document .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And when you say not  necessar i ly  what  

do you mean by that?  

MR SINGH:   I  would – I  have never  – wel l  in  th is  par t icu la r  20 

document ,  I  d id  not  receive i t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   A l l  r ight .   Wel l  le t  us go to  just  one other  

example.   Go to page 721 here you wi l l  see that  i t  is  the b id 

for  the NMPP do you see that?  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH:   And i f  you go forward then to  page 732 

you see the same text  in  respect  o f  Regiments 732 th i rd  

bul le t  po int  your  sub-cont ract  consul tants and serv ices f rom 

companies such as a company advisory Homix and A lber t ine 

and provide them wi th sk i l ls  development  opportuni t ies.  You 

see that .  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Could I  ask you p lease to  tu rn back then 

to  page 500 i t  says there at  paragraph 49.  

“McKinsey and Regiments prepared b ids –  10 

you have gone through these coal  l ine  

Kumba,  i ron ore ,  manganese and NMPP 

cont racts wi th  Transnet .   Regiments  

ind icates they wi l l  be us ing A lber t ine and 

Homix as  i ts  Supply  Development  par tners.   

A lber t ine is  Mood ley ’s  company,  Homix is  a  

Gupta launder ing  vehic le  which is  u l t imate ly  

paid more than a  R100 mi l l ion of  the va lue  

Regiments receives under these cont racts. ”    

You see that .  20 

MR SINGH:   That  is  correct  S i r.   Mr Chai r  I  th ink i t  is  a lso 

appropr ia te to  p robably comment  in  terms of  the – the 

evidence of  Mr Fine in  response to  th is  I  th ink he d id a l lude 

to  the fact  that  I  am not  sure i f  they actual l y  d id  – McKinsey 

d id reference X or  actual ly  vet ted A lber t ine and Homix in  
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any way or  form before a l lowing them to be  Supply  

Development  par tners of  McKinsey.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Just  so that  I  understand i t  perhaps you 

must  correct  me i f  I  am wrong.   In  re la t ion to  these four  

cont racts th is  is  not  Regiments  being McKinsey Supply  

Development  par tners.   I t  seems that  they b id jo in t l y  as in  a 

par tnership effect ive ly.  

MR SINGH:   I  do not  th ink so.   I  th ink th is  was where there 

is  –  there is  Supp l ier  Development  par tners to  Regiments.  

ADV MYBURGH:   A l l  r ight .   So you understood the s t ructure 10 

to  be the Regiments was st i l l  –  you can have – I  can have a 

look at  that  i t  was st i l l  McKinsey Suppl ier  Development .  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Par tner.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   And then Regiments i tse l f  had i ts  Suppl ier  

Development  par tners as we have seen.  

MR SINGH:   Or  sub-cont racted a por t ion of  the work  to… 

ADV MYBURGH:   A l l  r ight .  

MR SINGH:   To the i r  –  to  whoever they needed to do i t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH:   Could I  now take you p lease for  the f i rst  

t ime to Exhib i t  BB2.1(a) .    

MR SINGH:   Just  g ive me a second S i r  le t  me just  … 

ADV MYBURGH:   And then could I  ask you p lease to  turn to  

page PSV62.    
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MR SINGH:   There is  lo ts  of  notes and stuff  in  th is  one – i t  

is  not  o ff ic ia l .    

ADV MYBURGH:   So I  do not  know about  that .    

MR SINGH:   I t  seems l ike a work ing … 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Chai rperson can we just  get  a  b i t  

o f  c lar i f i cat ion exact ly  what  th is  re la tes to  so – because we 

s i t t ing wi th  e lect ronic vers ions that  we are t ry ing to  f ind our  

p lace.  

ADV MYBURGH:   I t  re la tes to  these – i t  re la tes to  these 

cont racts.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   What  cont racts?  

ADV MYBURGH:   The ones that  we just  ta lk ing about  now – 

the four  on four  days.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   Th is  is  –  th is  is  Mr Peter  Volmink’s  s tatement .   

I  th ink that  is  what  you are looking at .  

ADV MYBURGH:   So page 62 and I  am going to  ask  you to  

comment  I  th ink on three th ings Mr S ingh.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And page 62 Exhib i t  BB2.1(a)  i f  that  he lps  20 

you.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   He does have those bundles  

maybe i f  my learned f r iend can refer  to  a speci f ic  person 

because I  know we were g iven as an example aff idav i ts  and 

we saved i t  in  tha t  regard.  
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ADV MYBURGH:   i t  is  Mr Volmink  – P i ta  Volmink.   A l l  r ight .   

Now what  Mr Volmink says at  page PSD 62 paragraph 138 – 

are you there Mr S ingh? 

MR SINGH:   138 I  am.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Ja.   So he ta lks about  over  a per iod of  

four  days,  the previous GCE approved four  conf inements 

and he sets them out .   And at  139 he says:  

“A l though each of  the t ransact ions v iewed 

separate ly  fe l l  w i th in  the  DOA for  

conf inement  g iven to  the GCE up to 250 10 

mi l l ion the combined value  of  the 

t ransact ions fe l l  w i th in  the DOA of  the BADC 

at  the t ime up to  but  not  exceeding a  

b i l l ion. ”  

He then states:  

“That  g iven the fact  that  the t ransact ions 

re la ted to  the same or  s imi lar  serv ices and 

were awarded to one f i rm wi th in  a  few days 

of  each other  Transnet  effect i ve ly  awarded 

one package of  p ro jects to  McKinsey va lued 20 

at  16 – sor ry 619 mi l l ion that  ought  to  have 

been taken to the ADC for  conf inement  

purposes.   The appl i cable provis ion of  the  

PPM warned against  the pract ice of  

parcel l ing  under the heading  Prohib i t  
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Pract ices PPM 14.2.3 states the fo l lowing.  

“When the fu l l  scope of  work i s  known at  a  

point  in  t ime requi rements may not  be 

del iberate ly  sp l i t  in to  par ts  or  i tems of  

lesser  va lue in  order  to  keep the t ransact ion  

va lue wi th in  a  par t icu lar  de legat ion of  

author i ty  level  or  to  keep i t  be low the 

threshold of  an AC or  a person wi th  h igher  

delegat ion of  author i ty.   Th is is  considered 

to  be parcel l ing and wi l l  be regarded in  a  10 

ser ious l ight  as i t  amounts  to  non-

compl iance wi th  procedura l  requi rements. ”  

And then he ends by stat ing that  on the face 

of  i t  the sp l i t t ing of  the t ransact ions 

amounted to  a breach of  the ru les against  

parcel l ing. ”  

Give you an opportuni ty  to  comment  on that .  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r  f i rs t l y  in  – in  terms of  our  10.6 

response that  we were requi red to  respond to Mr Volmink ’s  

s tatement  we were not  requi red to  respond to th is  a l legat ion  20 

that  he makes.    

But  in  the in terest  o f  t ime and fo r  us to  move forward  

wi th  th is  Mr Chai r  I  was – am not  complete ly  fami l iar  wi th  

the ru les of  parce l l ing in  te rms of  the PPM as i t  is  basica l l y  

out l ined here in  terms of  paragraph 4 – 14.2.3 of  the PPM.   
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But  what  I  can say Mr Chai r  is  that  and I  am not  an expert  

a t  p rocurement  and as I  sa id before these conf inement  

documents would have served before procurement .  

Procurement  wou ld have probably  been the people  

that  actual l y  prepared the document  and I  would assume 

that  having i t  gone to Mr Molefe  and mysel f  in  terms of  

va lue i t  would have been approved by – at  least  Mr P i ta  I  do 

not  recal l  i f  he  d id or  he d id not  but  i f  we have the  

submission documents we can conf i rm that .    

And Mr Chai r  in  my v iew I  would suggest  that  th is  10 

does not  amount  to  parcel l ing in  tha t  the – i t  may have been 

serv ices that  were provided by one f i rm but  the sk i l ls  set  

that  was requi red  and the  serv ice that  was requi red in  each 

of  these i tems were s ign i f icant ly  and d is t inct l y  d i f fe rent .    

So i f  you take for  example the NMPP cont ract .   The 

NMPP cont ract  Mr Chai r  was a  de-r i sk ing of  a  capi ta l  

pro ject .   So i t  bas ica l l y  says capi ta l  pro ject  is  in  t rouble – i t  

is  l ike a Medupi  and Kusi le  i ts  costs a re going f rom – i t  

s ta r ted at  9  i t  was at  t ime I  th ink 25/26 b i l l ion and we were  

behind schedule and the costs were cont inu ing to  escalate.  20 

So the nature of  that  pro ject  Mr Chai r  was basica l ly  

to  rescue the pro ject  and requi red very d i f fe rent  sk i l l s  

compared to le t  us say a manganese const ruct ion cont ract .  

Now the manganese const ruct ion  cont racts Mr Chair  

as you wi l l  remember when we were g iv ing ev idence 
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regard ing Mr Bester  that  cont ract  –  the manganese pro ject  

le t  us ca l l  i t  the  manganese pro ject  as i t  re la tes to  

McKinsey was advice on a cont ract  that  was st i l l  to  be  

entered in to to  p revent  what  we had seen on the NMPP to 

00:18:52 so again i t  was very d i f ferent  de l iverables .   I t  was 

d is t inct  de l i verables.  

The i ron ore cont ract  Mr Chai r  again was a 20 year  i f  

not  50 year  cont ract  i f  not  an evergreen cont ract  that  we 

had I  th ink wi th  Kumba I ron Ore and 00:19:08 at  the t ime 

wi th  an at tempt  to  renegot ia te tha t  cont ract  and to  be able 10 

to  get  a  h igher  revenue st ream out  of  that  cont ract  for  

00:19:20.    

So in  that  case Mr Chai r  that  was again a very  

d i f ferent  set  o f  sk i l ls  that  was requi red.   You needed to 

understand the i ron ore indust ry.   You needed to understand 

the capi ta l  requ i rements of  a  mine.   You needed to 

understand the capi ta l  requi rements of  Transnet  in  terms of  

the i ron ore l ine speci f i ca l l y.    

So i t  was very d i f ferent  sk i l l s .   In  terms of  the coal  

l ine cont ract  Mr Chai r  that  was a lso a very d is t inct l y  un ique 20 

d i f ferent  de l i verable.    

In  terms of  the  coal  l ine cont ract  we needed to  

unlock the bot t le  necks that  the coal  l ine was exper iencing  

and unlocking the  bot t le  necks meant  that  i f  we were doing 

le t  us say 75 mi l l ion tons of  coal  through the i ron ore l ine  
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per  annum we needed to ident i fy  the bot t le  necks;  de-bot t le  

neck the l ine to  enable us to  move f rom 77 to 70 – f rom 75 

mi l l ion tons to  77 mi l l ion tons per  annum.     

So in  my – in  my v iew Mr Chai r  the  d is t inct  nature of  

each of  the del i verables in  my v iew does not  a l low i t  to  be 

c lassi f ied as parcel l ing a lbe i t  that  i t  was probably i ssued to  

McKinsey as one f i rm.   I f  –  maybe i f  we issued th is  out  on  

open tender Mr Chai r  you – i t  wou ld have went  to  three or  

four  d i f fe rent  f i rms because of  the d i f fe rent  sk i l l  sets that  

are requi red to  actual ly  achieve the  outcomes that  we 10 

requi red.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Now there is  two other  th ings that  I  just… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  –  I  wonder whether  the – the  test  to  

establ ish whether  a set  o f  t ransact ions separate  k ind of  

t ransact ions const i tu te parcel l ing would be whether  there  

would be any problem i f  they were g iven to  d i f fe rent  b idders 

could they be done by d i f ferent  b idders? 

MR SINGH:   Chai r  I  do  not  –  I  do  not  know i f  you are  

f in ished.  

CHAIRPERSON:   As I  understand the parcel l ing.  20 

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you w i l l  te l l  me i f  I  have 

misunderstood you.   I t  is  when one t ransact ion is  sp l i t  up  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   In to d i f fe rent  k ind  of  t ransact ions in  
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quotes in  order  to  c i rcumvent  a cer ta in  image on delegat ion 

of  author i ty.   Okay.   Now that  obviously and maybe would be 

easier  to  see i f  you have one t ransact ion maybe that  has 

d i f ferent  components so i t  could be g iven to  one person in  

one go but  you decided to g ive i t  to  the same ent i ty  as i f  i t  

is  d i f fe rent  t ransact ions but  actual ly  i t  can be d i f ferent  

components of  the same th ing.  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  I  th ink – wel l  I  am not  too sure what  

you are asking.   I  fo l lowed you unt i l… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am just  th ink ing i f  you  10 

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  you – instead of  saying I  am giv ing Mr  

S ingh th is  cont rac t  to  bui ld  a b icyc le.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  Instead o f  saying that  I  say I  am 

giv ing Mr S ingh a cont ract  to  do  a cer ta in  par t  o f  – or  

cer ta in  par t  or  par ts  of  the b icyc le today.   In  a month ’s  t ime 

I  g ive h im a cont ract  to  do another  par t  o r  o ther  par ts  of  a  

b icyc le that  must  be parcel l ing or  would i t  not  be? 

MR SINGH:   I  th ink Mr Chai r  the – maybe le t  us use th is… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is  l ike sp l i t t ing.  

MR SINGH:   I t  i s  l i ke sp l i t t ing but  maybe le t  us use th is  

example.   Let  us  say Transnet  has a requi rement  for  1000 

books okay.   So the buyer  knows he requi res a 1000 books 

but  he then says okay I  p lace an order  for  250 books in  
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week one.   I  put  another  o rder  in  week 2,  another  week in  3  

and another  in  4 to  the same suppl ie r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   But  knowing that  the 1000 books would  need to 

go to  le t  us say the GCE for  approval  but  the 250 books can 

be approved by h imsel f .   So t ru ly  put  that  is  what  parcel l ing  

is  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Basica l l y  sp l i t t ing  … 

MR SINGH:   Spl i t t ing someth ing that  would 00:24:25.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  should be one t ransact ion.  10 

MR SINGH:   That  should be idea – but  a lso i t  should be  

re la t ive ly  ident ica l  to  someth ing tha t  you would get .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   So you cannot  say – le t  us say – say i f  he had 

a requi rement  for  1000 books r ight  but  b lack books and then 

he needed 250 b lue books.   So when he p laces the order  fo r  

250 b lue books not  necessar i l y  that  he is  then sp l i t t ing the 

order  fo r  –  f rom 1000 b lack books.   So there has to  be some 

… 

CHAIRPERSON:   So you say there must  be some ident i ty.  20 

MR SINGH:   In  my understanding  yes Chai r  as i f  I  am not  

just  explo i t ing th is  aspect  o f  the PPM or  the  PPM in 

genera l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   But  I  am saying there has to  be some s imi lar i t y  
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for  you to  l ink.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you say here because one is  coal  

another  one is  i ron ore another  one is  manganese and so on 

you say i t  cannot  be.  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  not  by just  the nature of  coal ,  i ron ore or  

manganese and NMPP.  I  am saying the  del  –  i t  could have 

been NMPP for  a l l  o f  them but  the nature of  the output  was 

s ign i f i cant ly  d i f ferent .    

And the sk i l l s  set  that  was requi red was s ign i f i cant ly  

d i f ferent .   Mr Chai r  le t  us say for  example i f  we sent  the  10 

coal  cont ract  –  o r  the coal  conf inement  to  Mr Molefe.   He 

may have sa id no.   He sa id no send i t  out  to  open market  

r ight .  And then he would have had 50 other  suppl ie rs 

coming and saying they could do th is .    

So the – so again i t  comes back to  the point  o f  is  i t  

sp l i t t ing or  is  i t  not .   I t  is  not  because you could have had 

an independent  procurement  event .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   That  led to  the award to  – for  i ron ore,  

manganese or  NMPP. 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  I  guess Mr Myburgh and counsel  fo r  

Mr S ingh us being lawyers wi l l  th ink  of  sp l i t t ing of  charges.   

Yes cont inue Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Thank you.   So there are real ly  three  

th ings that  Mr Volmink deal  wi th .   One was parcel l ing.   
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Secondly he submi ts that  the requi rements for  conf inement  

were not  met  in  these instances but  th i rd ly  what  he says 

and i t  is  the th ing that  I  want  to  take you to  in  the  in terest  

o f  t ime is  the not ion of  conf ident ia l  conf inements.   Could I  

ask you p lease to  go to  page 63 – PSV 63.   And we deal ing  

st i l l  as you know wi th  these four  cont racts.    

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:   So there has a heading Conf ident ia l  

Conf inements.   I f  I  could fast  forward – le t  me take you to  

147 over  the page.   I t  says there:  10 

“However fo r  reasons of  conf ident ia l i ty  some 

of  the McKinsey conf inements  such as  

manganese,  NMPP and i ron ore t ransact ions 

d id not  fo l low the  normal  rev iew and s ign off  

process.   This meant  that  the conf inements  

were taken to the  GCE for  s ign off  wi th  l i t t le  

or  no input  f rom reviewing bodies. ”  

The next  paragraph.  

“The 2013 PPM states that  “ in  instances 

where a conf inement  i f  conf ident ia l  the GCE 20 

may approve such conf inement  wi thout  the  

conf inement  request  be ing routed  v ia  any 

other  author i ty. ”  This was based on a 

provis ion in  the 2013 DOA f ramework that  

a l lowed for  conf ident ia l  conf inements. ”  
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And then at  49 he says:  

“There are a number of  concerns wi th  the 

manner in  which  conf ident ia l i t y  was invoked 

in  the McKinsey conf inements. ”  

And perhaps before we get  there  le t  me show you one of  

these cont racts.   I f  you go to  Exhib i t  BB2.1(d) .   There is  

th is  – th is  i s  where you f ind them and they were a l l  s igned 

by you and Mr  Molefe – these four  cont racts  or  four  

conf inements rather.    

 Now Mr Volmink… 10 

MR SINGH:   Sorry what  page is  th is .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Wel l  le t  me just  … 

MR SINGH:   Oh.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Ret race my steps.   He says that  the –  

“For  reasons of  conf ident ia l i t y  some of  the  

McKinsey cont racts such as manganese,  

NMPP and i ron ore. ”  

 Let  me take you to  the manganese cont ract  which  

you f ind – or  sor ry I  keep saying cont ract  – conf inement  you 

f ind at  PSV1299.   So there you wi l l  see f rom yoursel f  to  Mr 20 

Molefe manganese exi t  and i f  you  go to  page 1305,  you w i l l  

see  tha t  you compi led  th is .   I s  tha t  the  31s t  o f  March  2014?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    31?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    And your  recommendat ion  –  and a l l  

o f  these conf inements  were  s im i la r,  a l l  four.   Your  

recommendat ion  is :  

“Recommended tha t  the  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  

approve the  Resourc ing  S t ra tegy and 

Remunera t ion  Mode l  fo r  the  Manganese 

execut ion  by  acce lera t ing  and  opt im is ing ,  

thereby suppor t ing  the  in i t ia t i ve  to  m i t iga te  the  

EBITDI  a t  R isk  by  mob i l i s ing  a  team. . . ”  

 And then sub-2 :  10 

“Conf in ing  and award ing  the  serv ice  to  suppor t  

the  in te rna l  team to  McK insey &  Company and  

i t s  BEE consor t ium par tners . . . ”  

 Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now the  issue o f  conf ident ia l i t y  

a r ises  –  i f  you  have a  look a t  page  1302,  there  is ,  f i rs t l y,  a  

mot iva t ion  fo r  conf inement  i t se l f .   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    In  the  tab le .  20 

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then a t  paragraph 25,  i t  says :  

“Add i t iona l l y,  due  to  the  conf ident ia l  na ture  o f  

the  in fo rmat ion ,  the  engagement  cannot  be  

sub jec t  to  an  open tender  p rocess. . . ”  
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 I t  i s  in  te rms w i th  para  15 .1 .4(c)  o f  the  rev i sed  

PMM.  

“ In  ins tances where  a  conf inement  i s  

conf ident ia l ,  the  DC may approve such 

conf inement  w i thout  i t  be ing  rou ted  v ia  any 

o ther  s ignatory. . . ”  

 Do you see?  So tha t  i s  a  re l iance f rom tha t  

p rov is ion  in  the  PMM.  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You see tha t?  10 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So perhaps  you can keep tha t  open 

Mr  S ingh and then we go back to  what  Mr  Vo lm ink in  i s  

a f f idav i t .   I f  I  cou ld  ask  you to  have a  look a t  pa rag raph 

149?  I  th ink  I  have read you the  f i rs t  sentence a t  page 64:  

“There  are  a  number  o f  concerns w i th in  the  

manner  in  wh ich  conf ident ia l i t y  was invoked in  

the  McK insey con f inement .  

(1 )  As a l ready s ta ted ,  mu l t ip le  layers  o f  

rev iew were  bypassed as  a  resu l t  o f  invok ing  20 

the  conf ident ia l i ty  p rov i s ion .  

(2 )  The conf inement  memos conta ined  

very  l i t t le ,  i f  any th ing ,  bu t  exp la ins  why the  

submiss ions were  conf ident ia l .  

(3 )  In  add i t ion  to  invok ing  conf ident ia l i t y  
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as  a  reason no t  to  rou te  the  conf inement  

memos th rough the  normal  s ign  o f  p rocess,  the  

submiss ions are  on ly  invoke conf ident ia l i t y  as  

a  reason fo r  conf in ing  i t se l f . . . ”  

 And then 152:  

(4 )  In  cer ta in  ins tances,  the  conf inement  

memos made no c la ims to  conf ident ia l i t y. . . ”  

 We wi l l  no t  be  dea l i ng  w i th  tha t  now.   But  

e f fec t i ve ly,  what  the  compla in t  i s  by  Mr  Vo lm ink  because  

th is  was a  conf ident ia l  conf inement .   There  is  rea l l y  one 10 

laye r.   I t  was compel led  by  you and sent  to  Mr  Mo le fe  and 

he approved i t .   Now what  was conf ident ia l  abou t  these 

cont rac ts?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  as  we –  as  I  sa id  or ig ina l l y.   I  had 

not  been pr ivy  to  th is  par t  o f  Mr  Vo lm ink ’s  a f f idav i t  in  te rms 

o f  the  10 (6) .   We were  no t  requ i red  to  respond to  these 

paragraphs o f  Mr  Vo lm ink ’s  a f f idav i t .   And Mr  Cha i r,  in  

te rms o f  the  document  tha t  went  th rough my name (? ) .   Th is  

as  we l l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  have not  seen th is  document  a t  a l l .   So 

i f  I  can  have some t ime to  be  ab le  to  –  I  can poss ib le  be  20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cer ta in ly. . .  

MR SINGH :    . . .g ive  some . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.    

MR SINGH :    Ja .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  mean,  you w i l l  unders tand,  o f  

course ,  tha t  you can be quest ioned about  th ings tha t  you  

were  no t  asked to  pu t  an  a f f idav i t  on .  

MR SINGH :    No,  no  I  do .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  pe rhaps,  jus t  so  tha t  –  and I  am 

more  than happy  to  a f fo rd  you the  t ime.   I  mean,  i t  i s  a  

very  impor tan t  i ssue.   Maybe wha t  I  can do is .   I  can  jus t  

show you where  there  a re  o ther  –  or  perhaps we can look 

a t  a l l  four  o f  them.  10 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   These  conf inements .  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then over  lunch o r  whenever,  

you can have an oppor tun i ty  to  look  a t  i t .   I f  you  go to  page  

1283.  

MR SINGH :    1283?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    1283.   Here  you f ind  the  coa l  

cont rac t  o r  coa l  conf inement .   You w i l l  see  tha t  i t  i s  a t  

1289,  compi led  by you,  s igned by  Mr  Mole fe .   And you w i l l  20 

see a t  1287 tha t  there  is  re fe rence to  conf ident ia l  na ture  o f  

in fo rmat ion .   Then i f  you go to  1291.  

MR SINGH :    1291?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    1291 is  the  Kumba(?)  Cont rac t .   I t  i s  

a lso  compi led  by  you,  s igned by  Mr  Mole fe .   And then 
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aga in  the  conf ident ia l i t y  p rov is ion .   You w i l l  see  on each 

occas ion ,  Mr  S ingh,  a f te r  tha t  a  t ab le  and then you get ,  in  

th is  ins tance,  paragraph 22 a t  page 1295,  the  

conf ident ia l i t y  p rov i s ion  i s  re fe r red  to .   A t  1299,  you w i l l  

f ind  the  Manganese cont rac t ,  conf inement  wh ich  I  have 

taken you to .    

 And then the  four th  cont rac t  appears  a t  1307.   Th i s  

i s  the  NNPP.   Aga in ,  a t  1313,  compi led  by  you,  s igned by 

Mr  Mole fe .   And  you w i l l  see  a t  paragraph 27 a t  1311,  

aga in ,  there  is  re fe rence to  the  conf ident ia l  na ture  o f  the 10 

in fo rmat ion .    

MR SINGH :    I  see tha t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then,  perhaps what  I  cou ld  a lso  do  

is  jus t  to  ass is t  you in  th is  regard .   I f  you  have a  look a t  

page 1273.  

MR SINGH :    1273. . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Th i s  i s  a  d i f fe ren t  conf inement ,  

re la t ing  to  cap i ta l  op t im isa t ion .   And I  am not  dea l ing  w i th  

the  McK insey conf inements  bu t  i f  you  have a  l ook  –  i f  you 

tu rn  then to  1280,  you w i l l  see  i t  i s  another  conf inement  20 

and here  i t  goes  th rough the  var ious leve l s  p repared by  

Mohamedy,  recommended by  P i ta ,  recommended  by  you,  

recommended by  Vo lm ink  and then u l t imate ly  approved by  

Mole fe .    The po in t  made by  Mr  Vo lm ink ,  in  shor t ,  i s  that  

once one invokes conf ident ia l  conf inement  then the  GCE 
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i s ,  essent ia l l y,  en t i t led  to  au thor ise  i t  h imse l f ,  wh ich  is  

what  happened in  re la t ion  to  these cont rac ts .  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  you w i l l  have a  look a t  tha t  fo r  

us?   I  mean,  there  is  s imp ly  one quest ion ,  rea l l y.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And tha t  is .   On what  bas i s  were  

these cont rac ts  conf ident ia l?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  so .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   And then i f  I  cou ld  take  you  10 

back to  pa ragraph or  to  page 500 o f  Bund le  5 (b)?    

MR SINGH :    A re  we done w i th  Vo lm ink?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja .    

MR SINGH :    Okay in . . .  [Speaker  unc lear ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  I  jus t  want  to  po in t  ou t  to  you  

paragraphs 51 and 52.   So we know tha t  these four  

cont rac ts  tha t  were  awarded to  McK insey/Reg iments  

resu l ted  in  money launder ing .   There  are  two  o ther  

cont rac ts  tha t  you s igned wh ich  a l so  resu l ted  in  tha t .   The 

one was the  Swop 2  cont rac t  a t  paragraph 51 and then a t  20 

52 ,  i t  says :  

“On the  same day,  24  March,  B r ian  Mole fe  

i ssues h is  recommendat ion  fo r  the  GFB 

cont rac t  to  be  awarded to  McK insey and 

Reg iments  on  a  conf inement  bas i s  w i thout  
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compet i t i ve  b idd ing .  

Th is  i s  anothe r  cont rac t  wh ich  is  l a te r  

d iscovered to  have been used by  Reg iments  to  

launder  Transne t  payments  th rough Gupta  

launder ing  veh ic les . . . ”  

 Do you have any comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.   I  do  no t  have any knowledge o f  

these launder ing  ac t iv i t ies  bu t  I  do  remember  tha t  we d id  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sor ry?  10 

MR SINGH :    I  sa id ,  I  do  no t  have any knowledge  to  the 

issues re la t ing  to  money launder ing  bu t  I  do  remember  the  

Swop 2  cont rac t  and I  do  reca l l ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  someth ing  

re la t ing  to  a  GBF pro jec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  perhaps I  can jus t  show you tha t  

GBF cont rac t .   I f  you  go back to  Vo lm ink ,  BB-2 .1(d) .   And 

can you p lease tu rn  to  page 1315?   

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you say 5 (b)?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    BB-2 .1(d) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A t  page 1315.   That  i s  where  you w i l l  

f ind  the  so-ca l led  GBF conf inement .   Th is  t ime not  –  bu t  on 

a  conf ident ia l  bas is .   I f  you  look a t  1322,  i t  was compi led  

by  Mr  Gama,  recommended by  you and then recommended 

by  Mr  Mole fe .   Do  you see tha t?  



28 MAY 2021 – DAY 405 
 

Page 117 of 239 
 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i t  i s  addressed then  to  the  

BADC.  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  goes th rough var ious leve l s .    

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now,  Mr  S ingh,  tha t  b r ings me to  the  

issue o f  invo i ce  t rack ing .   Cou ld  I  ask  you,  p lease,  to  tu rn  

to  page 698 o f  Bund le  5 (b)?  

MR SINGH :    698? 10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

MR SINGH :    698 ,  né?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And –  so  you know th is  i s  a  second 

Money-F lows repor t  tha t  you were  prov ided w i th?  

MR SINGH :    We on ly  –  so  to  my knowledge  we on ly  

rece ived a  3 .3  Not ice  re la t ing  to  the  McK insey  Money-

F low. . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No -  we l l ,  th is  i s  what  we are  dea l ing  

w i th .   We got  two .   Wel l ,  you have seen th is .    

MR SINGH :    I  w i l l  check and conf i rm i t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  –  we l l ,  le t  me . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    We can ca r ry  on .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  mean,  I  can take  you back to  the  

no t ice  i f  you  wan t ,  bu t  as  I  reca l l  and you must  te l l  me i f  I  

am wrong.   What  happened here  is  the  fo l low ing.   There  
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a re  two repor ts  in  your  exh ib i t .   The one repor t  i s  a t  490.   

Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  i s  the  one we have been  

d iscuss ing  wh ich  se ts  ou t  the  four  conf inements  in  four  

days.   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh,  you have looked th rough  

these.   You have seen tha t  repor t .  Cor rec t?   We have been 

dea l ing  w i th  i t .  10 

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  jus t  fo r  the  record .   

I s  my lea rned f r iend say ing  tha t  we got  th is  pe r  a  3 .3  

Not ice?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  I  jus t  want  to  conf i rm what  the 

prob lem is  here .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Jus t  so  tha t  –  I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  take  

Mr  S ingh to  the  repor ts  and to  jus t  ident i f y  what  the  

concern  is .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    In  the  bund le ,  Mr  S ingh,  and  we can  

come to  i ssue o f  3 .3 .   There  are  two Money-F lows  repor t .   

You have seen tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   So  the  one –  and I  am not  

t ry ing  to  quar re l  w i th  you,  I  jus t  want  to  see i f  there  any  

issues.  

MR SINGH :    Car ry  on ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The one you w i l l  f ind  a t  page – i t  

s ta r ts  a t  490 and i t  i s  headed or  t i t led :   Repor t  on  Vikas  

Sagar ’s  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Reg imen ts .    

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now tha t  i s  the  repor t  tha t  you and I  

have a l ready dea l t  w i th  in  some deta i l  a l ready.   For  

example ,  a t  499,  we have dea l t  w i t h  the  four  conf inements .   

There  are  a  lo t  o f  annexures to  tha t  repor t ,  as  we have 

seen.   I t  has  go t  the  RFP’s ,  e tce tera .    The next  repor t  – 

and th is  f i rs t  repor t  on  Vikas Sagar  i s  da ted  the  14 t h  o f  

November.  

 The next  repor t  i s  conta ined a t  page 694.   I t  i s  the  

second repor t .   Th is  i s  da ted  the  13 t h  o f  November.   I t  i s  a  

repor t  on  the  launder ing  o f  Reg iments ’ p roceeds.   Do you  20 

see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And tha t  repor t  too  conta ins  the  

ser ies  o f  annexures.   I  th ink  i t  goes a l l  the  way to   -  I  th ink  

i t  i s  768.  
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MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Now,  do  I  unders tand you to  

be  say ing  tha t  you never  rece ived a  –  you rece ived the 

f i rs t  repor t?   You  remember  –  and  why I  am – I  may not  be  

en t i re l y  fami l ia r  w i th  the  fac ts .   These came f rom Money-

F lows,  no t  f rom Transnet .  

MR SINGH :    No,  no  I  am fami l ia r  w i th  th is .   You can 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    We can . . . [ in te rvenes ]  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You are  fam i l ia r  w i th  th is?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   So le t  us  go  to  the  second 

repor t .   And I  want  to  d i rec t  your  a t ten t ion  to  paragraphs 

13 and 14 a t  page 698.   A re  you there?  

MR SINGH :    I  am,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   So what  i s  pa in ted  here  in  

th is  Money-F lows  repor t ,  i s  tha t  Reg iments  main ta ined a  

runn ing  reconc i l ia t ion  o f  the  payment  tha t  i t  had rece ived 

f rom Transnet  and the  co r respond ing  payments  tha t  i t  20 

made to  Essa ’s  launder ing  en t i t ies  and  A lbe r t ine .    

 Now,  I  mean you  are  fami l ia r  w i th  what  i s  a l leged  

by  Money-F lows.   We need not  to  go  back.   I  have put  i t  to  

you many t imes tha t  there  was th is  a r rangement  be tween 

Essa and Reg iments  in  te rms o f  Essa wou ld  ge t  50  cents  to  
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the  rand and A lber t ine ,  you might  have heard ,  go t  5% in 

the  fo rm o f  Mr  Mood ley.   A l r igh t?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  we can  go back i n to  the  repor t  

bu t  i f  we need no t ,  we w i l l  no t .   So Reg iments  main ta ined a  

runn ing  reconc i l ia t ion  o f  the  payments  tha t  i t  had rece ived  

f rom Transnet  and the  cor respond ing  payment  tha t  i t  made  

to  Essa ’s  launder ing  en t i t ies  and A lber t ine .   The  

spreadsheet  con ta in ing  th i s  reconc i l ia t ion  was named,  

Adv isory  Invo ice  Track ing .    10 

 The copy o f  the  Adv isory  Invo ice  Track ing  

spreadsheet  genera ted  on 7  December  2015 (Annexure  6 ) .   

I t  shows tha t  these launder ing  payments  inc luded 

payments  on  every  cont rac t  w i th  McK insey and  tha t ,  in  

add i t ion  to  the  payments  in  the  215/2016 f inanc ia l  yea r,  

jus t  under  R 90 mi l l ion  wor th  o f  launder ing  payments  had 

been made in  respect  o f  Reg imen ts /McK insey cont rac t s  in  

the  2014/2015  year.   Now in  o r  on  the  

7 t h  o f  December  2015,  by  tha t  t ime you have moved to  

Eskom.    20 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   So I  jus t  want  to  take  you  

then –  and we a re  go ing  to  come back to  paragraph 14.   

Can I  jus t  take  you to  th is  document  a t  page 7  –  Annexure  

A wh ich  you w i l l  f ind  a t  page 760.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  seven,  s ix  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    Ze ro .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ze ro .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  i s  Annexure  6 .   I t  s ta r ts  a t  760 but  

i s  ra the r  un-usefu l l y,  DCJ,  a  b lank page.   So 761,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So here  is  a  ser ies  o f  sp readsheets .   

You have had an  oppor tun i ty,  p resumable ,  to  look  a t  th is ,  

Mr  S ingh?  

MR SINGH :    No,  I  d id .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   So what  one sees,  and 

perhaps I  am jus t  go ing  to  go  to  th ings tha t  we are  fami l ia r  

w i th .   And then,  we have spoken a  lo t  in  your  ev idence 

about  the  Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank but  i f  you  go and you 

run  down the  second las t  se t  o f  rows,  you w i l l  see  there ,  

there  is  a  da te ,  2  June and you see pro jec t  in  the  m idd le ,  

Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank.   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    What  page are  you on,  s i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  am a t  page 761.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And the  second se t  o f  –  the  second  

las t  se t  o f  rows but  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Another  way to  t rack  i t ,  i s  to  go 

down and the  da te  . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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MR SINGH :    No . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . the  da te  o f  invo i ce  to  2  June 2015  

towards the  bo t tom.  

MR SINGH :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A re  you the re?  

MR SINGH :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Dated invo ice ,  2  June 2015 .   Then 

there  is  an  invo i ce  number  and then there  is  the  pro jec t ,  

Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank.   They rece ived R 189 mi l l ion  tha t  

was pa id .   We have been th rough th is .   You see tha t  147 10 

on the  schedu le  was pa id  to  A lber t ine .   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And I  th ink  I  have g iven –  I  have to ld  

you tha t  what  happened money  a f te r  tha t .   I t  i s  tha t  

R 122 mi l l ion  was laundered to  Sahara  Compute rs .   But  

th is  g ives  you a  sense then,  does  i t  no t?   I  mean,  i f  you  

drop down a  few l ines .   1 ,  2 ,  3 . . .   There  you the  MNPP 

cont rac t  we have been speak ing  about .   Drop down two 

l ines  under  tha t .   You w i l l  see  the  GFB Break through  

cont rac t  wh ich  we have jus t  d iscussed.   Do you see tha t?  20 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  so .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   So i f  we go back then,  

p lease,  to  parag raph 14 a t  page 698?   

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  
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“Reg iments  fo rwarded cop ies  o f  the i r  adv i sory  

invo i ce  t rack ing  sp readsheet  to  Ano j  S ingh 

when he was the  CFO of  Transne t .   (See,  fo r  

example ,  Annexure  7 . )    

Emai l  o f  Wood to  S ingh on 18 May  2015 and to 

h is  successor  as  Transnet ’s  CFO,  Gary  P i ta .   

(See fo r  example ,  Annexure  8) .  

Emai l  o f  Wood to  P i ta  o f  5  August  2015. . . ”  

 And then they say:  

“The CFO’s  o f  Transnet  were  aware  o f  the  10 

payments  be ing  made by  Reg iments  to  Essa ’s  

launder ing  ent i t ies . . . ”  

 Now can we have a  look then a t  th is  Annexure  7  

wh ich  you w i l l  f ind  a t  765?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  a t  766.   We s tar t  a t  the  bo t tom 

f rom Yvonne McCorney(?)  to  Er ic  Wood on the  

18 t h  o f  May 2015.    

“Good day,  Mr  Wood.   A t tached is  the  updated 

schedu le . . . ”  20 

 And then shor t l y  a f te r  tha t ,  I  th ink  two minutes  

la te r,  Mr  Wood fo rwarded i t  to  you.   Sub jec t :   Re Rev ised 

Outs tand ing  Revenue.   A t tachment  Invo ice  Track ing  

2015/2016:  

“H i ,  Ano j .   I  have a t tached a  l i s t  o f  OS. . . ”  
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 I  assume tha t  i s  ou ts tand ing .   Do you conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  so ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    “ . . . invo ices  as  requested. . . ”  Do you  

see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now we have then prov ided you w i th  

the  a t tachment  and tha t  a t tachment  and in  fac t  th i s  emai l  

appears  in  Bund le  5(c )  a t  page 1932.   And your  a t tachment  

i s  a t  1924.  

CHAIRPERSON :    P lease jus t  repeat  the  bund le ,  10 

Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  goes to  the  B  Bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    5 (b)?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    F ive  –  no ,  sor ry,  5 (c) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    5 (c ) ,  yes ,  okay.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Jus t  repeat  the  page.   One,  

n ine ,  what?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Page 1923.    

MR SINGH :    I  am there ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   So the  a t tachment  –  we 20 

have prov ided you w i th  a  number  o f  schedu les  compr is ing  

tha t  a t tachment .   They run  f rom 1924 th rough to  1935.   Do 

you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now i f  you go to  1924,  what  i s  
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wr i t ten  a t  the  top  by  one o f  the  invest iga tors  i s  tha t :   

“When you open th is  document ,  th is  i s  the  f i r s t  

v iew. . . ”  

 And what  you see he re  i s  I  th ink  impor tan t ly  in  the  

th i rd  co lumn,  the  invo ice  da te .   Then we have the  pro jec t  

and you have the  amount .   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    I  see .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i t  i s  ind ica ted  whether  i t  i s  been  

pa id  o r  ou ts tand ing .   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  10 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Sor ry,  Cha i rperson.   We cannot  

hear  the  c l ien t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  we can,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Sor ry,  may I  jus t  ask  fo r  

some adv ice?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   I  am sor ry  fo r  the  

in te r rup t ion  bu t  I  had asked because th is  i s  qu i te  impor tan t  

fo r  us  a l l  to  be  prov ided w i th  co lour  cop ies ,  I  unders tand  20 

tha t  you do not  have co lour  cop ies ,  DCJ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  on  page  1924 and 1925 I  have  

co loured por t ions  o f  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  see  you have got ,  a re  yours  co lour  

cop ies?  
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MR SINGH:    Ja  we l l ,  one co lumn is  co lou red,  so  i t  i s  a  

co lour  copy,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  I  th ink  I  am . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  in  o ther  words s i r,  un l i ke  the  one  

where  we were  jus t  now,  wh ich  was co loured a l l  ove r,  th is  

one is  jus t  ce r ta in  b locks .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  may be co r rec t .   I  th ink  I  m ight  

be  a t  a  d isadvantage,  because I  do  no t  have co lou r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  what  has happened to  m ine,  i t  10 

has been Photos ta t ted  and the  co lour  obscures i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  I  am a t  a  b i t  o f  a  d isadvantage,  

bu t  DCJ,  pe rhaps jus t  someth ing ,  i f  I  was g i ven an 

oppor tun i ty  I  can t ry  and so r t  ou t  a t  lunch t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  le t  us  do  tha t ,  ja ,  dea l  w i th  i t  a f te r  

lunch,  i f  you  wou ld  l i ke .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  no ,  I  w i l l  go  th rough i t  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  v iew.   Mr  S ingh,  20 

are  you w i th  me?  

MR SINGH:    I  am wi th  you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then i f  you  go to  the  second  v iew i t  

says  unh ide  co lumns D to  J .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on.   I  can  see the  f i r s t  v iew,  bu t  I  
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do  no t  see where  the  second v iew is .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  thought  i t  wou ld  be  the  next  page,  bu t  

i t  i s  no t  wr i t ten  second v iew on the  next  page.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  i t  w i l l ,  these th ings fo l low.   I t  is  

numbered number  3  on ly  because,  as  I  unders tand f rom the  

invest iga to r  what  had in  m ind is  tha t  the  e-mai l  wou ld  be  1 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   Okay,  so  the  second v iew is  a t  

page 1925.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  i s  co r rec t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  what  you then do is  one c l i cks  on  

th is  Exce l  sp readsheet  to  unh ide  co lumns J  to  G and then 

what  happens is  you w i l l  see  f rom the  amount  co lumn,  

wh ich  one found  a t  the  f i rs t  v iew,  th is  then un locks the  

one,  two,  th ree ,  four,  f i ve ,  the  s ix th  co lumn on the  r igh t  

hand s ide .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So i t  un locks  co lumns headed Jev i ta  

Hommex,  e t  ce tera ,  A lber t ine .   Do you see tha t?  20 

MR SINGH:    I  see  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  what  th is  second v iew shows you 

fo r  example  is  i f  you  go,  i f  you  t rack  down to  15  March,  the  

number  o f  invo i ces da ted 15 March,  we have got  coa l ,  

NMPP which  we have dea l t  w i th  and in  fac t  even one o f  the 
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swop cont rac t s  we have dea l t  w i th ,  you w i l l  see  the  amount  

tha t  i s  due and then you w i l l  see  Jev i ta  o r  Hommex and a l l  

o f  those ins tances they are ,  i t  re f lec ts  tha t  they are  ge t t ing  

ha l f  o f  the  fees.   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Le t  us  take  coa l  a t  1  337 599,  tha t  

66  800 is  50% of  tha t  and then you w i l l  see  tha t  A lber t ine  

is  ge t t ing  5%.   Do you see tha t?   So 66 880 is  5% o f                  

1  337 599.   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    I  see  tha t .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And so  i t  goes on and then the  

same,  tha t  i s  March,  the  same what  happened in  Apr i l .   

Then i f  one goes to  the  next  v iew where  you unh ide  cer ta in  

rows,  a l l  tha t  th is  rea l l y  does is  then enab les  one  to  see  

what  invo ices have been pa id .   Do you see tha t?   So in  

o ther  words the  v iew before  sa id  bank date ,  tha t  was Absa,  

there  was no in fo rmat ion  in  the  las t  co lumn,  bu t  i f  you  go 

to  page 1926 you w i l l  now see the  r igh t  hand co lumn is  

popu la ted .   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ref lec t ing  the  bank date .    

MR SINGH:    I  see  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Do you see  tha t ,  Mr  S ingh?  Are  you  

there?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  I  am l i s ten ing .  



28 MAY 2021 – DAY 405 
 

Page 130 of 239 
 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So in  o ther  words the  d i f fe rence  

between 1925 and 1926 is  tha t  the  bank date ,  tha t  fa r  r igh t  

hand co lumn is  now popu la ted .  

MR SINGH:    I  see  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  and  then there  is  a  who le  lo t  

o f  o ther  in fo rmat ion  tha t  the  inves t iga tor  has marked 5 ,  6 ,  

7 ,  8 ,  9 ,  10 ,  11 ,  12  and 13,  none  o f  wh ich  is  o f  par t i cu la r  

moment  fo r  p resent  purposes.   The th ree  impor tan t  v iews 

then are  the  f i rs t ,  second and th i rd  v iew,  pages 1925,  

sor ry,  1924,  1925  and 1926.   Now to  beg in ,  can I  ask  you,  10 

d id  you rece ive  th is  e -mai l  f rom Mr  Wood on the  18 t h  o f  

May?  

MR SINGH:    I  do  no t  reca l l  the  e-mai l ,  bu t  I  guess i f  i t  i s  

a t  my Transnet  e -mai l  add ress I  can say I  have rece ived i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And d id  you have occas ion  then to  

open the  e-mai l ,  can you remember  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    I  do  no t  reca l l  whether  I  opened th i s  invo i ce  

or  no t ,  I  mean th is  e -mai l  o r  no t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  i t  says  a t  1923:  

“Hi ,  Anoj .   I  have at tached the l ist  of  20 

outstanding invoices,  as requested.”  

Had you requested Mr  Wood to  p rov ide  you w i th  a  l i s t  o f  

ou ts tand ing  invo i ces?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  th is ,  we wou ld  need to  

exp la in  a  b i t  o f  background and in  o rder  fo r  us  to  do  tha t  
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Mr  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  ask  tha t  we go back to  the  prev ious f i le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Be fore  you do tha t ,  w i l l  the  answer  

u l t imate ly  be  yes,  you requested or  no ,  you d id  no t  

request ,  o r  you want  to  check someth ing  be fore  you  say?  

MR SINGH:    Wel l  Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  reca l l  as  I  sa id  th is  e -

mai l  o r  the  c i rcumstances beh ind  th is .   I  can  on ly,  I  can 

on ly  th ink  tha t  th is  wou ld  have been an invo i ce  or  these  

were  ou ts tand ing  invo i ces,  as  you  wou ld  see f rom the ,  as  

Mr  Wood 's  message says ou ts tand ing  invo ices,  and i f  you  

then go to  the  1924 you w i l l  see  i t  i s  a  l i s t  o f  ou ts tand ing  10 

invo i ces and you  w i l l  see  tha t  the re ,  th is  mai l  has  come to  

me in  May and i t  ac tua l l y  has December,  January,  March  

invo i ces re f lec ted  thereon.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    So  these are  long outs tand ing  invo ices.   So  

my on ly  v iew in  t e rms o f  why th is  wou ld  have come to  me 

was tha t  these were  long outs tand ing  invo ices tha t  wou ld  

need to  have been in  some way,  shape or  fo rm se t t led  or  

we wou ld  have needed to  inves t iga te  why these  th ings  

have been long outs tand ing .  20 

Now Mr  Cha i r,  why I  wanted to  go  to  the  o the r  e -

mai l ,  th is  e -mai l  i s  ac tua l l y  the  e-mai l  to  Mr  Peter  in  

August ,  bu t  i t  ac tua l l y  g i ves  more  c la r i t y  as  to  why th is  

invo i ce  ac tua l l y,  o r  these invo ices came to  use.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  you may go there .  
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MR SINGH:    Thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  see  i t  i s  a lmost  exact ly  

13 :00 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I s  th is  no t  perhaps an oppor tune  

t ime to  break?  I  w i l l  then see i f  I  can  get  myse l f  some 

co loured cop ies  i n  the  in te r im.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   So you w i l l  con t inue w i th  

tha t  a f te r  lunch.  

MR SINGH:    No prob lem.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    We wi l l  take  the  lunch break,  we w i l l  

resume a t  14 :00 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.  

MR SINGH:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay le t  us cont inue.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Thank you.    Good af te rnoon Mr S ingh.  

MR SINGH:   A f te rnoon S i r.  20 

ADV MYBURGH:   You before lunch were going to  deal  wi th  

th is  invoice t racking.   P lease go ahead.  

MR SINGH:   Thank you Mr Chai r.   Mr Chai r  I  was t ry ing to  

expla in the context  behind the emai l  that  I  had received 

f rom Mr Wood which is  re f lected at  1923 and I  requested 
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that  we go to  – I  th ink i t  is  –  Mr  Chai r  Bundle  5(b)  page 

769.    

CHAIRPERSON:   5(b)  what  is  the page number?  

MR SINGH:   769.  

CHAIRPERSON:   769.   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  th is  would provide the context  behind  

why Mr P i ta  and mysel f  would have received these – th is  

spreadsheet .    

 You can see the at tachment  is  Adv isory Outstanding  

Invoices August  whereas mine I  th ink refers to  May and the  10 

text  o f  the at tachment  would be as  recorded.  

“Hi  Gary,  p lease could you assis t  wi th  the  

at tached l is t  o f  outstanding invoices in  

par t icu lar  May and June 2015.   Invoices are 

overdue.   Should  you requi re the under ly ing 

invoices and support ing memos as  del ivered 

to  Transnet  at  the t ime of  the invoic ing.   

P lease le t  me know.   Your assis tance in  th is  

regard wi l l  be h igh ly appreciated .   Thank 

you Er ic  Wood.”  20 

 So Mr Chai r  that  would be the context  wi th in  which  

these – th is  document  would have been received and as you 

can see Mr Chai r  i f  we now go back to  my document  which 

is  in  5 (c) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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MR SINGH:   Basica l l y  you would see that  again i t  re fe rs to  

outstanding invoices.   So the context  Mr Chai r  i s  that  Mr 

Wood would have a d iscussion wi th  me regard ing Regiments 

outstanding invoices – he would have then sent  th is  emai l  

to  me which I  would have received.   I  would have then open 

the invoice – the emai l  and as you would have then seen Mr 

Chai r  he would have taken you to  page 1924 and there is  

the l is t  o f  outstanding invoices.  

 As you would see in  the second column December  

2014 invoices – two invoices outstanding.  10 

 January 2015 is  another  invoice and then you have 

f ive 20 – March 2015 invoices.   And there is  a  whole  host  o f  

Apr i l  and then you wi l l  see February,  January and February  

invoices as wel l  in  the last  b lock.  

 So Mr Chai r  th is  is  the context  wi th in  which the 

emai l  would have been received by  mysel f  and I  wou ld have 

then deal t  wi th  i t  accord ingly Mr Chai r.  

 The other  po int  to  make Mr Chai r  is  that  i f  you have 

reference to page 1924 Mr Chai r  you would – you would 

understand that  an emai l  that  you would receive would look 20 

l ike 1923.   So that  is  what  you would see when you open 

the emai l .  

 Then there  would  have been an at tachment  that  was 

at tached to the emai l  which is  then 1924 and Mr Chai r  I  

th ink the invest igator  here is  t ry ing  to  basica l l y  say which is  



28 MAY 2021 – DAY 405 
 

Page 135 of 239 
 

what  I  would have seen when I  opened the at tachment  is  

th is  l is t  o f  outstanding invoices.   And that  is  a l l  I  saw Mr 

Chai r.  

 I  had no knowledge or  c lue that  the spreadsheet  

conta ined a l l  o f  th is  other  documents that  are ref lec ted f rom 

page 1925 r ight  through to I  th ink 1935 i f  I  am not  mistaken 

Mr Chai r.    

 These documents  that  are at tached to the Reference 

Bundle f rom 1925 to 1935 would requi re that  you actual ly  

physica l l y  do someth ing to  the spreadsheet  to  able to  10 

access these – le t  us ca l l  i t  h idden data.  

 And you wi l l  see Mr Chai r  as the  invest igator  has 

wr i t ten on 1924 he sa id three unhide.   So i f  you – you 

per fo rmed a funct ion on Excel  to  unhide co lumns G to J 

then you would see these co lumns.   I f  you then had to 

unhide the rows – the rows on 1926 i t  would then ref lect  

those rows.   

 1927 i f  you per fo rmed an unhide of  those tabs you 

wi l l  then see the March tab,  you wi l l  then see the Apr i l  tab,  

the May tab and so on.   But  th is  requi red physica l  – f i rs t l y  20 

you needed to have knowledge tha t  these th ings were there.   

Secondly you then needed to ac tual l y  go and physica l l y  

unhide these th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes thank you.  

MR SINGH:   So f i rs t l y  Mr Chai r  I  can conf i rm that  I  had no 
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knowledge of  the  fact  that  these – that  th is  spreadsheet  

conta ined th is  in format ion.  

 Secondly I  d id  not  per form any unhid ing of  any of  

these documents.   Mr Chai r  the f i rs t  t ime that  I  can honest ly  

te l l  you that  I  became aware  of  the fact  that  th is  

spreadsheet  conta ined these h idden – th is  h idden 

in format ion was actual ly  when we were here and we were 

presented wi th  th is  spreadsheet .  

 And we said f rom what  we can see i t  on ly  has one 

sheet  and then we engaged wi th  the invest igator  who then 10 

expla ined to  us that  i f  you do th is  and do th is  and do th is  i t  

then ref lects a l l  o f  the stuff .  

 So Mr Chai r  f rom -  f rom my perspect ive I  had no 

knowledge of  any of  these spreadsheets.   I  d id  not  per fo rm 

any unhide funct ions and to the ex tent  that  the commission  

has access to  my emai ls  whatever  – whatever  tests you can 

per fo rm to unto – to  ident i fy  i f  I  d id  in  fact  unhide any of  

these th ings or  have access to  th is  in format ion you are  

more than welcome to do i t  Mr Chai r.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Wel l  Mr S ingh you were – you work wi th  20 

spreadsheets  a l l  the  t ime so when you ta lk  about  unhid ing  i t  

is  rea l l y  a  c l i ck ing on a tab r ight?  

MR SINGH:   I  d id… 

ADV MYBURGH:   I t  is  not  some sor t  o f  myster ious computer  

program i t  is  s imp ly c l i ck ing on a tab.  
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MR SINGH:   Wel l  f i rs t ly  you need to  know that  i t  00:11:54 

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes but  then that  is  a l l  i t  is .  

MR SINGH:   Ja but  you need to know i t  there then you c l i ck 

on i t  and then i t  comes out  but  f rom my perspect ive  I  would  

not  be looking fo r  that .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Maybe we wi l l  –  maybe we wi l l  need to 

demonst rate i t  fo r  the assis tance of  the Chai rman perhaps 

on another  occasion but  you accept  i t  just  has to  be 

c l i cked? 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Chai rperson maybe my learned 10 

f r iend must  just  g ive my c l ient  an  opportuni ty  to  f in ish h is  

answer before he in ter rupts h im wi th  another  quest ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  d id  not  hear  he in te rrupted h im.  I  

thought  he sa id everyth ing he wanted to  say.   Mr S ingh was 

there anyth ing e lse you wanted to  say? 

MR SINGH:   No S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No okay.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Oh a l l  r ight  thank you.   And then I  wanted 

to  ask – I  mean what  do you – I  mean what  i s  very st range 

here is  Mr Wood obviously t rusted you wi th  th is  in format ion.  20 

MR SINGH:   Wel l  I  do not  know i f  Mr Wood actual l y  knew 

that  th is  in fo rmat ion was there.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Sorry.  

MR SINGH:   I  would not  know i f  Mr Wood knew th is  

in format ion was there or  not .  
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ADV MYBURGH:   I t  is  one th ing  fo r  you to  say you d id not  

know i t  i s  there i t  would be qui te  another  th ing to  say that  

Mr Wood – these are h is  spreadsheets that  he is  sending to  

you would not  know i t  is  there.  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  hence I  am saying I  cannot  speak for  Mr 

Wood.  

ADV MYBURGH:   A l l  r ight .   So just  that  I  understand th is  

you – the emai l  f rom Mr Wood to you says that  you 

requested the l is t  o f  outstanding invoices.  

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH:   Is  that  r ight?  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  accord ing to  the emai l .    

ADV MYBURGH:   And would that  be normal .   I  mean I  have 

seen – I  mean you have seen fo r  example in  the  Eskom 

judgment  you came in  for  a  lo t  o f  cr i t i c ism in  deal ing wi th  

serv ice providers  in  respect  o f  the payment  of  invoices.   

You remember that .  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  i t  is  not  –  in  my v iew i t  is  not  

ext raord inary I  th ink as I  sa id… 

ADV MYBURGH:   I  am sorry I  cannot  hear  you Mr S ingh.  20 

MR SINGH:   I  am saying i t  is  not  ext raord inary fo r  a  CFO to 

deal  wi th  outstanding invoices.   As  you would have seen Mr  

Bester  and Mr Sumpton a lso were compla in ing  about  

outstanding invoices and wanted to  have a meet ing.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Except  you say you never  went  to  any 
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such meet ing.   I t  had noth ing to  do  wi th  them.  

MR SINGH:   Exact ly.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Ja I  do not  know how that  he lps you.    

MR SINGH:   No I  am saying but  i t  is  not  unusual  on the i r  

vers ion to  be deal ing wi th  the CFO for  outstanding invoices.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes.   Wel l  just  in  re la t ion to  that  that  is  

very unusual  because there was then a meet ing at  a  

restaurant  and Mr  Essa was there.  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  we going to  t raverse th is  again .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Maybe you should not  go down that  road.   10 

A l l  r ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  you – you brought  i t  back Mr S ingh.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Okay so you –  I  have asked you about  

how you would unhide these co lumns and I  have asked you 

about  whether  you – why i t  is  that  Mr Wood would t rust  you 

wi th  the  in format ion.   I s  i t  –  is  i t  your  vers ion that  you d id 

not  know anyth ing about  these payments to  Chiv i ta ,  Homix  

and A lber t ine? 

MR SINGH:   No S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Not  a t  a l l .  20 

MR SINGH:   No S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:   I  mean you d id not  even know that  they 

were suppl ier  development  par tners .  

MR SINGH:   No S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Let  us just  have a look at  th is  and do you 
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accept  as wel l  when one works wi th  a spreadsheet  that  what  

one does i f  you h i t  a  tab or  unhide co lumns real l y  what  i t  

does on your  computer  is  i t  enables i t  to  become b igger  

because not  everyth ing f i ts  the f i rs t  t ime around on the f i rs t  

v iew.   Cor rect .  

MR SINGH:   I  do not  understand.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Wel l  Mr S ingh you work – you are 

presumably have very sophist i cated computer  sk i l l s .  

MR SINGH:   I  would say I  am average.  

ADV MYBURGH:   And I  would assume that  you have got  10 

good Excel  computer  sk i l l s .  

MR SINGH:   I  would say average.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes but  you – as the  Group Chief  

Financia l  Off i cer  o f  Transnet  and Eskom th is  i s  your  bread 

and but te r.   Excel  spreadsheets cor rect .  

MR SINGH:   Not  rea l l y  S i r.   I  would  not… 

ADV MYBURGH:   Mr S ingh.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You do not  want  to  associate wi th  –  

associate yoursel f  wi th  average Mr  S ingh.   Do you want  to  

do that?  20 

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chai r  i f  you  – i f  you are the  Group 

CFO of  Transnet  Mr Chai r  i t  does mean to say that  you 

actual ly  work wi th  Excel  spreadsheets every day.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja wel l  –   

MR SINGH:   Exce l  spreadsheets are prepared fo r  you.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   That  was on a l ighter  note.  

MR SINGH:   No but  I  was just  po int ing to  Mr… 

ADV MYBURGH:   But  I  am being – honest ly  I  mean is  th is  

not  your  bread and but ter?  

MR SINGH:   No.    

ADV MYBURGH:   Excel  spreadsheets?  

MR SINGH:   No S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Wel l  how – a l l  r ight .   Wel l  we wi l l  come to 

a perhaps a demonst rat ion in  t ime but  are you not  

suggest ing that  you unfami l ia r  wi th  the work ing o f  Excel  10 

spreadsheets?  

MR SINGH:   I  am fami l ia r  wi th  the work ing of  Excel  

spreadsheets – as I  sa id to  you I  am – i f  you are to  grade 

me I  would te l l  me – I  would te l l  that  mysel f  –  my sel f -

assessment  on Excel  would be re la  – would be average.  

ADV MYBURGH:   So you see Mr S ingh fo r  example I  th ink  

everyone has learnt  th is  lesson in  my – what  has happened 

to me is  an at torney sa id I  have sent  you the in fo rmat ion –

you the Excel  spreadsheet  – you phone the at to rney and 

say i t  i s  not  here  and he says you id io t  you press that  tab  20 

and there is  the next  spreadsheet .   I  mean you have – we 

have a l l  learnt  those lessons hey? 

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Correct .  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH:   Yes.   Can we jus t  have a look at  some of  

the – the other  s tuff  that  was sent  to  you.   Go to 1927.    

MR SINGH:   1927.  

ADV MYBURGH:   1927.   Here you see that  on the face of  i t  

i t  is  h is to r ica l  in format ion going back to  March 2014,  do you 

see that  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH:   I  mean there for  example you wi l l  see the 

second payment  the 1064 t ransact ion advisor.  In  tha t  month 

the b i l l  was R6 mi l l ion.   Chiv i ta  got  ha l f  and A lber t ine got  10 

5%.  You see that .  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And then i f  you go to  1928 again i t  is  

another  representat ion of  that .   You see the 1064 advisory  

serv ices in  March.  

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:   So th is  other  in fo rmat ion other  than for  

the f i rs t  screen shot  o f  screen v iew have you any 

explanat ion why Mr Wood would send i t  to  you? 

MR SINGH:   I  have no idea Mr Chai r.  20 

ADV MYBURGH:   And would you have any idea why he 

would send the  in fo rmat ion to  P i ta  the person who 

succeeded you? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  as I  have sa id I  th ink for  the purposes 

as I  have read out  f rom the emai l .  
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ADV MYBURGH:   Then i f  we can go back to  – d id you have 

an opportuni ty  to  look at  those McKinsey conf inement  

cont racts over  lunch? 

MR SINGH:   I  d id  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Because there  is  just  the one quest ion  

and that  is  the issue of  conf ident ia l i ty.    

MR SINGH:   Yes Mr Chai r.   I  th ink f rom the documents as  

we have gone through them the reasons for  the  

conf ident ia l i t y  is  not  ment ioned and is  not  –  is  not  

ment ioned and I  would need some t ime to go th rough my 10 

records to  ident i fy  the reasons for  those – the need for  the 

conf ident ia l i ty.   A lso Mr Chai r  these documents that  we are 

– was p laced before us today was not  par t  o f  the 10  – as we 

– as I  ment ioned i t  was not  par t  o f  the 10.6 Not ice in  o rder  

for  us to  respond to Mr Volmink.   The par t i cu lar  documents 

re la t ing to  NMPP swat  manganese and coal  and i ron ore 

were actual l y  requested f rom the commission when we 

engage wi th  the  commission re la t ing to  the 10.6 Not ices  

and these par t i cu lar  documents were not  p rovided to  us.   So 

Mr Chai r  I  would  respect fu l ly  request  that  we be afforded 20 

some t ime to be able to  deal  wi th  these documents and i t  

would seem l i ke we are coming back for  another  day.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  do not  know about  that  but… 

MR SINGH:   But  e i ther  way Mr Chai r  we wi l l  deal  wi th  them. 

ADV MYBURGH:   We wi l l  –  we are  happy to  afford you that  
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t ime just  so that  you know of  course you were sent  the 

whole of  Mr Volm inks’s  aff idavi t  and a l l  the annexures and 

these issues are  in  the summons.   But  I  am more than 

happy to  provide you wi th  the t ime.   I t  is  a  d i f f icu l t  i ssue.  

A ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Chai rperson – oh sor ry.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   My learned f r iend can f in ish.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  le t  –  le t  h im f in ish.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   I  just  want  to  p lace on record that  

what  was sent  to  my c l ient  is  the  aff idavi t  and one s ing le 10 

annexure.   The fact  o f  the mat te r  was as my c l ient  has 

a l ready stated there was a request  more than once to be 

provided wi th  those documents and i t  was p laced on record 

to  the best  o f  my recol lect ion my at torney can cor rect  me 

that  we need those documents – these whatever  i t  is  ca l led  

CHAIRPERSON:   Spreadsheets.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   No not  –  no.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Not  spreadsheets .  

MR SINGH:   The memos – the memos.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh the memos.  20 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   The memos in  o rder  to  proper ly  

deal  wi th  them and we were not  g iven i t .   The f i rs t  t ime that  

i t  seems on the face of  i t  those documents were fo rwarded 

in  now on the 25 t h  when we were sent  an updated bundle.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Wel l  Mr Chai rman I  have made my 
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posi t ion c lear.   I  am happy to  affo rd… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH:   As you saw I  was happy to  have – affo rd  

Mr S ingh the lunch hour  i f  he needs more t ime than that  I  

have no d i f f icu l ty  and i t  is  rea l l y  i t  is  one point  quest ion and 

he has a l l  the documents.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH:   I f  there is  anyth ing e lse need f rom us te l l  

us and then we can deal  wi th  i t .  

MR SINGH:   Thank you S i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH:   And insofar  as we may not  re turn i t  seems 

that  that  is  the th ing that  could easi l y  be deal t  wi th  on  

aff idavi t  because i t  is  –  i t  is  just  a  s imple answer.  

MR SINGH:   Thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH:   You might  a lso want  to  have a look at  Mr 

Molefe ’s  ev idence where I  th ink wi th  respect  he st ruggled to  

expla in the issue of  conf ident ia l i ty.   

MR SINGH:   Wi l l  do thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH:   A l l  r ight  le t  us turn then to  the 

procurement  of  95 locomot ives.   Just  inc identa l ly,  before we 20 

get  o ff  th is .   So what  d id  you do when you received th is  

in format ion f rom Mr Wood – d id you then go and chase up 

the payments and make sure they were a l l  pa id? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  as a mat te r  o f  course I  wou ld have 

referred to  the spreadsheet  – the  – as we cal l  i t  the f i rs t  
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v iew.   I  would have had a look at  which invoices which were 

outstanding and I  would have then sent  i t  to  the respect ive  

ind iv iduals I  th ink Mr Mohamody or  Mr Mohommed or  

whoever was actual ly  in  charge then.  

ADV MYBURGH:   And would you then have made sure that  

they were paid?  

MR SINGH:   I  then would  have then fo l lowed them up or  

they would have come back and said th is  i s  the out  –  th is  i s  

the reason i t  is  outstanding – th is  is  what  we are do ing wi th  

i t  and then they would have had to resolve whatever  they 10 

were – what  happened.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes but  would you have ensured that  the 

invoices were paid? 

MR SINGH:   I  would have not  been the person that  actual l y  

physica l l y  went  a round running around and p ick ing them up.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   But  eventual l y  they would have got  there.  

ADV MYBURGH:   I  see.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  guess – I  guess the – Mr Myburgh’s 

quest ion could be  put  th is  way.   They must  have sent  them 20 

to – Mr Wood must  have sent  them to you to  take necessary 

steps to  ensure that  payment  was made.  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r  these re late to  long outs tanding  

invoices.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes Ja I  am ta lk ing about  that .  
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MR SINGH:   Yes – so these invoices would have been 

del i vered to  Transnet  wi th  the requi red support ing 

documents to  the  appropr ia te  person who they were  deal ing  

wi th .  

MR SINGH:   Yes but  they were not  be ing paid.  

MR SINGH:   They were not  be ing paid.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja that  i s  the poin t .  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  –  i t  must  have… 

MR SINGH:   So he would have then – he would have then 10 

requested me –  my in tervent ion to  f ind  out  what  i s  

happening.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   Or  what  i s  the issue.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   And then do we then resolve the issues and 

then they would have been.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Obviously,  f rom his  point  o f  v iew he d id  

not  know of  any reason why payment  should not  be made.  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect  S i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   So he probably wanted somebody to take  

steps to  t ry  and make sure payment  was made.  

MR SINGH:   Indeed S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l l  r ight .   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Thank you.   Just  on that  –  just  one 
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re la ted th ing.   When d id you f i rs t  come to learn  that  Mr  

Essa was involved wi th  Tr i l l ian –  was an owner of  Tr i l l ian?  

MR SINGH:   I  th ink i t  was when McKinsey in fo rmed us that  

they were not  go ing to  par tner  wi th  Tr i l l ian anymore and 

that  would have been March 2016.  

ADV MYBURGH:   A t  the t ime at  wh ich you were at  Eskom.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   March 2016.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   A l l  r ight .   Can we turn to  the procurement  10 

of  le t  us star t  wi th  the 95 locomot ives?  And le t  me just  

paraphrase some facts so that  I  can get  to  the point  where I  

want  to  be.   Would you conf i rm that  in  September  of  2012 

CSR was appointed as the prefer red b idder  fo r  the supply of  

the 95 locomot ives at  a  cost  o f  some R2.5 b i l l ion.  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  the date I  am not  too sure but  I  do 

know that  CSR was appointed as the OEM to supply 95  

locomot ives.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Can we go p lease to  the POI  bund le.   

MR SINGH:   Sorry S i r.  20 

ADV MYBURGH:   Transnet  Bundle 6.   Ja.   You wi l l  see 

there at  page 93.  

MR SINGH:   B lack numbers again.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes.   You wi l l  see at  paragraph 5.5 – i t  is  

a  b i t  o f  a  mouth fu l  18.44.   I t  says accord ing to  a le t ter  
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dated 5 September 2012 f rom Molefe to  PAN Transnet 

not i f ied CSR that  i ts  appointment  as  the preferred  b idder.   

In  the le t te r,  CSR was requested to  s ign the agreement  by 

no la te r  than the  c lose of  business on 6 September 2012.   

Do you see that?  

MR SINGH:   I  see that  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:   I f  I  could ask you p lease to  go to  page 39 

and th is  is  in  the sect ion deal ing wi th  the 95 locomot ives.    

MR SINGH:   39.  

ADV MYBURGH:   39.    10 

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Wi th reference to the tab le at  page 39 

would you conf i rm that  th is  t ime in  September 2011/2012 Mr  

Sharma was a  d i rector  of  Transnet  and a member  of  the  

BADC.  

MR SINGH:   I f  I  may – f rom my recol lect ion he was yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   And you of  course were a d i rector  we see 

f rom that  tab le ex  off ic io  cor rect .  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And we know that  in  August  o f  2012 Mr  20 

Sharma was appointed as the Chai rperson of  the  BADC.  

You know that .  

MR SINGH:   2012? 

ADV MYBURGH:   I  th ink i t  is  2013 I  beg your  pardon.  

MR SINGH:   No th is  one – th is  tab le refers to  the 3 August  
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2011.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes exact ly.   That  is  why I  am t ry ing to  

work out  i f  you know when Mr Sharma became the  

chai rperson.  

MR SINGH:   Oh no,  no,  I  would not… 

ADV MYBURGH:   You do not  know that  –  okay.  

MR SINGH:   No.   no.  

ADV MYBURGH:   A l l  r ight .   What  was your  involvement  in  

the acquis i t ion of  the 95 locomot ives? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  i f  I  recal l  I  had actual l y  a  l im i ted 10 

involvement  in  the acquis i t ion of  the 95 locomot ives.   I t  was 

real ly  a  pro ject  that  was run by Transnet  Fre ight  Rai l  and I  

th ink i f  my memory serves cor rect l y,  I  would have s igned off  

on cer ta in  memos that  would requi re to  be submi t ted  to  the 

board or  to  the Capi ta l  Investment  Commit tee in  re la t ion 

thereto.  

ADV MYBURGH:   So we have seen that  you were at  a  

meet ing ref lected  in  paragraph 5.5 .9.8 and then a lso i f  you 

go… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Paragraph number?  Paragraph number?  20 

ADV MYBURGH:   Paragraph 5.5.9.8 that  tab le at  page 39.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR SINGH:   Yes that  was – yes – as I  sa id I  wou ld have 

s igned off  memos and at tended the board meet ings or  

00:30:09 meet ings where these were d iscussed.  
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ADV MYBURGH:   And then there  is  re ference to  another  

board meet ing at  page 41 – the board meet ing on the 31s t  o f  

August  towards the foot  o f  the page.   And there you wi l l  see 

over  the page at  paragraph 5.5.9 .18 you were present  at  

that  board meet ing as wel l .  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   As was – as was Mr Sharma.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Now as you know the money f lows 

invest igat ion has revealed that  CSR in re la t ion to  the 95 10 

locomot ives and Regiments Asia  which is  another  of  Mr  

Essa’s companies entered in to a BDSA wi th i t  get t ing a in 

th is  instance a 20% kickback and as  I  have the evidence to  

date money f lows as – have ident i f ied that  payments  to  the  

tune of  some 17 mi l l ion dol lars have been made by  CSR in  

th is  regard.   I  take i t  you say you had no idea of  the 

involvement  of  Mr  Essa and or  Regiments  Asia?  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Now Mr S ingh perhaps I  could just  ask  

you to  comment  on th is  – th is  genera l ly.   How is  i t  that  there  20 

is  20% fat  le f t  assuming that  that  was the k ickback that  was 

paid here is  that  possib le?  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  I  would not  be able to  comment .   I  am 

not  au fa i t  or  in  any way an expert  on locomot ive pr ic ing so  

I  would not  be able to  comment .  
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ADV MYBURGH:   So when we – when we get  to  the 1064 

and i t  i s  someth ing perhaps one might  want  to  ref lec t  upon I  

mean there you were in  the negot ia t ions.  

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:   There – there is  a lso one of  these BDSA’s  

concluded there i t  is  a  21% kickback.   How could there be –  

have been enough fat  for  a  21% kickback i f  these 

negot ia t ions were  conducted thoroughly and in  a bona f ide  

way?  There was hard bargain ing.   How could i t  be that  

there was enough space i f  you get  the point  I  am making to  10 

pay that  k ind of  k ickback? 

MR SINGH:   Wel l  as I  sa id Mr Cha i r,  I  would not  be  able to  

comment  in  terms of  the margins  that  the  OEM’s bel ieved 

was appropr ia te for  them to  earn.   Cer ta in ly  f rom what  I  can 

recal l  o f  the process that  was fo l lowed for  the 95’s and the 

1064’s i t  was a very thorough and r igorous process in  terms 

of  the negot ia t ions that  occurred.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  one would  have thought  that  qu i te  

some work would  have been done to ensure that  i f  there 

was an in f la t ion o f  pr ices that  would be p icked up.  20 

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect  S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i f  i t  was not  p icked up that  there was 

so much that  could go to  k ickbacks does not  look l i ke a 

proper  job was done in  terms of  checking.  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chai r  as  I  sa id f rom – f rom my 
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perspect ive I  th ink a l l  o f  the escalat ions were just i f ied and 

were as a resul t  o f  economic var iab les that  had changed 

dur ing the in te rphase as wel l  as  the cont ract  negot ia t ion  

phase and I  guess we wi l l  deal  wi th  that  when we come to  

the 1064 locos.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  mean i t  i s  d i f f icu l t  to  – to  say tha t  i f  the 

pr ice inc ludes 21% kickback can be sa id  that  the pr ice is  

just i f ied.  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  what  I  –  I  –  amount  of  k ickback.  10 

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chai r  as I  sa id to  you i f  the OEM’s 

decide to  make a lower margin for  whatever  reason then 

that  is  someth ing  for  them to decide.   I t  has got  no th ing to  

do wi th  Transnet .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes thank you.   Do you know what  the  

margins are in  locomot ives? 

MR SINGH:   Not  o ff -hand no.  

ADV MYBURGH:   But  I  mean was i t  someth ing that  you 

engaged in  dur ing  the course of  negot ia t ions presumably.  20 

MR SINGH:   I t  is  not  someth ing that  one would ord inar i l y 

p ick up.   So i t  is  a  very d i f f icu l t  in fo rmat ion to  get  ho ld of  

and that  was one of  the reasons why the t ransact ion  

advisors were appointed par t i cu la r ly  a r t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Do you see the i rony.   One of  the reasons 
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why t ransact ion advisors were appointed.   I  mean do you 

see that  happened wi th  those t ransact ion advisors.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are a l lowing them to advise you.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Mr S ingh when you ref lect  on th is  do you 

th ink that  those t ransact ion advisors advised you proper ly?  

I  mean now that  you know the facts .  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chai r  in  terms of  the – the work that  

was requi red to  be done I  would  ref lect  and say yes Mr  

Chai r  because as  far  as I  am concerned as I  sa id when we 10 

deal  wi th  the issue of  the 30 to  55  b i l l ion Mr Chai r  you wi l l  

see that  the  bar r ing the issue re lat ing to  the  e lement  of  

cont ingencies pret ty  much a l l  o f  the increase re lated to  

economic var iab les.   So f rom that  perspect ive Mr Chai r  that  

leaves l i t t le  room or  manipulat ion of  the numbers.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  course you do not  mean tha t  i f  we 

could go back in  t ime you would st i l l  use them.  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  for  the – fo r  the – wel l  having known 

what  we know now but  g iven the same in format ion  then we 

would probably use – st i l l  use them.   But  g iven what  we 20 

know now maybe not .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Can we then tu rn to  the 100 locomot ives.   

So here CSR was awarded a  tender on conf inement  

rep lac ing Mi tsu i ,  correct?  

MR SINGH:   That  is  –  sorry S i r.  
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ADV MYBURGH:   And a LSA was concluded on the  17 t h  o f  

March 2014 at  a  cost  o f  approximate ly  4.3 b i l l ion.   The ETC 

having been 3.8 b i l l ion approximate ly.  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And 17 March was the same day as the  

LSA’s in  respect  o f  the 1064 locomot ives were concluded.  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Perhaps you can just  expla in – I  am not  

sure – I  know i t  i s  amongst  the documents but  maybe you 

could just  expla in  to  us the reason why the 100 locomot ives  10 

were acqui red at  th is  t ime.  

MR SINGH:   We acqui red as? 

ADV MYBURGH:   A t  th is  t ime.  

MR SINGH:   Okay.   Mr Chai r  i f  I  recal l  cor rect l y,  there was 

a need for  – okay le t  me expla in i t  th is  way.   Let  me star t  

here and maybe we can then – we wi l l  go back wi th in  t ime 

Mr Chai r  i f  you a l low me because th is  is  how I  understand 

i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   But  I  th ink i t  w i l l  then f i t  in to  the chrono logy o f  20 

everyone e lse is  against  but  th is  is  how I  understand i t  

happened.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  f ine.  

MR SINGH:   There was a – the coa l  l ine was exper iencing a  

problem in terms of  meet ing i t s  budgeted vo lumes and i t  
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was a per iod ic  shor t fa l l  week af te r  week af ter  week.    

 A t  Transnet ,  we actual l y  measured the vo lume – the  

budgeted vo lumes on a weekly basis because in  Transnet 

revenue is  actual ly  one of  the  most  s ign i f ican t  – wel l  

actual ly  in  any company.   But  we –  so we t racked revenues 

on a weekly basis  and par t i cu lar ly  budgeted vo lumes.  

 So i t  became a perpetual  what  we cal led cash f low 

at  r i sk i tem because i f  you d id not  earn the revenue you 

most  cer ta in ly  d id  not  earn the cash f lows associated wi th  

the revenue and th is  was then t racked weekly.  10 

 So we used to  have these EXCO break away 

sessions where we used to d iscuss a l l  o f  these le t  us ca l l  i t  

the cash f low shor t fa l l s  and the reasons therefor  and what  

p lans do we need to put  in  p lace to  mi t igate.  

 And we had a ser ies of  these meet ings and as we 

got  to  a point  in  t ime I  then engaged wi th  Mr Mole fe and I  

sa id to  Mr Molefe l is ten we cont inuously having th is  i ssue 

wi th  th is  coal  l ine  and the coal  l ine  is  not  per fo rming up to  

vo lume and that  is  when Mr Mole fe engaged wi th  the Mr 

Gama to understand what  was the –  the issue re lat ing  to  the  20 

coal  l ine.  

 And Mr Gama then responded and said locomot ives.   

You g ive me locomot ives I  can del i ver  the vo lumes.   And the 

coal  l ine locomot ives that  were requi red was cont ingent  

upon the – the  1064 locos having come on st ream at  a  



28 MAY 2021 – DAY 405 
 

Page 157 of 239 
 

cer ta in  point  in  t ime which would have then a l lowed fo r  

some genera l  f re ight  locos I  th ink to  have been deployed to  

the coal  l ine that  would have enabled Mr Gama then to meet  

h is  budgeted revenue volume.  

 So th is  was the way that  th is  th ing worked out .   That  

the cash f low is  a t  r isk on  the coal  l ine was due to  a lack of  

locomot ive locomot ives and therefore i t  t r iggered th is  

procurement  event  Mr Chai r.  

ADV MYBURGH:   A l l  r ight .   Now we know that  a t  th is  t ime 

Mr Sharma was the chai rperson of  the BADC – he is  a 10 

d i rector.   We know a lso that  Essa in  the form of  Regiments 

Capi ta l  here as wel l  concluded a  BDSA wi th CSR for  21% 

kickback.   There is  just  one quest ion,  which I  perhaps have 

not  asked you tha t  I  would l ike you to  comment  on.  

 Have you got  any idea what  i t  is  that  Mr Essa – you 

have looked at  some of  these agreements?  I  th ink you have 

looked at  the Tegeta agreements.  

MR SINGH:   That  they were par t  o f  the 00:41:15.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Ja.   Why do you th ink – are you able to  

proffe r  any v iew why was CSR paying th is  money – th is  20 

k ickback for  what?  

MR SINGH:   I  would have no idea S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:   You have read the cont racts.  

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:   They seem to  ind icate that  they are 
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brokers,  they have in f luence,  and they can pul l  o ff  the deal .  

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:   You say – do you say that  d id  not  happen.  

MR SINGH:   No S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:   A l l  r ight .   Can we then in  re la t ion  to  the 

100 locomot ives can I  take you to  Mr Cal lard ’s  a ff idavi t  

p lease.   That  you f ind at  Exhib i t  BB4(a) .   And cou ld I  ask 

you p lease to  turn to  page FQC6.   So Mr S ingh th is  is  a  – 

stuff  that  is  –  we have been th rough wi th  other  wi tnesses 

and the Chai rperson is  fami l iar  wi th  i t .   I  am going to  t ry  10 

and paraphrase i t  and walk through th is  qu ick ly.   I f  a t  any 

t ime you fee l  you want  to  look more carefu l l y  a t  i t  p lease 

fee l  f ree.   But  I  am just  t ry ing to  set  out  the chronology and 

sequence so that  we can get  to  the  point  that  I  would l ike to  

quest ion you on.    

 You see at  paragraph 26 at  page 6 Mr Cal lard says 

that  he prefer  – that  he prepared the f i rs t  business case in  

Apr i l  o f  2012 and then a t  26.1 he says in  

September/October  2013 he was requested by Gama to  

update the memorandum to the BD – to  the BADC.  And he 20 

says that  the  memorandum dated the 15 t h  o f  October  2013 

was s igned by Gama,  P i ta ,  Mohamedy and you.   Do you see 

that?  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH:   And we know th is  is  s tated at  paragraph 
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27 that  that  memorandum recommended conf inement  to  

Mi tsu i .   You agree wi th  that .  

MR SINGH:   As I  recal l  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   So that  is  in  September/October  2013.  I f  I  

could ask you to  go fo rward then to  paragraph 32 at  page 7  

he says I  was in  formed through a sms f rom Gama on 21 

October  2013 that  the Group Chief  Execut ive Mr Molefe had 

wi thdrawn the memorandum at  the BADC meet ing  on the 

same day.   You see that .  

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH:    Then at  paragraph 34 Mr Cal lard sa id:  

" I  la ter  prepared an updated vers ion which Gama s igned on 

25 November 2013. ”  

You see that .   

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then i f  we go to  the  next  yea r,  

January  2014,  a t  parag raph 38 a t  page 9 .   He says:  

“On Monday,  20  January  2014,  I  ma i led  a  pd f  

vers ion  o f  the  rev ised bus iness case to 

Gama. . . ”  20 

 Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  where  are  you now,  s i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Paragraph 38,  page 9 .  

MR SINGH :    Oh,  sor ry.   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Le t  me go th rough tha t  aga in .  
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“On Monday,  20  January  2014,  I  ma i led  a  pd f  

vers ion  o f  the  rev ised bus iness case to 

Gama. . . ”  

 Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then he says a t  39 ,  paragraph 39:  

“On the  morn ing  o f  Wednesday,  

22  January  2014,  I  rece ived a  mai l  f rom 

L ind iwe Mdle tshe  f rom Supp ly  Cha in  Serv i ces ,  

request ing  my ass i s tance on fo rmat t ing  my 10 

memorandum of  the  prev ious Monday.  

When I  perused  the  memorandum,  I  no t iced  

tha t  the  memorandum had been  changed to  

g ive  e f fec t ,  to  conf ine  and award  to  CSR for  

100 e lec t r i c  locomot ives . . . ”  

 Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  tha t  i s  on  22  January.   I f  I  cou ld  

take  you then,  p lease,  to  page 10 a t  parag raph 44.   He  

says:  20 

“ I  de l ibe ra ted  long and hard  on  the  Wednesday  

even ing  on the  imp l ica t ions o f  what  I  have  

learn t .  

On Thursday a f te rnoon,  23  January,  I  emai led  

Gama and J i yane,  express ing  my concern  a t  
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the  un i la te ra l  changes to  the  bus iness 

case/memorandum I  submi t ted  on  the  

Monday. . . ”  

 And then i f  you go to  paragraph 45 a t  page 11.   I t  

says :  

“My emai l  to  Gama and. . .  

 J iyane opens w i th :  

“Th is  i s  a  d i f f i cu l t  ma i l  to  wr i te  in  he lp ing  to  

fo rmat  a  recent  vers ion  o f  the  180  locomot ive  

bus iness case on  Wednesday the  22 n d .   \  10 

I  no t iced tha t  the  case was changed f rom tha t  

wh ich  I  had submi t ted  on  Monday.  

Th is  mai l  i s  because o f  the  na ture  o f  those 

changes and the  imp l ica t ions.  

The imp l ica t ions are  techn ica l  and the  

ra t iona le  fo r  the  acqu is i t ion  wh ich  was speedy 

de l i very  to  m i t iga te  MDS vo lumes a t  r i sk . . . ”  

 Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    I  see  tha t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then he  se ts  ou t  a t  parag raph 46 20 

what  h is  concerns were .   And then i f  you go to  parag raph  

48,  he  s ta tes  tha t :  

“Dur ing  the  prepara t ion  o f  my s ta tement ,  the 

Commiss ion  prov ided me wi th  th ree  pe r t inent  

emai ls  f rom which  i t  i s  ev ident  tha t  Gama,  
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S ingh and Mole fe  had knowledge o f  my  

concerns per  the  emai l  t ra i l  be low.  

(1 )  The f i rs t  was an emai l  sent  f rom Gama to  

S ingh la te  on  23 January,  essent ia l l y  

re f lec t ing  my concerns. . . ”  

 I t  reads –  and th i s  i s  now f rom Mr  Gama to  you:  

“H i ,  Mr  S ingh.   I  am a f ra id  the  submiss ion  on  

the  100 locomot ives  is  a  mess and w i l l  need to  

be  w i thdrawn.  

The 20 e- locomot ive  is  a  22- ton  per  ax le  10 

locomot ive  su i tab le  fo r  GFB whi le  the  19  e-

locomot ive  is  a  26- ton  per  ax le  beast  su i tab le  

fo r  the  coa l  l ine .  

The two locomot i ve  types are  no t  in te roperab le  

wh i le  CSR can make add i t iona l  locomot ives  in  

Ch ina  in  a  very  shor t  space o f  t ime to  m i t iga te 

aga ins t  MDS vo lume los t ,  th is  w i l l  counte r  to  

our  loca l i sa t ion  s t ra tegy and wou ld  have to  be  

spe l led  ou t .  

85  locomot ives  to  be  assembled by  T has no t  20 

ye t  commenced.   So we cannot  ye t  made an  

argument  tha t  th is  wou ld  reduce the  r i sk . . . ”  

 You conf i rm hav ing  rece ived tha t  emai l?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  aga in ,  I  do  no t  reca l l  the  emai l  bu t  

i f  –  I  do  no t  have any reason to  be l ieve  I  d id  no t  rece ive  i t .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  i t  seems you must  have  

because a t  48 .2 ,  the  second emai l  tha t  was prov ided to  Mr  

Ca l la rd  was f rom S ingh to  Gama on the  morn ing  o f  Fr iday,  

24  January,  say ing  tha t  they wou ld  d iscuss the  mat te r  th is  

morn ing .   You want  me –  le t  me take you there  so  tha t  you  

can re f resh your  memory.   I f  you  keep your  f inge r  a t  page  

12,  you can tu rn  t o  page 221.  

MR SINGH :    221 . . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  i s  the  cover  page.   The emai l  

i t se l f  appears  a t  222.   There  you w i l l  f ind  Mr  Gama ’s  emai l  10 

a t  the  bo t tom and then your  response on the 

24 t h  o f  January,  the  morn ing ,  07 :02 :  

“Le t  us  d iscuss th is ,  th is  morn ing . . . ”  

 On 24 January.  

MR SINGH :    I  see tha t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i f  you go back to  page 12,  

parag raph 48.3 ,  the  th i rd  mai l ,  a lso  on  the  morn ing  o f  

Fr iday,  24  was where  S ingh fo rwarded Gama’s  mai l  to  

Mole fe  fo r  in fo rmat ion .   That  you w i l l  f ind  a t  page 225.   Do  

you see tha t?  20 

MR SINGH :    So  th is  was when I  sent  i t  to  Br ian?  Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   Ano j  S ingh,  24  January  a t  

07 :00  to  Mole fe :   “FYI .   Thanks. ”   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then i f  you go back to  page 12,  
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there  was tha t  day a  BADC meet ing ,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And le t  us  go  to  those minutes .   

Those you w i l l  f ind  a t  page 228.   So,  bu t  you see a t  228,  i s  

tha t  Mr  Sharma was the  cha i rperson and then in  

a t tendance were  you and Mr  Mole fe  and in  par t ia l  

a t tendance a t  1 .4  was Mr  Gama and Mr  J i yane.   Do you 

see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A t  the  foo t  o f  tha t  page,  5 .1 ,  you see 10 

tha t  Messrs  –  what  i s  recorded as  Messrs  Gama and J iyane 

jo ined the  meet ing  a t  11 :55 .    

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And what  we see a t  page 232 is  the  

acqu is i t ion  o f  the  100 locomot ives  was then d iscussed as  

i tem 5 .2 .   Do you  see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then i f  you go to  page 237,  you 20 

w i l l  see  jus t  above i tem 5 .6  tha t  Messrs  Gama and J iyane  

were  excused f rom the  meet ing  a t  15 :03 .  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i f  I  cou ld  then take  back,  

p lease,  to  page 232?  
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MR SINGH :    232? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja .   So i t  reads a t  5 .2 .1 :  

“Management  took the  commi t tee  th rough the  

submiss ion  as  conta ined in  the  pack. . . ”  

 Oh,  tha t  i s  the  submiss ion  to  conf ine  to  CSR,  

cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  wou ld  be  co r rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

“The submiss ion  was taken as  read.  

The pu rpose o f  the  submiss ion  was to  request  10 

the  commi t tee  too . . . ”  

 And i t  re f lec ts  then B :  

“Recommend tha t  the  board  approves the  

investment  in  the  procurement  o f  100 e lec t r i c  

locomot ives  requ i red  fo r  the  coa l  expor t  l ine 

es t imated a t  R 3 .8  b i l l i on . . . ”  

 And a t  C:  

“Recommend tha t  the  board  approves the  

conf inement  and award  o f  the  procurement  o f  

the  100 e lec t r i c  locomot ives . . . ”  20 

 Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And u l t imate ly  tha t  ca r r ied  the  

days (?) ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  I  cou ld  no t  hear.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  tha t  was recommended? 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now the  memorandum or  

recommendat ion  tha t  was p laced before  the  BADC on tha t  

day,  you w i l l  f ind  a t  page 244.   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now tha t  document  i s  qu i te  a  lengthy  

document .   I t  runs up  unt i l  267.    

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i t  was s igned by  you,  I  th ink ,  i t  10 

appears  the  21 s t  o f  January.   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And by  Mr  Mole fe  on  the  

22 n d  o f  January.  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now,  pe rhaps I  cou ld  jus t  ask  you to  

exp la in  to  the  Cha i rperson how th i s  change was -  overn igh t  

change came about  and perhaps  I  want  to  s ta r t  o f f  by  

po in t ing  ou t  to  you tha t  Mr  Gama d id  no t  s ign  the  

memorandum which  I  have jus t  taken you to .   You know 20 

tha t?  

MR SINGH :    No,  I  have seen tha t .   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Can you jus t  exp la in  –  you 

know tha t  a  lo t  o f  ev idence has  been g iven about  th is .   

Jus t  exp la in  o r  p lease exp la in  to  the  Cha i rpe rson how th is  



28 MAY 2021 – DAY 405 
 

Page 167 of 239 
 

change came about .  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  have ment ioned before .   

The issue o f  the  locomot ives  emanated f rom the  issue o f  

the  week ly  revenue repor ts  tha t  ident i f ied  the  coa l  l ine  as  

an  underper fo rming un i t  o f  Transnet ,  o f  Transnet  Fre igh t  

Ra i l  and the  reason the re fore ,  tha t  was g i ven by  Mr  Gama 

was the  i ssue o f  the  t rack(?)  o f  t he  locomot ives .   A t  tha t  

po in t  in  t ime,  Mr  Cha i r,  Mr  Mole fe ,  I  th ink  a t  tha t  t ime or  

dur ing  tha t  conversa t ion  w i th  Mr  Gama i f  no t  –  I  may be 

mis taken,  dec ided tha t  we shou ld  then bas i ca l l y  conf ined 10 

to  CSR.   I  am not  too  sure  i f  i t  was in  tha t  conversa t ion  

w i th  Mr  Gama or  a t  a  la te r  s tage thereaf te r  bu t  i t  was then 

dec ided tha t  we wou ld  then acqu i re  the  locomot ives  f rom 

CSR ra the r  than Mi tsu i .   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Th i s ,  you say,  was in  conversa t ion  

w i th  Mr  Gama? 

MR SINGH :    As  I  sa id ,  I  am not  –  the  –  remember  I  sa id  

the  –  you asked the  or ig ina l  quest ion  and you sa id  how d id  

th is  100 come about  and I  sa id :   L is ten ,  the  100 came 

about  as  a  resu l t  o f  the  underper fo rmance o f  the  coa l  l ine  20 

re la t i ve  to  our  revenue t rack ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    R igh t?  

MR SINGH :    . . . tha t  occur red  on a  week ly  bas is .   So when  

the  revenue t rack ing  ind ica ted  aga in  tha t  the  coa l  l ine  had 

underper fo rmed,  I  engaged w i th  Mr  Mole fe  to  unders tand 
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what  a re  we go ing  to  do  now because ye t  aga in  the  coa l  

l ine  has underper fo rmed.   

  And th is  wou ld  have been on the  back o f  p rev ious  

engagements  tha t  we wou ld  have had w i th  Transnet  Fre igh t  

Ra i l  in  te rms o f  what  a re  they do ing  to  m i t iga te  these 

vo lumes tha t  a re  constant ly  be ing  sh ipped(?)  on  the  coa l  

l ine .    

 So when I  had gone to  Mr  Mole fe  to  ra ise  th is  

cont inued r i sk  re la t ing  to  the  coa l  l ine ,  even engaged w i th  

Mr  Gama to  unders tand what  was the  prob lem.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes?  

MR SINGH :    And then he,  Mr  Gama,  conveyed to  

Mr  Mole fe  tha t  the  issue was the  fac t  tha t  he  d id  no t  have  

fac t  o f  re fe rence(?)  [Speaker  no t  c lear ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  I  th ink  you and I  a re  m iss ing  

one anothe r.   I  am ta lk ing  about  the  change.  

MR SINGH :    Hence . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Overn igh t  change.  

MR SINGH :    Hence I  am say ing  to  you tha t  tha t  –  the 

dec is ion  then was taken by  Mr  Mo le fe  in  tha t  conversa t ion ,  20 

whethe r  i t  was w i th  Mr  Gama on the  phone or  w i th  me 

thereaf te r.   I  cannot  exact ly  remember  bu t  then the  

dec is ion  was made wi th  Mr  Mole fe  to  say le t  us  conf ine  to  

CSR.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  bu t  what  caused you to  conf ine  
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to  CSR?  There  had been a  conf inement  to  Mi tsu i .  . 

MR SINGH :    No . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  I  th ink  we a l l  accept  the  prob lem 

and the  need fo r  the  locomot ives  bu t  i t  i s  the  change tha t  I  

am in te res ted  in  f rom conf inement  f rom Mi tsu i  to  CSR and 

tha t ,  what  appears  to  be  a  change,  tha t  as  you,  happens  

qu ick ly.   There  i s  a  bus iness case presented by  Ca l la rd .   

And we are  go ing  to  come to  Mr  Gama’s  ev idence.   He d id  

no t  know anyth ing  about  th is .   The  f i rs t  t ime he knew about  

i t ,  accord ing  to  h im,  was a t  the  BADC meet ing .  10 

MR SINGH :    We l l ,  there  was not  a  conf inement  in  favour  

o f  Mi tsu i .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    R igh t .  

MR SINGH :    There  was,  as  pe r  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  ev idence,  

there  was a  conf inement  memo tha t  as  prepared.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A bus iness case?  

MR SINGH :    No,  there  was a  bus iness case prepared fo r  

add i t iona l  locomot ives  fo r  the  coa l  l ine .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    From tha t  you then need to  have a  20 

conf inement  memo tha t  ac tua l l y  wou ld  g ive  e f fec t  to  the  

procu rement .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sure .  

MR SINGH :    He then prepared  th is . . .  accord ing  to  the 

da tes ,  somet ime in  September /October  . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    . . .wh ich  then went  wh ich  I  a lso  s igned .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  we saw tha t .  

MR SINGH :    Which  then wen t  to  the  Acqu is i t ion  and  

D isposa l  Commi t tee  and accord ing  to  in fo rmat ion  we jus t  

read,  tha t  d id  no t  serve  or  i t  was  w i thdrawn or  someth ing  

happened to  i t .   So  the  conf inement  memo to  Mi t su i  was 

never  s igned or  i t  was never  approved.   Le t  us  ca l l  i t  tha t  

way.   Which  then d id  no t  a l low  us  to  buy locomot ives  

be tween October  –  we l l ,  ac tua l l y,  the  bus iness case was 10 

done somet ime in  March 2013 o r  May 2013.    

 That  i s  when we  ought  to  have s tar ted  w i th  the  

procu rement  o f  these locos.   The memo for  conf inement  

served before  the  BADC,  I  th ink  the  da te  was cor rec t ,  I  

th ink  somet ime in  October.   That  October  submiss ion  fo r  

Mi tsu i  was not  approved by  the  BADC,  a l l  was w i thdrawn 

fo r  whatever  reasons.    

 And I  th ink  the  reason was  tha t  we had  

conf inement  to  Mi tsu i  be fo re  and we needed to  look  fo r  

a l te rna t ives  and so  on  and so  fo r th ,  i f  I  reca l l .   So  those 20 

are  the  issues tha t  the  BADC had w i th  the  conf inement  

p rocu rement  w i th  Mi tsu i .   When Mr  Mole fe  was then  

conf ron ted w i th  the  issue o f  t rack (?)  e f fo r t (? )  and I  wou ld  

assume tha t  Mr  Gama d id  exp la in  to  h im th is  who le  h is to ry  

a round why we do not  have those  t rack  e f fo r t . . .   [Speaker  
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unc lea r ]    

 F i r s t l y,  the  BADC had not  approved the  

conf inement  to  –  fo r  –  the  conf inement  to  the  BADC. . .  was 

w i thdrawn.   The 1064 locomot ive  procu rement  was  beh ind  

schedu le .   So he needed locos f rom somewhere .   And I  

th ink  tha t  p rec ip i ta ted  Mr  Mole fe ’s  dec is ion  to  say :   Wel l ,  

le t  us  conf ine  to  CSR.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    R igh t .   Okay.   Can I  ask  you –  

perhaps you can  keep open the  m inutes  o f  the  24 t h  o f  

January,  BADC m inutes  a t  page 228.  10 

MR SINGH :    228? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

MR SINGH :    22?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    228,  you sa id?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  o f  Ca l la rd .   Yes,  FC-228(? ) .   

And then,  cou ld  I  ask  you,  p lease,  Mr  S ingh to  go  to  Mr  

Gama’s  exh ib i t ,  Exh ib i t  BB-28,  Bund le  7?  

MR SINGH :    Bund le  7?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  20 

MR SINGH :    Have we got  Bund le  7(a )?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

MR SINGH :    I  am there ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Le t  us  have a  look a t  –  i f  you  cou ld  

go  to  page 250.152.   I  suppose i t  m igh t  he lp  you.   I t  s ta r ts  
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o f f  a t  approx imate ly  in  the  m idd le  o f  152.  

MR SINGH :    What  i s  i t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    250.152.  Are  you a t  152?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Can I  ask  you to  have a  look a t  

parag raph 49.1?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  reads tha t ,  accord ing  to  Mr  Gama:  

“The changes to  the  memorandum. . . ”  

 And we have gone th rough th is .  10 

“ . . .were  e f fec ted  by  S ingh who  s igned the  

memorandum on 21 January  2014.  

The memorandum was then s igned by  Br ian  

Mole fe  on  22 January  2014.  

I t  shou ld  be  noted tha t  my s ignature  was to 

appended to  FC-14. . . ”  

 I t  i s  the  document  tha t  I  took  you to .  

“ I  was not  a  par t y  to  what  i s  a l leged to  have  

been the  un i la te ra l  amendment .  

I t  was a t  a l l  t imes know to  Ca l la rd  tha t  I  20 

suppor ted  the  conf inement  to  Mi tsu i  & 

Company. . . ”  

 I  jus t  want  to  ask  you.   Do you  accept  tha t  the  

changes to  the  memorandum were  e f fec ted  by  you?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.   I  d id  no t  a f fec t  the  changes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Who e f fec ted  the  changes?  

MR SINGH :    I  do  no t  reca l l ,  s i r,  bu t  the  memorandum 

wou ld  have been brought  to  us  or  b rought  to  my by  

someone.   I  cannot  reca l l  who.   But  I  wou ld  have –  based  

on the  ins t ruc t ion  f rom Mole fe ,  we wou ld  have ins t ruc ted  

someone to  make  these. . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  bu t  th is  becomes qu i te  

impor tan t .   Ins t ruc ted  who?  

MR SINGH :    I  wou ld  no t . . .  [Speaker  unc lea r ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And what  we have i s .   We have a  10 

memorandum tha t  has l i te ra l l y  changed overn igh t .   You do  

not  know who d id  tha t?   Who gave input  in to  i t?  

MR SINGH :    We l l ,  f rom Cal la rd ’s  ev idence,  i t  wou ld  seem 

l i ke  Mr  Mole t se(? )  was the  one . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    . . .who was charged w i th  amend ing the  memo.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   But  who was the  person 

ins t ruc t ing  the  amendment?  

MR SINGH :    I  wou ld  assume tha t ,  g iven tha t  Mr  Mole fe  

had dec ided and  I  was there ,  I  wou ld  have been the  one 20 

who ins t ruc ted .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sor ry,  I  cannot  hear  you.  

MR SINGH :    I  sa id ,  g iven the  fac t  tha t  Mr  Mole fe  had 

dec ided tha t  the  conf inement  wou ld  need to  be  changed,  I  

wou ld  have p robab ly  engaged w i th  someone in  Group 
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P rocurement .   I t  wou ld  probab ly  mean Mr  P i ta .   And tha t  

wou ld  have then f i l te red  down to Mr  Mole tse  and Mr  

J iyane.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   So you take  issue  w i th  Mr  

Gama when he sa id  the  changes to  the  memorandum were  

e f fec ted  by  S ingh? 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Then . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ord inar i l y,  wou ld  m is te r  –  wou ld  the  

memorandum have come f rom Mr  Gama to  you and f rom 10 

you to  Mr  Mole fe?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   So i t  came to  you before  i t  went  to  

Mole fe ,  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe ,  on  th is  occas ion?  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  s i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  i t  s ta r t  w i th  you fo r  you to  s ign  

be fore  i t  went  to  Mr  Mole fe  . . . [ in tervenes]  

MR SINGH :    No,  Mr  Cha i r.   You wou ld  have seen tha t  

Mr  Gama sends me an emai l  on  the  24 t h ,  tak ing  issue w i th  

the  conf inement  memo.   So tha t  i s  the  very  same 20 

conf inement  tha t  I  then s igned on the  21s t .    

 So  he cannot  c la im tha t  he  has no t  –  he  does not  

know about  the  conf inement  memo.   So tha t  conf inement  

memo was prepared.   I t  was prepared by  ind iv idua ls  w i th in  

TFR or  Transnet  Fre igh t  Ra i l .   He wou ld  have seen tha t  
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because he now comment ing . . .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  i s  h is  pos i t ion  no t  tha t  he  was  

aga ins t  th is  change?  He was aga ins t  th is  change and you 

and Mr  Mole fe  are  the  ones who seem to  have wan ted th is  

change.  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  read h i s  –  the  

comments  on  h i s  emai l  –  the  comments  on  h i s  emai l  

re la ted  to  the  fac t  tha t  the  memorandum re fer red  to  a  20  e-

locomot ive ,  ye t  they requ i red  a  26- ton  axe l  locomot ive  

wh ich  is  a  19  e- locomot ive  –  a  19  E equ iva len t  locomot ive .   10 

He then led  –  he  then spoke abou t  the  in te r -operab i l i t y  o f  

these locomot ives  and he spoke about  the  issue o f  

loca l i sa t ion .   So ,  Mr  Cha i r,  in  the  rev i sed memo,  those  

th ree  issues were  taken care  o f .   So f rom tha t  perspect ive ,  

I  wou ld  have assumed tha t  he  was  happy w i th  the  memo.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    [ laughs]  He  is  happy w i th  the  memo.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   That  i s  –  ja ,  tha t  i s  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  the  th ree  . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .he  wou ld  assume tha t  he  was happy 

w i th  the  memo.  

MR SINGH :    No ,  no .   Le t  me f in ish .   I  wou ld  no t  have –  

tha t  was when he  sent  us  these issues.   You wou ld  reca l l ,  I  

then sa id  tha t  I  wou ld  d i scuss i t  w i th  you in  the  morn ing .  



28 MAY 2021 – DAY 405 
 

Page 176 of 239 
 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  bu t  you d id  no t .  

MR SINGH :    I  do  no t  reca l l  hav ing  the  d iscuss ion  bu t  I  am 

sure  I  d id  have . . .   [Speaker ’s  vo i ce  drops –  unc lea r ]   

Because then those var ious same changes made  i t s  way 

in to  the  f ina l . . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Le t  us  car ry  w i th  Mr  Gama’s  

ev idence.   That  i s  page 250.153.    

“ I  reca l l  tha t  I  rece ived a  te lephone ca l l  f rom 

Cal la rd  du r ing  the  even ing  o f  23  January,  

when he in fo rmed me tha t  con f inement  to  10 

Mi tsu i  had somehow been changed to  a  

conf inement  to  CSR. . . ”  

 51 .3 :  

“ I  ind ica ted  to  h im tha t  I  wou ld  l ia ise  w i th  

S ingh to  es tab l i sh  what  was go ing  on.  

I  sent  the  emai l  re fe r red  to  dur ing  the  even ing  

o f  23  January  2014 a f te r  my conversa t ion  w i th  

Ca l la rd .  

The emai l  was p remised on input  p rov ided by  

h im.  20 

A t  tha t  t ime,  I  had not  ye t  seen the  emai l  

wh ich  Ca l la rd  had sent  me. . . ”  

 He says:  

“ I  agree w i th  Ca l la rd  concern ing  the  mat te rs  

ra ised by  h im. . . ”  
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 Then over  the  page a t  parag raph 53.1 :  

“ I  d id  no t  suppor t  the  conf inement  to  CSR,  a 

fac t  we l l - known to  Mole fe  and S ingh.  

The memorandum to  the  BADC was not  s igned 

by  me. . . ”  

 You want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  have d i f f i cu l t y  w i th  tha t  because  

on the  morn ing  o f  the  BADC meet ing ,  Mr  Gama,  myse l f  and 

Mr  Mole fe  ac tua l l y  met  in  Mr  Mole fe ’s  o f f i ce  and you wou ld  

see tha t  Mr  Mole fe  ac tua l l y  approved the  memo on the  10 

22 n d .   Now when was the  meet ing  o f  the  BADC? The 22n d ?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The meet ing  o f  the  BADC 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    Was  the  22 n d  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . the  24 t h .  

MR SINGH :    Ja ,  i t  was the  24 t h .   So I  th ink  the  meet ing  on  

the  morn ing  o f  the  24 t h ,  there  was a  meet ing  be tween  

Mr  Gama and myse l f  and Mr  Mole fe  where  th is  mat te r  was 

d iscussed.   And Mr  Gama had accepted the  fac t  tha t  the  

conf inement  wou ld  be  to  CSR.    20 

 And aga in ,  th is  i s  conf i rmed by  the  fac t  tha t  he  

a t tended the  meet ing  and bas i ca l l y  accepted tha t  the 

conf inement  was  now go ing  to  be  w i th  CSR.   He  d id  no t  

ra ise  any o f  these issues tha t  he  now purpor ts  to  ra ise  to  

say tha t  he  d id  no t  know about  i t  o r  there  were  issues  
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about  the  memorandum tha t  we  had presented  to  the 

BADC.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  Mr  Mole fe  has g iven ev idence 

here .   He,  to  the  best  o f  my reco l lec t ion ,  i t  i s  someth ing  I  

wou ld  hope I  wou ld  no t  have fo rgo t ten .   He never  spoke 

about  tha t  meet ing  in  the  morn ing  be fore  the  BADC 

meet ing .   I t  seems cr i t i ca l  f rom what  you a re  te l l ing  us .  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  maybe he jus t  d id  no t  reca l l  i t  bu t  I  

cer ta in ly  do  reca l l  tha t  a  meet ing  d id  occur  on  the  –  on  tha t  

morn ing .   Equa l ly  so ,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  –  I  had occas ion  to  10 

ensure  tha t  the  memorandum was ac tua l l y  s igned by  

Mr  Game,  no t  on  the  day tha t  the  BADC meet ing  had 

occur red  but  cer ta in ly  subsequent  to  tha t .    

 And once tha t  memorandum was s igned by  Mr  

Gama,  I  had occas ion  to  f i le  i t  to  the  company secre tary.   I  

am not  sure  i f  they  s t i l l  have record  o f  i t  o r  no t  bu t  the  

s igned ve rs ion  o f  tha t  memorandum was f i led  w i th  the  

company secre tary.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You mean the  one tha t  we have he re  

where  he  has no t  s igned . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You say there  i s  a  s igned ve rs ion  where 

had s igned?  

MR SINGH :    I f  my memory  reca l l s  –  i f  my memory  serves,  

Mr  Cha i r,  there  is  a  s igned vers ion  o f  th is  memo f i led  w i th  
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the  company secre tary.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   So are  you say ing ,  apar t  f rom the  

ex i s tence o f  tha t  –  the  ex i s tence or  non-ex is tence  o f  tha t  

memo where  you  say,  as  fa r  as  you reca l l ,  he  s igned a f te r  

the  meet ing ,  a f te r  the  event ,  as  I  unders tand the  pos i t ion .  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A re  you say ing  tha t  there  was a  meet ing  

where  –  invo lv ing  the  th ree  o f  you,  you,  Mr  Gama and  

Mr  Mole fe?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Where  you were  d iscuss ing ,  bas i ca l l y,  

the  memo,  the  issues in  the  memo? 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    And remember,  Mr  Cha i r,  th is  meet ing  is  qu i te  

o f  s ign i f i cance.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    I t  was not  jus t  tha t  we were  d iscuss ing  the  

100 locos.   Th is  was a  meet ing  a t  wh ich  we were  a lso  

d iscuss ing  the  1064 locos.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    That  was the  –  the  bu lk  o f  the  meet ing ,  

ac tua l l y,  was to  d iscuss the  1064 locos.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    So ,  in  my v iew,  there  was a  –  tha t  i s  the 
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reason fo r  us  ac tua l l y  hav ing  th is  meet ing  or  the  br ie f ing  

w i th  Mr  Mole fe .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR SINGH :    So  tha t  he  cou ld  ac tua l l y  be  b r ie f  in  te rms o f  

what  was happen ing  on the  1064 ’s  as  we l l  as  the  100 ’s .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you say he  knew tha t  a t  tha t  s tage 

the  proposa l  o r  request  was fo r  the  conf inement  to  CSR? 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And he d id  no t  ra ise  any issues w i th  

tha t?  10 

MR SINGH :    No,  Mr  Cha i r.   I  mean,  the  m inutes  are  here ,  

Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    We presented w i th  h im be ing  there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.    

MR SINGH :    And he d id  no t  ra ise  any concerns re la t ing  to  

the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  you  ta l k  about  the  m inutes  o f  the  

board  commi t tee  now? 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   But  you sa id  the re  was a  meet ing  

ear l ie r  on .   I  thought  you sa id  the re  was a  meet ing  ear l ie r  

on  invo lv ing  the  th ree  o f  you?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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MR SINGH :    And  tha t  was p recursor  to  th is  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR SINGH :    As ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  expected h im to  ra ise  

h is  concerns in  th is  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Wel l ,  i t  wou ld  be  in te res t ing  to  

es tab l i sh  i f  the re  was such a  –  t here  is  a  copy tha t  he  

s igned o f  the  memo because when he gave ev idence,  my  

unders tand ing  was tha t ,  he  was ce r ta in ly  aga ins t  th is .   But  

why wou ld  he  be requ i red  to  s ign  a f te r?   What  wou ld  be  the  

impor tance o f  h im s ign ing  the  memo a f te r  the  even t?  10 

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  i t  wou ld  have been a  mat te r  o f  

record  tha t  ac tua l l y  a  s igned copy o f  th is  memorandum 

done d id  ex i s t .   Mr  Cha i r,  one o f  the  issues tha t  the  board  

and the  board  commi t tees ins i s ted  on ,  was tha t  when 

documents  are  pu t  be fore  them tha t  they are  ac tua l l y  

s igned by  execu t ives  so  tha t  they know tha t ,  you know,  

someone has looked a t  th is  th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR SINGH :    So  one o f  the  th ings  tha t  the  secre ta r ia t  d id  

ac tua l l y  in fo rm is  tha t  we a lways used to  ensure  tha t  20 

documents  are  s igned befo re  you present  i t  to  the  board .   

On th is  occas ion  because i t  was an urgent  mat te r,  the  –  we 

requested the  secre tar ia t  to  bas i ca l l y  –  o r  I  am to  prov ide  

the  secre tar ia t  tha t  there  wou ld  be  a  s igned copy o f  th is  

document  tha t  wou ld  come.   And thereaf te r,  a  s igned copy  
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o f  i t  was –  I  made sure  tha t  a  s igned copy was presented 

to  the  company secre tary.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And when wou ld  you have procured 

Mr  Gama’s  s ignature?  

MR SINGH :    I  am not  too  su re .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wou ld  i t  have been done in  a  few 

days o r  years  or  months?  

MR SINGH :    No,  no  no t  years ,  ce r ta in ly  no t  years .   But  i t  

wou ld  have ce r ta in ly  no t  been the  day thereaf te r.   I f  I  had 

to  guess,  i t  wou ld  have been the  next  t ime,  we e i ther  had 10 

an exco meet ing  or  subcommi t tees  o f  exco so  tha t  when a l l  

o f  us  were  together  aga in  as  a  group.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  Mr  S ingh,  I  mean,  what  you say  

now is  ve ry  impor tan t .   I  am sure  you apprec ia te  i t .  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  jus t  so  tha t  I  am –  make  sure  tha t  

I  unders tand th i s .   You say tha t  on  the  morn ing  o f  the  24 t h ,  

you –  o f  January,  you had a  mee t ing  w i th  Mr  Mole fe  and 

Mr  Gama? 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   And tha t  whatever  concerns 

Mr  Gama had expressed in  h is  emai l  to  you ,  those 

concerns were  sa t is f ied  and he no longer  had concerns?  

MR SINGH :    No,  because as  you wou ld  reca l l  as  we l l ,  tha t  

very  same emai l  tha t  Mr  Gama had sent  to  me,  I  then sent  
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to  Mr  Mole fe .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No,  no  I  unders tand tha t  bu t  I  jus t  

want  to  unders tand.   Whatever  concerns he  had were  

reso lved a t  the  meet ing  be tween the  th ree  o f  you? 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  because  one o f  the  reasons 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay –  I  am sor ry.  

MR SINGH :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Le t  me not  in te r rup t .   Car ry  on .  

MR SINGH :    I  was jus t  go ing  to  say,  one o f  the  reasons fo r  10 

me to  hav ing  suggested tha t  the  meet ing  happened was not  

to  have the  i ssues ra i sed a t  the  BADC meet ing  where  

everyone was hav ing  an  issue w i th  the i r  own issues.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then you say,  i t  goes  to  the  

BADC meet ing  and he does not  ob jec t .   In  fac t ,  he  agrees 

to  the  dec i s ion  to  recommend a  conf inement  to  CSR.  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  he  was par t  o f  the  meet ing  and there  is  

no  ob jec t ions recorded.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then –  jus t  to  back i t  up ,  you 

say subsequent ly  and shor t l y  thereaf te r  o r  –  he  then  20 

s igned the  memorandum? 

MR SINGH :    I  reca l l  ge t t ing  a  s ignature  f rom h im .   Yes,  

s i r.   Which  I  then f i led  w i th  the  then sec re ta ry,  Ms  

Ayanda. . .   [Speaker  unc lear ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  you say you f i led  i t  w i th?  
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MR SINGH :    Ms Ayanda Ceba.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Your  company secre ta ry?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  was the  f requency o f  the  meet ings  

o f  th is  g roup o f  th ree ,  yourse l f ,  Mr  Mole fe  and Mr  Gama? 

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  th is  was jus t  an  ad-hoc 

meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  i s  your  assessment?   Would  i t  be  10 

tha t  i t  m igh t  have  taken weeks or  days or  weeks or  months  

be fore  you secured Mr  Gama’s  s ignature?  

MR SINGH :    I  wou ld  have th ink  maybe between –  as  I  am 

say ing ,  log ica l l y,  Mr  Cha i r  –  o r  p rac t ica l l y,  no t  log ica l l y  –  

bu t  p rac t ica l l y,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  ch ie f  execut ive  o f  the  

opera t ing  d iv i s ions met  o r  had more  in te rac t ions w i th  Mr  

Mole fe  than myse l f  bu t  in te rac t ions w i th  them wou ld  be  a t  

subcommi t tee  meet ings o f  Exco.    

 So i t  wou ld  have been on a  month l y  cyc le .   I f  I  had 

to  see a  ch ie f  execut ive  o f  an  opera t ing  d iv i s ion ,  i t  wou ld  20 

cer ta in ly  be  a t  leas t  month ly.   So I  am say ing  tha t  I  wou ld  

probab ly  have seen h im aga in  in  February  as  par t  o f  those  

meet ing  bu t  remember  a lso ,  a t  th is  t ime,  the  1064 locos  

were  be ing  negot ia ted .    

 So I  may have,  p robab ly,  m issed some o f  the  
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subcommi t tee  meet ings or  may have a l so  m issed Exco a t  

the  t ime.   So i t  was a  t ime where  i t  was ac tua l l y  

s ign i f i can t ly  –  how can I  say  –  spaced.   And i t  was  

re la t i ve ly  a  pressur ised t ime.   Hav ing  sa id  tha t ,  Mr  Cha i r.   

Mr  Gama and I  a lso  in te rac ted  qu i te  a  b i t  on  the  1064  

locos.  So aga in ,  i f  he  had concerns about  the  CSR,  i f  he  

had not  wanted the  locos,  these th ings wou ld  have come 

out  in  those d iscuss ions.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Thank you.   I f  we can go 

back to  250.154?  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  course ,  Mr  Myburgh.   I s  i t  in  th is  

meet ing  o f  the  BADC,  th is  commi t tee  tha t  Mr  Gama sa id  i n  

h is  ev idence,  o ra l  ev idence,  he  m ight  –  he  d id  no t  ra ise  

any issues because in  tha t  commi t tee  you ta lk  –  i f  you  are  

ta lked to  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . you  do not  –  you have no r igh t  to  jus t  

ta lk .   You have got  to  wa i t  and see i f  you are  ta l ked to .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .was i t  in  regard  . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . you  speak i f  you  are  spoken to  o r  

someth ing  l i ke  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  someth ing  l i ke  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  th ink  he  had a  Zu lu  phrase tha t  you  

then in te rpre ted  fo r  us .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I f  I . . .   [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  bu t  I  th ink  you got  the  par t  about  

th ings spoken to .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  I  th ink  tha t  was h is  ev idence,  

Mr  S ingh,  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  you  say he  was par t  o f  the  

BADC meet ing  and he d id  no t  ra ise  any ob jec t ion .   I  th ink  

Mr  Myburgh asked h im about  tha t  and i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  

h is  response was  –  h is  pos i t ion  in  tha t  commi t tee ,  wh ich  I  10 

take  to  be  the  pos i t ion  o f  o ther  peop le  who wou ld  no t  be  

members  o f  the  board ,  you know,  or  the  commi t tee ,  normal  

members .   You ta lk  i f  you  are  asked or  you a re  asked to  

say someth ing .    You do not  jus t  come and ta lk .   And tha t  

i s  why he wou ld  no t  have ra i sed any issue.   

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  le t  me make two po in ts  in  th is  

regard .   My f i rs t  po in t  i s  ac tua l l y  a  po in t  I  reca l l  now a f te r  

you had jus t  s ta r ted  w i th  your  in t ro .   And I  am not  sure  i f  i t  

i s  recorded in  the  m inutes .   I  do  no t  th ink  i t  i s .   But  Mr  

Cha i r,  a t  th is  pa r t i cu la r  meet ing ,  fo r  some s t range reason,  20 

now I  reca l l  tha t  Ms Yasmeen Forbes,  who  was a  

commi t tee  member  a t  the  t ime. . .  

 I  th ink  i f  I  look  here  –  yes,  she is  ac tua l l y,  a  

member  –  ac tua l l y  d id  ask  Mr  Gama:   Do you suppor t  th is  

submiss ion  because your  s ignature  does not  appear  on  i t?   
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And he then conf i rmed tha t  the  ac tua l l y  does.   And Ms 

Forbes was one o f  those peop le  tha t  ins i s ted  tha t  

submiss ions shou ld  be  s igned by  execut ives .    

 And g iven the  fac t  tha t  he  was there  – I  th ink  Ms  

Forbes and I  s tand to  cor rec t ion ,  bu t  th is  s tands out  fo r  

some reason in  my mind,  tha t  d id  enqu i re  o f  Mr  Gama:   

L is ten ,  you are  here .   You have not  s igned the  submiss ion  

bu t  do  you suppor t  th is  submiss ion?   

 And I  th ink  he  d id  ind ica te  tha t  he  d id .   That  i s  the  

f i rs t  po in t .   The second po in t  i s ,  Mr  Cha i r.   Mr  Gama is  by  10 

h is  na ture  respec t fu l .   He is  by  h i s  na ture  respect fu l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Respect fu l?   Ja .  

MR SINGH :    A t  leas t  f rom what  I  cou ld  see.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

MR SINGH :    And so  when he says tha t  he ,  you know,  he  

goes in to  a  meet ing  and he w i l l  speak when he is  spoken 

to ,  I  wou ld  no t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    You can . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    . . .d isbe l ie f  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR SINGH :    I f  he  is  in  a  meet ing  w i th  the  Pres iden t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    [ laughs]   But  i f  he  is  in  a  meet ing  w i th  the  

BADC members ,  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  he  needed to  speak about  

someth ing  tha t  he  needed to  speak about ,  he  wou ld  do  so .   
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In  my v iew.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR SINGH :    And the  reason tha t  he  d id  no t ,  in  my v iew 

aga in  Mr  Cha i r,  d id  no t  ra i se  th i s  i ssue w i th  the  board  was  

because o f  the  fac t  tha t  we had th is  p re-meet ing  tha t  

happened in  the  morn ing  or  happened dur ing  the  course  o f  

tha t  day re la t ing  to  the  update  on  the  1064 ’s  as  we l l  as  the 

100 locos.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  he  m ight  no t  have sa id  th is .   I  am 

not  su re .   But  cou ld  he  have taken the  v iew tha t  he  need  10 

not  ra ise  th is  i ssue,  express h is  own v iew because you and 

Mr  Br ian  Mole fe  had a l ready taken a  v iew,  i t  was cont rary  

to  h is .   He shou ld  no t  go  to  the  commi t tee  and ra ise  a  

m inor i t y  v iew.   I s  i t  poss ib le  tha t  tha t  cou ld  be  a  fac tor  o r  

cou ld  have had an e f fec t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t ,  on  h is  vers ion ,  

he  was not  asked? 

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  f rom my perspect ive ,  as  I  sa t  

there ,  we had come to  the  consensus v iew,  g iven the  

meet ing  o f  the  morn ing  tha t  the  rou te  tha t  we were  tak ing  

was conf inement  to  CSR.    20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   D id  you dea l  w i th  th is  in  any  

a f f idav i t  about  th is  meet ing  tha t  the  two o f  you had in  the 

morn ing  and about  i t?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You d id  no t  dea l  w i th  i t?  
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MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And about  the  reso lu t ion  tha t  you say he  

s igned a f te r  the  event ,  you dea l  w i th  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   Was there  an  a f f idav i t  o f  

yours  tha t  responded to  h i s  o r  there  was not?  

MR SINGH :    There  was not  an  a f f idav i t  respond ing  to  h is ,  

Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    We –  I  th ink  we rece ived a  redacted  vers ion  10 

o f  h is  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    And  I  th ink  he  on ly  ment ioned me once  there .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    In  fac t ,  Cha i rperson,  maybe jus t  

to  p lace  you in  the  p ic tu re .   We rece ived an ex t remely  

redacted ve rs ion .   I f  my reco l lec t i on  is  cor rec t ,  i t  was two 

or  th ree  pages.   And we spec i f i ca l l y  aga in  went  on  record  

and requested an un redacted vers ion  o f  Mr  Gama’s  

a f f idav i t  and I  do  no t  th ink  we ever  go t  i t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  maybe on  the  face  o f  i t ,  he  m ight  

no t  have –  we l l ,  I  do  no t  know,  i t  m igh t  – you  know,  

somet imes –  I  th ink  the  exper ience w i th in  the  Commiss ion  
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i s  tha t  somet imes i t  i s  ve ry  d i f f i cu l t  to  say  whether  an  

a f f idav i t  o f  one w i tness imp l ica tes  somebody or  no t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l . . .  par t  tha t  we cons ide red and  

o f  cou rse ,  these are  judgment  ca l l s .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    We may got  i t  wrong.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Where  we  fe l t  tha t  Mr  S ingh was  

imp l ica ted  in  respect  o f  Mr  Gama’s  vers ion  about  the  

a l leged meet ing  w i th  Mr  Essa.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  cer ta in ly,  Cha i rpe rson,  f rom the  

Lega l  Team’s  perspect ive .   We are  no t  go ing  to  make any  

issue o f  the  fac t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . tha t  Mr  S ingh has not  se t  th is  ou t  

in  h is  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    What  i s  more  impor tan t ,  o f  course ,  i s  

fo r  us  to  t ry  and make sure  tha t  we unders tand the  20 

oppos ing  vers ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mis ter  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  i t  may have meant  someth ing  i f  he  – 

there  had been occas ion  fo r  h im to  respond.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And he responded but  d id  no t  say  

anyth ing .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The o ther  t h ing  i s ,  o f  course ,  tha t  i t  

m igh t  mean tha t  we need to  d i rec t  an  inqu i ry  to  Mr Gama 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . .and ask  h im to  respond  to  th is  

vers ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  I  th ink  tha t  wou ld  be  impor tan t .  10 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  maybe one more  

th ing .   I  th ink  my learned f r iend w i l l  bea r  w i th  me.   

Yesterday morn ing  we requested or  enqu i red  whether  Mr  

Gama made an a f f idav i t  per ta in ing  to  the  1064 ’s  o r  t he  100  

locos.   And we were  to ld  tha t  there  is  no  such a f f idav i t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    O f  Mr  Gama? 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  am not  sure .   I  th ink  my learned  20 

f r iend and I  m ight  have got  ou r  w i res  c rossed.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  mean,  we have Mr  Gama’s  

a f f idav i t .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    I  m igh t  be  m is taken bu t  there  
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was spec i f i ca l l y  a  request  about  an  a f f idav i t  and my 

reco l lec t ion  –  aga in ,  I  m igh t  be  m is taken –  was in  respect  

to  the  conf inement  o f  the  1064 and the  100 locos.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    I  fu l ly  agree w i th  my  learned  

f r iend.   He made an a f f idav i t  bu t  I  was – I  am not  sure  

whethe r  he  made i t  in  respect  o f  th is  pa r t i cu la r  i ssue .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  I  am busy read ing  Mr  Gama’s  

a f f idav i t  to  Mr  S ingh.    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.   No ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   You can 

obv ious ly  ob ta in  a  copy f rom the  lega l  team.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    As  I  sa id ,  Cha i rpe rson,  I  m igh t  

be  m is taken.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    I t  m igh t  have been per ta in ing  to  

Mr  P i ta .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    And then I  apo log ise  to  my 

learned f r iend.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Bu t  I  reca l l  there  was an issue  

about  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  d id ,  in  fac t ,  as  I  remember,  

re la t ing  to  Mr  P i ta .   My lea rned  f r iend and I  have r ing  
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fenced a  number  o f  i ssues.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Perhaps we shou ld  leave i t  a t  tha t  

and see i f  we can  sor t  them out  a f te rwards.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh,  i f  I  cou ld  jus t  car ry  on  w i th  

Mr  Gama’s  ve rs ion ,  p lease?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A t  paragraph 54.1 ,  he  says:  

“ I  have read  the  m inutes ,  par t i cu la r ly,  10 

parag raph 5 .22 . . . . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  what  page?  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Page 250 . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  I  fo rgo t  to  ask  is .   Do we know i f  

Mr  Br ian  Mole fe  ever  spoke when  he was g i v ing  ev idence 

about  th is  meet ing  tha t  happened between – among the  

th ree  o f  them? 20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  have ment ioned to  Mr  S ingh  tha t  to  

the  best  o f  my reco l lec t ion ,  he  d id  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  tha t  i s  someth ing  tha t  I  th ink  we  

need to  look  a t  more  care fu l l y  and perhaps ask  h im about  
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i t  as  we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  –  ja ,  ja ,  ja .   And Mr  S ingh,  do  you 

know whether  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe  go t  to  know a t  some s tage 

tha t  Mr  Gama u l t imate ly  s igned the  memo tha t  he  had not  

s igned a t  the  t ime o f  the  BADC meet ing?  

MR SINGH :    No,  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  wou ld  have been between  

Mr  Gama and myse l f  and I  wou ld  then . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  Mr  S ingh,  I  am a t  250.154,  

Mr  Gama’s  a f f idav i t .   A re  you the re?  

MR SINGH :    I  am there .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t ,  so  le t  us  p ick  up  a t  

parag raph 54.1 .   He says:   

“ I  have read the  m inutes  par t i cu la r ly  paragraph 5 .22  

o f  the  meet ing  o f  24  January  2014 o f  the  BADC. ”  

Sub 2 :  

I t  i s  c lear  to  me tha t  no  one f rom TFR wou ld  have  

presented anyth ing  o f  the  k ind  re f lec ted  in  the  20 

minutes .   As  and by  o f  example ,  “management  

in fo rmed the  commiss ion  tha t  i t  was dec ided tha t  a  

26  ton  heavy hau l  l ine  by  GE wou ld  per fo rm bet te r  

than a  c lass  19E locomot ive  f rom Mi tsu i . ”   The  

a forego ing  capt ion  is  nonsens ica l  in  tha t  no t  on ly  i s  
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the  heavy hau l  l ine  no t  a  locomot ive  bu t  a l so  tha t  

Genera l  E lec t r i c ,  GE,  on ly  manufac tures  d iese l  

locomot ives  and there fo re  the  spec i f i ca t ions cannot  

be  compared w i th  those o f  e lec t r i c  locomot ives  

manufac tured fo r  ins tance by  Mi tsu i . ”  

Next  subparagraph,  aga in  he  is  quot ing  f rom the  m inutes :  

“ ’Management  mot iva ted  fo r  the  conf inement  in  

favour  o f  GE,  th is  was mot iva ted  by  a  submiss ion  

tha t  was prev ious ly  w i thd rawn due to  reputa t iona l  

i ssues tha t  had  emanated f rom o ld  newspaper  10 

ar t i c le .   Management  requested  fo r  a  cont rac t  

ex tens ion  fo r  c lass  43E d iese l  locomot ives  by  CSR. ’  

From the  a forego ing  i t  i s  c lea r  tha t  confus ion  

re igned between a  procurement  o f  d iese l  

locomot ives  by  GE (43D)  and the  procurement  o f  

e lec t r i c  locomot ives  e i ther  f rom CSR and/or  Mi t su i .   

Consequent ly,  no  re l iance ought  to  be  p laced on the  

a foresa id  submiss ions as  they a re  c lear l y  wrong  

and not  rep resen ta t i ve  o f  what  had been d iscussed .   

However,  what  i s  s ign i f i can t  was the  fac t  tha t  wh i l s t  20 

I  suppor ted  the  conf inement  to  Mi tsu i ,  the  BADC 

had re jec ted  my  sa id  proposa l  on  the  bas i s ,  as  I  

unders tand i t ,  tha t  such conf inement  wou ld  have 

been the  th i rd  w i th  Mi tsu i .   As  i t  so  happen ing ,  

Br ian  Mole fe  la te r  in fo rmed me tha t  my Mi tsu i  
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submiss ion  wou ld  have been s t i l l bo rn . ”  

And then the  las t  subparagraph 54.4 :  

“S ingh and Mole fe  had removed my memorandum  

and prepared a  new one wh ich  they s igned and  

presented to  the  commi t tee  recommending CSR as  

the  pre fe r red  b idder. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  any o f  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  as  the  fac ts  wou ld  po in t  ou t  

tha t  Mr  Gama was in  possess ion  o f  the  p roposed  

memorandum o r  the  proposed  submiss ion  wh ich  he  10 

comment  on  to  me wh ich  I  then fo rwarded to  Mr  Mole fe .   

H is  comments  were  then taken in to  account  in  the  f ina l  

memorandum tha t  was then submi t ted  to  the  BADC.  

 Mr  Cha i r,  what  he  h igh l igh ts  as  the  d iscuss ions in  

the  m inutes  in  te rms o f  be ing  I  wou ld  say nonsens ica l ,  i t  

does not  make sense the  way i t  is  captured.   So what ,  in  

my v iew,  he  is  a l lud ing  to  i s  the  fac t  tha t  the  m inutes  

inco r rec t l y  capture  the  d i scuss ions tha t  were  occur r ing  a t  

the  BADC.   I t  does not  mean tha t  the  submiss ion  tha t  was  

presented to  the  BADC conta ined these [ indist inct  – 20 

dropping voice]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  am not  sure  tha t  tha t  i s  

necessar i l y  cor rec t .   I  read what  he  says as  p remised on  

h im say ing  th is  i s  the  bas is  on  wh ich  th i s  dec i s ion  was  

taken.   Look what  was be ing  sa id  here .  
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MR SINGH:    Hence,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  say  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  does not  make sense.   Maybe I  am 

be ing  unfa i r  to  h im but  tha t  i s  how I  read i t .  

MR SINGH:    Be ing  unfa i r  to?  

CHAIRPERSON :    To  Mr  Gama,  tha t  –  because the  

in te rpre ta t ion  I  pu t  to  what  he  says,  I  a t tach  to  what  he  is  

say ing ,  makes h im more  –  makes h im cr i t i ca l  to  those who 

made the  dec i s ion  or  maybe those who presented  a  case 

whereas the  in te rpre ta t ion  you –  the  mean ing  you a t tach  to  

i t  i s  more  about  the  m inutes  and not  about  the  peop le .  10 

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  hence,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  peop le  cou ld  have  

on ly  go t  th is  f rom the  submiss ion .   So the  submiss ion  is  

ac tua l l y  –  I  th ink  you took us  to  the  submiss ion ,  i t  was tha t  

long one.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A f te r  tha t .  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  so  …[ in tervenes ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The submiss ion  is  a t  page 244.  

MR SINGH:    Bu t  in  a  d i f fe ren t  bund le ,  r igh t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  i s  in  Ca l la rd ’s  bund le .  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  244.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wou ld  they no t  have sought  to  capture  

what  was sa id  a t  the  meet ing  as  opposed to  what  was in  

the  memorandum? 

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  I  cou ld  no t  hear  you,  S i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wou ld  they no t  have sought  to  capture  
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what  was a t  the  meet ing  as  opposed to  what  was wr i t ten  in  

the  memorandum,  those who prepared the  m inutes?  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  cannot  comment  fo r  what  

they had captured but  I  can ce r ta in ly  comment  on  what  was  

presented.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    Because what  was presented was what  was  

phys i ca l l y  say ing  by  myse l f ,  wh ich  is  bas ica l l y  conta ined in  

244 r igh t  th rough to  267 and Mr  Cha i r  you w i l l  see  the  

reason why the  re ferences to  GE come in to  the  m inutes  is  10 

because we were  ask ing  fo r  two  th ings to  happen,  fo r  a  

conf inement  to  CSR for  100 locomot ives ,  19E equ iva len ts  

o f  26  ton  locomot ives  and c lass  43  d iese l  locomot ives  f rom 

GE.   So there  were  two conf inements  tha t  were  be ing  done 

a t  the  same t ime  w i th  one memo.   So when the  d iscuss ion  

was be ing  reco rded I  wou ld  assume tha t  they were  

confus ing  CSR w i th  GE and GE w i th  CSR and tha t  i s  the  

reason why th is  i s  the  way i t  i s .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you wou ld  no t  have co r rec ted  the  

m inutes  when they were  c i rcu la ted? 20 

MR SINGH:    They shou ld  have been cor rec ted .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  do  you remember  hav ing  ra ised the  

issue because I  assume tha t  hav ing  a t tended they  wou ld  

be  c i r cu la ted  to  you as  we l l?  

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  they wou ld  have been c i r cu la ted  to  
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me,  Mr  Cha i r,  bu t  I  do  no t  reca l l  hav ing  cor rec ted  them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  thank  you.   And then le t  me 

take you to  two o ther  passages p lease,  page 250.168 o f  Mr  

Gama’s  bund le .  

MR SINGH:    250  po in t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    250.168.   R igh t  a t  the  foo t  o f  the  

page he addresses the  i ssue o f  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  the  100  

locomot ives  aga in  a t  77 .1 .    

“TFR had se t  ou t  to  p rocure  100 locomot ives  f rom 10 

the  coa l  l ine  f rom Mi tsu i  in  l ine  w i th  the  19E 

acqu is i t ion .   The BADC dete rmined tha t  we had 

u t i l i sed  conf inement  as  a  procurement  s t ra tegy w i th  

Mi tsu i  on  two prev ious occas ions  and tha t  th is  d id  

no t  permi t  a  th i rd  acqu is i t ion  f rom Mi tsu i .   The  

GCEO and GCFO subsequent l y  requested a  

conf inement  to  CSR and the  BADC agreed to  the  

request .   The dec i s ion  was taken wh i l s t  I  was  

pro tes t ing  the  appropr ia teness  o f  the  request  

hav ing  regard  to  the  fac t  tha t  CSR had no  20 

es tab l i shed h i s to ry  w i th  the  prov is ion  o f  s im i la r  

locomot ives  in  South  A f r i ca .   Subsequent  to  the  

approva l  o f  the  a foresa id  request  by  the  BADC 

which  mot iva ted  i t s  dec is ion  to  the  board ,  

Transnet ’s  techn ica l  des ign  team engaged w i th  CSR 
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to  c rea te  p ro to t ypes where  a f te r  the  locomot ives  

were  de l i vered and employed on the  coa l  l ine .   They 

were  named 21E ser ies . ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  any o f  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r ,  aga in  you w i l l  see  tha t  th is  i ssue o f  

the  reason –  Mr  Gama and I  in t roduced a  new reason  

regard ing  the  CSR dec is ion  in  tha t  CSR had not  deve loped  

these type o f  locomot ives  be fore  and he had a  concern .   

Th is  i s  now an add i t iona l  concern  compared  to  h is  

concerns tha t  he  had on the  23  January  in  the  emai l  tha t  10 

he  had sent  to  me.  

 Mr  Cha i r ,  a lso  I  th ink  when he says tha t :  

“Transnet  techn ica l  des ign  team engage w i th  CSR 

to  c rea te  p ro to t ypes where  a f te r  the  locomot ives  

were  de l i ve red and employed on the  coa l  l ine”  

I  th ink  I  take  i ssue w i th  tha t ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  because you w i l l  

have re ference to  a  document  tha t  I  have inc luded in  my 

a f f idav i t ,  no t  fo r  th is  purpose,  bu t  i t  does –  had ra ised th is  

concern  tha t  Mr  Gama has ra ised  here .   I t  re fe rs  to  a  –  

maybe we can ac tua l l y  f ind  i t ,  i t  w i l l  then make i t  much 20 

eas ier .   Do we know where  Har r i s ’  –  tha t  Har r is  repor t ,  in  

wh ich  a f f idav i t  the  Har r is  repor t?   Mr  Cha i r ,  I  make fo r  a  

coup le  o f  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Your  lega l  team wi l l  have a  look,  i f  they  

f ind  i t  they  w i l l  le t  us  know.  
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MR SINGH:    Okay,  i t  i s  Har r is  repor t .   I  th ink  i t  i s  in  the  

100 or  the  1060 …[ in tervenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Cha i rman,  I  th ink  perhaps we 

shou ld  take  a  –  i f  you  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  a  shor t  a f te rnoon  

break fo r  f i ve  or  ten  m inutes  then  we can sor t  th is  ou t  so  

tha t  Mr  S ingh and h i s  counse l  can be a f fo rded an 

oppor tun i ty  to  converse .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  I  th ink  le t  us  cont inue,  i f  they  

have not  so r ted  i t  ou t  by  four  o ’c lock  when we take the  

shor t  ad journment… 10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  le t  us  cont inue fo r  now.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sure .  

MR SINGH:    So ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  wh i le  we look fo r  the  repor t ,  the  

repor t  i s  –  we l l ,  we have te rmed i t  the  Har r is  repor t .   I t  i s  a  

repor t  f rom Mr  Fr ikk ie  Har r is .   Mr  Fr i kk ie  Har r i s  I  th ink  was 

the  programme d i rec tor  o f  the  cap i ta l  p rogramme wi th in  

TFR and the  pu rpose o f  tha t  repor t ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  was to  

eva lua te  the  techn ica l  submiss ion  f rom CSR.   So remember  

th is  i s  how th is  wou ld  have happened.  20 

 As I  exp la ined before ,  the  conf inement  happens on 

day one,  so  the  conf inement  i s  approved.   Once a  

conf inement  i s  an  approved then  an RFP re la t ing  to  that  

conf inement  i s  p repared.   So TFR went  o f f  and then  

prepared a  request  fo r  p roposa l  re la t ing  to  the  conf inement  
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o f  these 100 locomot ives  tha t  we then requ i red  f rom CSR.    

 I  th ink  tha t  le t te r  was then s igned by  Br ian  in  –  

somet ime in  February  and d i spatched to  CSR.   CSR then  

wou ld  have had to  respond w i th  the  requ i rements  o f  tha t  

RFP fo r  the  100.  

 One o f  the  re turnab le  documents  o f  tha t  100 RFP,  

Mr  Cha i r ,  I  wou ld  assume,  was the  techn ica l  spec i f i ca t ions  

o f  these locos.   What  wou ld  they  do ,  what  wou ld  they no t  

do ,  how do they  do  i t  and so  on  and i t  was th is  Har r is  

repor t  –  o r  Mr  Fr ikk ie  Har r is  repor t  tha t  e f fec t i ve l y  10 

assessed the  techn ica l  requ i rements  or  the  techn ica l  

operab i l i t y  o f  these locomot ives  w i th  the  cur ren t  19E Mi tsu i  

locomot ives  and,  Mr  Cha i r ,  tha t  repor t  bas i ca l l y  found tha t  

the  21E locomot i ves  tha t  were  ac tua l l y  p roposed by  CSR 

were  ac tua l l y  acceptab le  and adap tab le  and operab le  w i th  

the  19E Mi tsu i  locomot ives  tha t  were  cur ren t ly  dep loyed on 

the  coa l  l ine .  

 So i t  d id  f ind  one except ion ,  wh ich  I  th ink  was a  

m inor  except ion  bu t  overa l l  i t  sa id  i t  was operab le  or  

in te roperab le  and  when we f ind  the  repor t  we can read you 20 

the  f ina l  conc lus ion  o f  tha t  document ,  Mr  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you .   And then cou ld  I  take  

you,  jus t  to  end o f f  on  Mr  Gama’s  vers ion  to  page 145 o f  

h is  bund le ,  bund le  7?  
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MR SINGH:    145? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    145,  towards the  beg inn ing .   A re  you 

a t  145?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  wou ld  want  to  d i rec t  you r  a t ten t ion  

to  paragraph 30.2 .1  a  the  top  o f  the  page.   

“The wr i t ten  recommendat ion  to  p rocure  100  

locomot ives  …[ in tervenes]  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry ,  S i r ,  you are  a t  145?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    145.  10 

MR SINGH:    In  Gama’s…? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  fo rge t  about  250 po in t  someth ing ,  go  

back to  jus t  145.  

MR SINGH:    Okay,  145.   I t  s ta rs  w i th  paragraph 37?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No,  i t  s ta r ts  a t  parag raph 30.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  page 30 o f  h is  a f f idav i t .  

MR SINGH:    Page 30?  

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  h is  a f f idav i t .  

MR SINGH:    Okay,  page 30 o f  h is… 

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  h is  a f f idav i t .   Can you see pa ragraph 20 

30.2 .1?  

MR SINGH:    No,  I  have got  paragraph 64.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  there  somebody who can he lp  h im? 

MR SINGH:    Oh,  sor ry .   I  am there ,  S i r .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   A t  paragraph 30.2 .1  Mr  
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Gama says:  

“The wr i t ten  recommendat ion  to  p rocure  100 

locomot ives  f rom CSR was s igned by  the  CFO Mr 

Ano j  S ingh and the  GCEO,  a t  the  t ime Br ian  Mole fe ,  

in  c i rcumstances where  I  was o f  the  v iew tha t  CSR 

d id  no t  have the  capab i l i t y  to  manufac tu re  heavy 

hau l  locomot ive . ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    We l l ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  aga in ,  as  I  wou ld  br i ng  you 

back to  tha t  ema i l  o f  the  23  January  where  Mr  Gama d id  10 

not  ra ise  the  issue o f  CSR’s  manufac tu r ing  ab i l i t y ,  he  jus t  

ra ised the  issue  o f  the  fac t  tha t  CSR wou ld  need to  

manufac ture  most  o f  these locomot ives  o f fshore  ra ther  

than do i t  a t  PE wh ich  wou ld  impact  on  our  loca l i sa t ion  

ob jec t i ves .  

 Th is  i s  in t roduced as  a  new concern ,  in  my v iew,  as  

he  had not  ra ised  i t  w i th  us  in  the  emai l  no r  had he  ra ised 

i t  a t  the  BADC meet ing  or  a t  the  meet ing  be fo re  t ha t  and 

as  you wou ld  see in  the  Har r is  repor t ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  tha t  the  

CSR d id  have the  ab i l i t y  to  p roduce heavy hau l  locomot ives  20 

and Harr i s  ac tua l l y  in  fac t  s igned  o f f  on  the  fac t  t ha t  the  

techn ica l  spec i f i ca t ions tha t  were  submi t ted  fo r  the  21E  

locomot ives  was  in te roperab le  w i th  the  19E locomot ives  

f rom Mi tsu i .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then a t  30 .2 .2 :  
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“ I  was in fo rmed by  the  GCEO tha t  Mr  Sharma,  the  

Cha i r  o f  the  d isposa l  and acqu is i t ion  commi t tee  had  

not  permi t ted  any fu r ther  p rocu rement  by  way o f  

conf inement  f rom Mi tsu i .   I  deny tha t  I  was  

respons ib le  fo r  mak ing  a  recommendat ion  to  the  

ADC and tha t  I  fa i led  in  my f iduc ia ry  du t ies  dur ing  

the  acqu is i t ion  o f  100 locomot i ves  fo r  CSR as 

a l leged. ”  

Perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  ask  you to  comment  on  the  f i rs t  pa r t  

f i rs t .   He says he  was in fo rmed  by  Mr  Mole fe  tha t  Mr  10 

Sharma wou ld  no t  permi t  any fu r ther  conf inement  to  Mi tsu i .  

MR SINGH:    No,  Mr  Cha i r ,  I  cannot  comment  on  what  Mr  

Mole fe  had e i the r  d iscussed or  d id  no t  d iscuss w i th  Mr  

Gama.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Sharma.  

MR SINGH:    I  mean Mr  Sharma.   So I  cannot  comment  on  

tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    D id  he  express th is  v iew a t  the  

BADC meet ing ,  Mr  Sharma? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r ,  tha t  –  the  on ly  –  we l l ,  my on ly  20 

reco l lec t ion  is  f rom the  documents  tha t  have been 

presented regard ing  th is  mat te r  and the  meet ing  tha t  –  the  

BADC tha t  happened in  October  2013 where  the  Mi tsu i  

conf inement  was  e i ther  served or  d id  no t  serve  and was  

w i thdrawn wou ld  be  where  th is  t ype o f  conversa t ion  I  wou ld  
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expect  wou ld  have happened  un less  there  was a  

conversa t ion  tha t  happened outs ide  tha t  meet ing ,  I  do  no t  

know.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh,  th is  i s  an  issue tha t  you 

dea l  w i th  in  one o f  your  a f f idav i t s .   Perhaps I  cou ld  take  

you to  page 5C,  to  page 1465.   The f i les  are  s tack ing  up .  

MR SINGH:    Page,  S i r?   15…? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    1465.   Sor ry ,  be fore  we dea l  w i th  the 

content ,  perhaps  I  cou ld  ask  you,  why is  i t  tha t  you 

suppor ted  a  conf inement  to  CSR? 10 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r ,  in  my v iew a t  the  t ime there  was  

obv ious ly  the  issue o f  the  revenue a t  r i sk  and  i t  was 

becoming more  and more  urgent  tha t  we ac tua l l y  address 

th is  i ssue.   So f rom tha t  perspec t ive ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  I  be l ieve  

tha t  the  grounds fo r  u rgency re la t ing  to  conf inement  wou ld  

have been met .  

 In  te rms o f  the  change f rom Mi tsu i  to  CSR,  Mr  

Cha i r ,  to  be  qu i te  honest ,  I  was ac tua l l y  ind i f fe ren t .   As  I  

suppor ted  the  memo to  Mi tsu i  in  October  wh ich  was then 

w i thdrawn o r  was not  approved,  wh ichever  the  case may  20 

be,  fo r  me,  I  was ind i f fe ren t  be tween e i the r  one o f  them.    

 Mr  Mole fe  gave the  ins t ruc t ion ,  I  d id  no t  rea l l y  f ind  

d i f f i cu l t y  w i th  i t  because o f  the  h is to ry  tha t  we had w i th  

Mi tsu i .   On the  –  we had occas ion  to  acqu i re  locomot ives  

prev ious l y  f rom Mi tsu i ,  110 coa l  l ine  locomot ives ,  wh ich  i s  
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19Es tha t  Mr  Gama speaks about  and Mr  Ca l la rd  speaks 

about  and we a lso  I  th ink  acqu i red ,  i f  memory  se rv i ces ,  45  

i ron  o re  locomot ives  fo r  the  i ron  ore  l ine ,  a l so  heavy hau l  

locomot ives .  

 Mr  Cha i r ,  we d id  have,  i f  memory  serves,  qu i te  a  

s ign i f i can t  –  o r  we l l ,  no t  qu i te  s ign i f i can t ,  a  number  o f  

i ssues w i th  the  locomot ives  in  te rms o f  commiss ion ing  and 

there  was an inord ina te  amoun t  o f  de lay  in  te rms o f  

commiss ion ing  these locomot ives .    

I f  I  reca l l  co r rec t l y ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  aga in  I  am speak ing  o f  s tu f f  10 

tha t  happened years  ago,  there  were  pena l t ies  tha t  were  

ac tua l l y  lev ied  aga ins t  Mi tsu i  fo r  the  de lay  o r  the  la te  

de l i very  o f  these  locomot ives .   There  were  i ssues re la t ing  

to  –  I  cannot  remember  the  techn ica l  i ssues tha t  re la ted  to  

why these locomot ives  were  no t  be ing  commiss ioned but  

aga in ,  the  reason why I  go t  to  know about  these th ings is  

because i t  had an impact  on  the  ab i l i t y  o f  F re igh t  Ra i l  to  

de l i ver  vo lumes and tha t  became a  f inanc ia l  i ssue in  te rms 

o f  the  budget  [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

 And the  second issue why I  was aware  o f  th is ,  Mr  20 

Cha i r,  was when they had a  cont rac tua l  d ispute  in  te rms o f  

the  pena l t ies  tha t  needed to  be  pa id ,  I  then got  invo lved in  

t ry ing  to  a rb i t ra te  or  med ia te  be tween Mi tsu i  and Transnet  

in  te rms o f  what  the  va lue  shou ld  be .   I  do  no t  know what  

the  va lue  ac tua l l y  ended up be ing  but  I  th ink ,  i f  I  reca l l  
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cor rec t l y,  some amount  was pa id  by  Mi tsu i  re la t ing  to  these  

locomot ives .  

 So i t  was a  h is to r ic  i ssue in  te rms  o f  be ing  ab le  t o  

have comfor t  tha t  Mi tsu i  w i l l  de l i ver  th i s  19E equ iva len ts  

w i thout  the  issues tha t  we had p rev ious ly.  

 Second ly,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  proposa l  tha t ,  i f  I  reca l l  

cor rec t l y,  tha t  came f rom Mi tsu i  re la t ing  to  the  new batch  –  

remember,  there  was a  110 tha t  came and was de l i vered,  

had prob lems,  we  are  now order ing  a  new batch  o f  100 and 

these batches,  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y  in  te rms o f  the  10 

o f fe r  tha t  came f rom Mi tsu i ,  because the  de l i very  t ime l ine  

re la t ing  to  these  locos had now been compressed,  there  

were  numerous cond i t ions  tha t  came in  the  orde r.    

 L ike ,  fo r  example ,  they had not  ye t  rece ived the  

approva l  o f  the i r  subcont rac tor  in  te rms o f  be ing  ab le  to  

de l i ver  these locomot ives ,  so  they s t i l l  needed to  engage 

w i th  the i r  locomot ives .   We needed to  s ign  the  no t ice  to  

p roceed by  a  cer ta in  da te  in  o rder  fo r  them to  do  what  they  

needed to  do  to  de l i ver  the  locomot ives  by  a  cer ta in  da te .  

 In  o rde r  fo r  them to  meet  le t  us  ca l l  i t  the  20 

aggress ive  de l i very  t imef rame,  they needed to  take  

ex i s t ing  19E locomot ive  par t s  tha t  was in  Transnet ’s  s tock  

to  pu t  them in to  the  p roduct ion  l ine  to  p roduce these  

locomot ive .   Now,  Mr  Cha i r,  in  my mind,  i f  you  a l ready  

have a  prob lem on the  coa l  l ine  where  i t  i s  no t  meet ing  i t s  
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budgeted vo lumes then you are  go ing  to  take  pa r ts  tha t  

you may requ i re  fo r  the  cur ren t  ex is ten t  f lee t  to  be  ab le  to  

meet  the  a l ready  underper fo rming  coa l  l ine  to  m i t iga te  the  

very  same r isk  you are  ac tua l l y  pe rpetuat ing  the  r i sk  i f  you  

need the  locomot ives  to  b reak down and need these  par ts .  

 So,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  19E le t  us  ca l l  i t  rev ised  

proposa l  f rom Mi t su i  came wi th  i t s  own se t  o f  r i sks  tha t  in  

my v iew jus t  inc reased the  opera t iona l  r i sk  re la t ing  to  the 

vo lumes a t  r i sk .   So tha t  was the  reason why,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  

d id  no t  rea l l y  fee l  ind i f fe ren t  be tween Mi tsu i  o r  CSR a t  the 10 

t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you express those v iews in  

parag raphs in  par t i cu la r  52  o f  you r  a f f idav i t ,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  you say:  

“My conf idence leve ls  in  Mi tsu i  be ing  ab le  to  meet  

i t s  p roposed very  aggress ive  de l i very  schedu le  was 

low due to  the  fo l low ing…”  

And you se t  those reasons out .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  you a re  read ing  f rom…? 20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Page 1465,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bund le  5C.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  ja .   Okay,  I  am there .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh,  do  you w ish  to  h igh l igh t  
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any th ing  fu r ther  o r  i s  –  I  th ink  you have addressed those  

po in ts ,  have you?  

MR SINGH:    I  do ,  bu t  now tha t  we are  here ,  I  am jus t  

look ing  fo r  the  re ference to  my Harr is  repor t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Har r i s  repor t .   But  I  see i t  i s  a lmost  

four  o ’c lock ,  so  you w i l l  ge t  a  chance to… 

MR SINGH:    Bu t  you cont inue,  I  w i l l  f ind  i t  a t  tea .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Can I  now take you …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  am sor ry,  Mr  Myburgh.   What  do  

you say,  Mr  S ingh,  in  paragraph 153 does not  seem to  be  10 

cons is ten t  w i th  what  you have jus t  sa id  namely  you were  

ind i f fe ren t  whether  i t  was CSR or  Mi tsu i  who got  to  do  the  

job .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  th is  re la tes  to  the  reasons why I  

be l ieved the  conf inement  wou ld  be  appropr ia te  to  CSR in  

add i t ion  to  the  fac t  tha t  there  was urgency.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Ja ,  bu t  I  unders tood you  to  be  

say ing  u l t imate ly  your  a t t i tude was rea l l y  i t  d id  no t  mat te r  

much to  you whe ther  u l t imate ly  i t  was CSR or  Mi tsu i  who 

got  the  job .  20 

MR SINGH:    Yes ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  in  my v iew a t  the  t ime whethe r  

we were  go ing  w i th  Mi tsu i  o r  whe ther  we were  go ing  w i th  

CSR we were  s t i l l  go ing  to  p rocu re  them on the  bas i s  o f  

u rgency because  the  coa l  l ine  vo lumes were  a t  r i sk ,  the  

1064 prog ramme was beh ind  schedu le  so  the  on ly  way to  
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m i t iga te  tha t  r i sk  was to  ac tua l l y  ge t  the  locomot ives .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  you are  say ing  tha t  what  you were  

say ing  re la ted  to  the  ab i l i t y  o f  e i ther  to  de l i ver .  

MR SINGH:    To  de l i ver ,  exact ly .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  here  you are  dea l ing  w i th  the  issue  

o f  u rgency in  re la t ion  to  each one o f  them.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cou ld  I  then take  you to  Fundudz i  10 

repor t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wou ld  th is  be  r igh t  t ime to  take  the  ten  

m inutes  ad journment?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We d id  no t  ta l k  in  the  morn ing  about  

whethe r  you were  ab le  to  make a  p lan  and be ab le  to  

ensure  tha t  we can cont inue.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  I  am not  sure  i f  we  

d iscussed i t  in  the  morn ing  bu t  I  –  u l t imate ly  we were  ab le  

to  ensure  tha t  we can s i t  t i l l  f i ve .   I  cou ld  no t  ex tend i t  20 

beyond tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Unt i l  f i ve?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    I  th ink  I  to ld  my learned f r iend 

about  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    How are  we do ing  in  te rms o f  how much 
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t ime wou ld  we need?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  we are  no t  go ing  to  be  f in ished 

by  f i ve ,  I  am a f ra id .  

CHAIRPERSON :    By  f i ve ,  bu t  how t ime do we need –  and  

th is  i s  no t  to  pu t  p ressure ,  jus t  want  to  assess so  as  to  

take  a  judgment  ca l l  as  to  what  shou ld  happen.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  DCJ,  I  th ink  tha t  we w i l l  p robab ly  

f in ish  the  100 locomot ives  in  an  hour .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    O f  course  we s t i l l  need to  dea l  w i th  10 

the  1064 locomot ives .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And tha t  there  i s  a  b ig  chunk o f  

ev idence tha t  needs to  be  led .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Par t i cu la r ly  a round the  increase in  

the  ETC.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Wel l  –  and tha t  par t  tha t  we w i l l  

no t  have f in ished ,  we w i l l  no t  have  s tar ted  a f te r  an  hour .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wou ld  i t  need ha l f  a  day,  wou ld  i t  need a 

day?  What  i s  your  assessment?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  wou ld  th ink  i t  can  be done in  less  

than a  day.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  th ink  tha t  what  needs to  be  done is  

to  f ind  a  way to  p resent  to  you  maybe in  a  fo rm o f  a  

schedu le  or  someth ing  the  var ious d i f fe ren t  vers ions in  

re la t ion  to  the  increase in  the  ETC.   There  are  two exper t  

repor ts ,  e tce tera .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  –  bu t  I  th ink  tha t  cou ld  be  done in  

a  few hours ,  I  do  no t  th ink  we need a  who le  day ,  DCJ,  I  

th ink  we need a t  leas t  ha l f  a  day.   I  do  no t  know i f  we 

cou ld  f i t  i t  in to  a  n igh t  sess ion .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Wel l ,  tha t  suggests  to  me tha t  we 

shou ld  do  as  much as  we can today.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because we do  not  have t ime.   I  th ink  

what  you may have to  cons ider  i s  whethe r  i f  you  have to  

leave a t  f i ve  and o f  course  your  c l ien t  m ight  have to  

cons ider  tha t  as  we l l .   I  assume your  ins t ruc t ing  a t to rney  

does not  have to  leave a t  f i ve ,  whether  we cou ld  proceed  

in  your  absence but  in  the  presence o f  Mr  S ingh ’s  a t to rney 

on  the  unders tand ing  tha t  i f ,  as  we go a long,  Mr  S ingh,  20 

there  are  quest i ons tha t  he  is  uncomfo r tab le  to  answer  

w i thout  ge t t ing  –  ta lk ing  to  you,  we  cou ld  take  i t  f rom there  

bu t  we t r y  and  make as  much  prog ress as  we can.   

Obv ious l y  the  t ranscr ip t  can be ava i lab le  fo r  you to  look  a t  

a f te rwards.   Maybe le t  us  ad journ  and then maybe you can 
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ta lk  to  me,  a l l  s ides can ta lk  to  me in  chambers  bu t  we 

have to  t ry  and do as  much as  poss ib le .    

Okay,  we ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  con t inue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you Cha i rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON:    The ar rangement  i s  tha t  we w i l l  s top  a t  

f i ve  and then we w i l l  con t inue on Monday f rom 4  o ’c lock  in  

the  a f te rnoon.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you Cha i r.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Conf i rmed Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you,  okay,  a l r igh t .     

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  S ingh  I  unders tand you have  

loca ted the  so-ca l led  Har r is  repor t?  

MR SINGH:    Indeed s i r.    Jus t  fo r  an  indu lgence fo r  one,  

two minutes  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja?  

MR SINGH:   You reca l l  I  gave you  a  br ie f  summary o f  what  

the  Har r is  Repor t  en ta i led .   Apo log ies ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  d id  say  20 

tha t  i t  was an annexure  to  one o f  my a f f idav i t s  ac tua l l y,  i t  

i s  no t  an  annexure  we re fe renced -  i f  you  i f  you  go to  

Bund le  5C.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bund le  5C? 

MR SINGH:    Bund le  5C.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    And  you go to  page 1463 you w i l l  see  there  is  

a  -  i t  s ta r ts  a t  paragraph 144.  

CHAIRPERSON:    154?  

MR SINGH:    No,  page 1463.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  ja .  

MR SINGH:    1463 and then the  page s ta r ts  a t  pa rag raph  

144.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    And  i t  i s  headed:  10 

“Sa l ien t  fea tures  o f  the  cap i ta l  p rogram locomot ive  

repor t . ”  

And paragraph 144 says:  

“A t  Transnet  re fe rence Bund le  08702.  So in  the  

Commiss ions records a t  08702.  Mr  Har r is  au thored 

th is  repor t ,  and i t  was dated the  14 t h  o f  March and  

the  purpose o f  the  repor t  was to  ass i s t  s tab i l i t y  o f  

the  new CSR locomot ives  to  work  w i th  ex is t ing  19E 

locomot ives  i n  the  coa l  l ine  and th is  was done by  

assess ing  the  techn ica l  p roposa l  rece ived f rom CSR 20 

regard ing  the  100 locomot ive  coa l  l ine  locomot ives .  

The conc lus ion  reached by  Har r is  in  the  repor t  was 

tha t  the  CSR locomot ive  o f fe red  a lmost  the  same 

character i s t i cs  as  the  19E locomot ives .  One  

d i f fe rence was noted was the  fac t  tha t  the  19E 
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locomot ives  was  bog ie  cont ro l led ,  and the  new 

locomot ive  was exce l  cont ro l led .   The CSR o f fe r  

was premised on  the  locomot ive bog ie  body she l l  

and a t t rac t ion  motor  redes igned fo r  heavy hau l  

app l i ca t ion .   

Paragraph 147:  

“ In  conc lus ion ,  Har r is  s ta tes  as  fo l lows based on 

fu r ther  d iscuss ions w i th  the  var ious spec ia l i s ts ,  the  

conc lus ion  is  tha t  the  proposed o f fe r ing  f rom CSR 

can be cons ide red as  a  su i tab le  locomot ive  fo r  10 

heavy hau l  app l i ca t ion  tha t  w i l l  be  capab le  o f  

work ing  w i th  the  c lass  19E on the  coa l  l ine . ”  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  S ingh,  can I  now take you to  the  

Fundudz i  Repor t ,  p lease.   Th is  you f ind  a t  Bund le  6  and i f  I  

cou ld  ask  you to  tu rn  to  page 130 and i f  I  cou ld  d i rec t  you r  

a t ten t ion  p lease to  paragraph 5 .6 .9 .9 ,  accord ing  to  Gama 

the  memorandum dated 21 January  2014,  to  conf ine  to  

CSR was changed a t  Transnet  Group and not  a t  TFR,  do  

you except  tha t?  20 

MR SINGH:    No,  Mr  Cha i r,  in  te rms o f  the  prev ious  

parag raphs tha t  we have read o f  th is  very  same repor t ,  I  

th ink  i t  i s  ev ident  tha t  the  document  was ac tua l l y  changed  

a t  TFR wi th  inpu ts  f rom Ms Mdle tshe and Mr  Ca l l a rd  and 

tha t  i s  the  same repor t  tha t  was  rece ived by  Mr  Gama,  
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wh ich  he  commented on.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Ca l la rd ,  you say gave input  to  

chang ing  i t .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l  Mr  Myburgh you  reca l l…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Remember  Mr  Ca l la rd  was very  upset  

tha t…[ in tervene]  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  bu t  Mr  Cha i r,  th is  was the  po in t  a t  wh ich  

Mr  Ca l la rd  rea l i sed tha t  CSR o r  Mi tsu i  has been changed  

to  CSR,  based on the  paragraph we read before .  So I  am 

say ing  Mr  Mole fe  and Mr  Ca l la rd  were  TFR employees but  10 

the  memo had been amended a t  TFR.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  a re  you suggest ing  tha t  Mr  Ca l la rd  

may have been invo lved in  chang ing  i t?  

MR SINGH:    Wel l  Mr  Cha i r,  he  admi ts  tha t  Ms Mdle tshe  

sent  the  document  to  h im fo r  some input ,  whe ther  he  

prov ided tha t  input  o r  no t ,  he  does not  say  tha t  eventua l l y  

the  same memo is  the  same memo tha t  he  then compla ins  

about  to  Mr  Gama,  a  day la te r,  a f te r  he  agon ised  over  i t  

tha t  n igh t ,  on  h is  vers ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  wha t  we have i f  you go to  20 

FQCO9,  perhaps i f  you  can you go  back to  tha t  p lease,  i t  i s  

Exh ib i t  BB4A.  So he says a t  pa rag raph 39:  

“On the  morn ing…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  what  i s  the  page number?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry,  I  beg your  pardon page 9 ,  



28 MAY 2021 – DAY 405 
 

Page 218 of 239 
 

DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  what  he  says a t  39 ,  i s  on  the  

morn ing…[ in tervene]  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry  39?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    39 .  

MR SINGH:    Oh sor ry.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Page 9 ,  pa ragraph 39:  

“On the  morn ing  o f  Wednesday 22 January  I  

rece ived a  mai l  f rom Mdle tshe f rom supp ly  cha in  10 

serv i ces  request ing  my ass is tance  in  fo rmat t ing  the  

memorandum.   When I  perused i t ,  I  no t iced tha t  the 

memorandum had been changed  to g ive  e f fec t  to  

conf i rm the  award  to  CSR. ”  

And then we know what  happens a f te r  tha t .   So are  you 

say ing  th is  re f lec ts  tha t  i t  was changed a t  TFR? 

MR SINGH:    Bu t  I  am confused because I  have s ta ted  tha t  

I  rece ived,  so  I  read f rom paragraph 39,  co r rec t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    “ I  rece ived the  mai l  f rom L ind iwe Mdle tshe 20 

f rom  

supp ly  cha in  serv ice . ”  

Ms Mdle tshe is  the  TFR employee.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  bu t  what  I  am t ry ing  to  ge t  a t ,  

a re  you say ing  i t  i s  TFR,  I  mean,  I  do  no t  know what  th is  
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person d id ,  they m ight  have very  we l l  have e f fec ted  

changes but  these are  no t  TFR dr iven changes.  I  mean 

your  own ev idence says i t  i s  you and Mole fe .  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  bu t  I  am say ing  tha t  the  changes tha t  

were  a f fec ted ,  i f  we needed to  change f rom CSR to  Mi tsu i  

i t  wou ld  be  an ins t ruc t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Bu t  i f  they  needed to  be  as  Mr  Gama sa id  

19E and 20E axe ls  and th is  and tha t  and every th ing  e lse ,  

tha t  wou ld  come f rom TFR.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So Mr  Gama says as  the  CEO of  

TFR tha t  he  d id  no t  suppor t  th is  change.  

MR SINGH:    Bu t  as  we have read ,  he  sa t  a t  the  BADC,  he 

got  the  memo.   He commented on the  memo.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  bu t  I  suppose 

the…[ in tervene]  

MR SINGH:    He subsequent ly  s igned the  memo.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  suppose the  Fundudz i  Repor t  

shows up the  prob lem and le t  us  go  back to  page 130,  tha t  

i s  Bund le  6 .   So jus t  so  tha t  you ,  you apprec ia te  th is ,  I  20 

read pa ragraph 5 .6 .9 .9  to  Mr  Gama.  

MR SINGH:    So  you are  now a t  one?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Back to  page 130.  

MR SINGH:    And  you a re  a t  pa rag raph?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    5 .6 .9 .9 ,  and then we get  to  what  i s  
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the  prob lem one  way or  the  o ther.   E i ther  p rob lem or  i t  

wou ld  be  reso lved by  your  ev idence i f  i t  was  to  be  

accepted.   A t  paragraph 5 .6 .9 .10 :  

“We determined  tha t  as  pe r  the  procurement  

p rocedures manua l  vers ion  2  October  2013 

requ i rement  the  end user  in  th is  case,  TFR shou ld  

be  the  one mot iva t ing  the  procurement  p rocess to  

be  fo l lowed i .e .  conf inement  o r  tender  be fo re  the  

memorandum may be taken to  the  Transnet  Group  

fo r  recommendat ion  to  BADC,  we  determined tha t  10 

Gama and Giann i  as  the  end users  d id  no t  mot iva te  

fo r  the  conf inement  o f  100 locomot ives  to  CSR. ”  

Your  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    We l l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  assume tha t  tha t  i s  

a r r i ved a t  by  v i r tue  o f  the  fac t  tha t  Mr  Gama d id  no t  

ac tua l l y  s ign  the  memo.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  a lso  ar r i ved a t  by  the  fac t  tha t  

acco rd ing  to  Mr  Gama,  i f  you  go  to  parag raph 5 .6 .9 .9  the  

memorandum dated 21 January  2014 to  conf ine  to  CSR 

was changed a t  Transnet  Group and not  a t  TFR.     20 

MR SINGH:    So ,  where  are  you,  s i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    5 .6 .9 .9  the  pa ragraph immedia te l y  

above.   

MR SINGH:    5 .6 .9 .9 ,  oh  yes,  yes .   So tha t  does not  accord  

w i th  Ms Mdle tshe  hav ing  access to  them.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  Mr  S ingh,  I  do  no t  know -   

perhaps I  have -  i t  i s  too  la te  in  t he  day,  bu t  who -  was i t  

you  and Mr  Mo le fe  tha t  wanted  to  change the  memo 

in i t ia l l y?  

MR SINGH:    The dec i s ion  to  change the  memo as I  

a l ready exp la ined ear l ie r,  was taken by  Mr  Mole fe ,  in  

say ing  le t  us  conf ine  to  CSR.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  so  tha t  we know,  the  memo 

has changed.   We know tha t  somewhere  a long the  l ine  i t  

seems tha t  Mr  Ca l la rd  ge ts  w ind  o f  th is  and he compla ins  10 

to  Mr  Gama.   So i t  i s  Mr  Mole fe ’s  ins t ruc t ion?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:     What  d id  you do?  

MR SINGH:    As  I  exp la ined before ,  when he d id  say tha t  I  

wou ld  have e i ther  communica ted  w i th  someone in  g roup  

procurement ,  who wou ld  have been  communica ted  w i th  

TFR in  te rms o f  the  ins t ruc t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  bu t  the  po in t  i s  i t  i s  a  g roup 

dec is ion .   I  mean,  whoever  d id  the  word  process ing  tha t  i s  

no t  what  i s  impor tan t  here .   Th i s  i s  as  I  unders tand  i t ,  and 20 

you must  co r rec t  me i f  I  am wrong,  because i t  i s  an  

impor tan t  p iece  o f  ev idence.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Your  vers ion  is  i t  i s  a  g roup dec is ion  

by  Mr  Mole fe  and  then fu r thered o r  car r i ed  ou t  by  you.   
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MR SINGH:    Agree.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  who d id  the  word  process ing  you  

accept  i s  no t  the  issue?  

MR SINGH:    I f  you -  I  need to  unders tand what  your  

p ropos i t ion  is ,  and then I  can say  to  you word  process ing  

is  o f  no  concern .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  seem to  remember,  I  do  no t  know 

whethe r  i t  was Mr  Ca l la rd  or  somebody e l se  who was  10 

g iv ing  ev idence dur ing  the  f i rs t  phase,  now tha t  we  ta lk ing  

about  i t .   I  seem to  remember,  as  i f  somebody tes t i f ied  tha t  

an  ins t ruc t ion  came f rom I  do  no t  know,  whether  f rom Mr  

Mole fe  or  f rom group leve l  to  e i ther  TFR or  to  a  par t i cu la r  

person to  say change the  memorandum.  

I  seem to  th ink  tha t  bu t  i f  tha t  i s  what  happened,  i t  

wou ld  accord  w i th  the  dec i s ion  hav ing  been taken a t  g roup 

leve l  and whoever  e lse  hav ing  to  maybe g ive  e f fec t  to  i t  i f  

tha t  was the  case,  bu t  one might  have to  doub le  check.   

But  what  seems to  be  c lea r,  one  f rom the  fac t  tha t  i t  i s  20 

peop le  a t  g roup leve l  who s igned i t  a t  leas t  a t  the  t ime the  

mat te r  went  to  the  BADC on your  own ev idence i t  was Mr  

Mole fe  who took the  dec i s ion .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    My memory  m ight  be  wrong,  Mr  Myburgh 
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bu t  I  am jus t  say ing ,  I  seem to  th ink  tha t  I  had ev idence o f  

somebody who was unhappy tha t  they were  be ing  made to 

e f fec t  changes tha t  they were  no t  happy w i th ,  bu t  had to  

comply  w i th  ins t ruc t ions or  someth ing  l i ke  tha t .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  th ink  we d ispute  tha t  the  

dec is ion  was taken a t  g roup.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  i f  the  dec is ion  was taken a t  g roup 

leve l ,  then I  assume tha t  i f  the  changes were  made be low 

tha t  i t  wou ld  on ly  have been on ins t ruc t ions I  wou ld  

imag ine .  10 

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    The  prev ious d i scuss ions tha t  we were  hav ing  

Mr  Cha i r,  regard ing  the  issue o f  the  changes  in  my 

unders tand ing  re la ted  to  whether  Mr  Gama was aware  o f  

these changes or  no t  p r io r  to  the  BADC and then not  as  to  

whethe r  the  ins t ruc t ion  have come f rom g roup or  no t ,  I  

th ink  tha t  I  was c lea r  about  the  dec i s ion  was made by  Mr 

Mole fe  i t  was communica ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  what  i t  wou ld  mean,  wha t  i t  may 20 

mean might  be  tha t  i f  Mr  Gama d id  u l t imate ly  go  a  long 

maybe i f  the  boss has dec ided,  maybe the  boss has  

dec ided,  I  do  no t  know.  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  he  d id  send a  mai l  to  say  

these were  h is  concerns.   So,  he  was a t  l iber ty  to  say no ,  
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i f  he  had sa id  h i s  concerns,  Mr  Mole fe  was a lso  aware  o f  

the  concern  because I  sent  the  mai l  to  h im,  so  he  was a t  

l iber ty  to  say no  a t  any s tage.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh I  may have  broaden 

your…[ in te rvene]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  was t ry ing  to  f ind  what  I  thought  

you had in  m ind DCJ but  a las  I  have not  been ab le  to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  and my memory is  no t  so  he lp fu l  

today.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I f  we car ry  on  tha t  a t  page 130,  the  10 

next  sub pa ragraph 5 .6 .9 .11  we determined tha t  pa rag raph  

15.1 .5  o f  the  2013 pm s ta tes  tha t :  

“The submiss ion  fo r  conf inement  must  be  fu l l y  

mot iva ted  in  wr i t ing  by  the  end user  and the  

opera t iona l  d iv i s ion  ch ie f  p rocurement  o f f i cer  [CFR 

OD] ,  to  the  opera t iona l  d iv is ions OD’s  main  

acqu is i t ion  counc i l  AC and the  opera t ion  no r  

d iv is ions ch ie f  execut ive  o f f i ce r,  [ODCO TFR]  fo r  a  

p r io r  wr i t ten  suppor t  fo r  the  recommendat ion  to  

conf ine .   The submiss ion  shou ld  be  submi t ted  on  20 

the  re levant  templa te  under  cover  o f  a  memo to  the  

GCE. ”   

Now do you say tha t  happened? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  th is  wou ld  have in  my v iew 

happened th rough the  document  tha t  was submi t ted  to  Mr  
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Gama on the  -  I  th ink  i t  was the  22 n d  wh ich  he  then  

responded on the  23 r d  w i th  h is  th ree  comments .   

Fur thermore ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  d id  fo rward  the  th ree  comments  to  

Mr  Mole fe  the  same morn ing  and the  meet ing  tha t  occur red  

pre  the  BADC was aga in  the  sub jec t  o f  d iscuss ion .  

Mr  Cha i r,  aga in  I  submi t  tha t  the  requ i rements  

re la t ing  to  the  ppm of  OD invo lvement  and s ign  o f f  was 

ach ieved in  some way th rough the  pre-meet ing  as  we l l  as  

the  a t tendance o f  TFR a t  the  meet ing  where  they  d id  no t  

ra ise  any concerns re la t ing  to  the  mat te r.   10 

I f  you read on in  the  Fundudz i  Repor t  Mr  Cha i r  you 

w i l l  see  tha t  they  ac tua l l y  do  ra i se  th is  i ssue o f  Mr  Gama 

actua l l y  a t tend ing  the  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  Fundudz i  Repor t  ge t  your  ve rs ion ;  I  

mean the  Fundudz i  invest iga to rs?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  they  d id  p rov ide  me an oppor tun i ty  

to  comment ,  we d id  comment  on  very  l im i ted  aspects .   I  

th ink  i t  was jus t  on  the  issue o f  -  no t  on  -  we d id  no t  

comment  on  the  locomot ives  o r  any Transnet  re la ted  

mat te rs ,  we had commented on the  Eskom repor t  I  th ink ,  20 

bu t  I  am not  too  sure  bu t  we d id  comment  on  the  i ssue o f  

the  FNB bank account ,  i f  you  reca l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I f  we cou ld  then dea l  w i th  the 

increase in  the  ETC f rom 3 .8b i l l i on  to  4 .8 .   We know tha t  
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the  tender  was then awarded to  CSR on the  17 t h  o f  March  

and Mr  Laher  had ev idence tha t  a f te rwards you requested  

h im to  prepare  a  memorandum exp la in ing  why the re  had  

been an inc rease f rom the  bus iness case submiss ion  to  

jus t i f y  what  had been agreed,  do  you conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then we know tha t  on  the  23 r d  o f  

May 2014,  you approved a  memo to  the  Board  o f  d i rec to rs  

fo r  an  inc rease in  the  ETC f rom 3 .8  to  4 .8 .  

MR SINGH:    Suppor t .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    From 3 .8  to  4 .8 .  

MR SINGH:    I  do  no t  th ink  I  approved,  I  suppor ted  h im on 

i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  le t  us  go  to  tha t  memo now,  

now tha t  memo you f ind  in  many d i f fe ren t  p laces bu t  

perhaps i t  i s  eas ies t  fo r  us  now,  to  go  to  the  bund le ,  tha t  i s  

Exh ib i t  BB 8 .2 .   

MR SINGH:    Le t  me do some housekeep ing  here .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A re  you the re?  

MR SINGH:    I  have the  f i le .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then i f  I  cou ld  ask  you there  

shou ld  be  a  d iv ider  in  there .   I f  you  go to  the  second par t  

and I  on l y  have read pages,  i t  i s  page 100-23.  

MR SINGH:    100? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Hyphen 23,  r igh t  towards the  back in  
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fac t ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  the  las t  document .   

MR SINGH:    100-23.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A re  you the re?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  I  am.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And le t  us  go  to  the  end  o f  the  

document  a t  page 36 you –  th is  i s  recommended by  

yourse l f  on  the  22n d  o f  May 2014.   

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A lso  by  Mr  Gama and then a lso  by  

Mr  Mole fe .  10 

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And what  you were  p ropos ing  to  the  

Board  o f  D i rec tors  i s  tha t  i t  recommended,  you 

recommended to  i t  tha t :  

“The Board  o f  D i rec tors  take  note  o f  the  main  

reasons fo r  the  increase in  the  ETC due to  the  

exc lus ion  o f  the  fo l low ing costs  f rom the  24 January  

2014 submiss ion . ”  

And they are  then  se t  ou t ,  and B :  

“The Board  o f  D i rec tors  approve an increase in  the  20 

es t imated to ta l  cos t ,  ETC for  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  the  

100 locomot ives  f rom 3 .871b i l l i on  to  4 .840b i l l i on . ”  

Cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And i f  you then go back to  page 23,  
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you  w i l l  see  as  you cor rec t l y  po in ted  out ,  th is  rea l l y  then,  

comes f rom Mr  Mole fe ,  you and  Mr  Gama hav ing  a lso  

recommended i t  to  the  Transnet  Board  o f  D i rec tors .   

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And i t  was then a…[ in tervene ]  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  Mr  Myburgh is  there  water?  

CHAIRPERSON:    You need water?  

MR SINGH:    I f  there  was one ava i lab le ,  i t  i s  f ine  then we 

can cont inue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  there  shou ld  a lways be wate r.  10 

MR SINGH:    Thank you Cha i r,  we can cont inue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  th i s  i s  a  memorandum tha t  was  

then p repared between 17 t h  o f  March when the  sa le  was  

conc luded and the  22n d  o f  May,  co r rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  over  a  two-month  pe r iod  or  i t  

took  two months .   Mr  Laher ’s  ev idence I  do  no t  know i f  you 

fami l ia r  w i th  i t ,  is  tha t  you asked  h im to  ass is t  w i th  the  

product ion  o f  th is  memorandum and tha t  you wou ld  send  

h im tex t  as  to  what  had to  be  typed in  and you wou ld  a f fec t  20 

the  amendments  e tce te ra .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  the  sequenc ing  in  events  was p robab ly  

what  I  d ispute  bu t  I  do  no t  th ink  I  d ispute  the  fac t  tha t  I  

wou ld  have sent  h im –  no .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And I  th ink  you have accepted  
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a l ready.  I  do  no t  know i f  i t  i s  w i th  re fe rence to  th is  o r  the  

1064 but  I  th ink  we d id  dea l  w i th  the  broad dea l ,  we spoke  

about  the  ETC increase memos tha t  th is  was your  p roduct ,  

your  work  produc t?  

MR SINGH:    In  te rms o f  the  prepara t ion  o f  the  document?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yeah.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    When both  -  cer ta in ly  Mr  Gama and I  

th ink  Mr  Mole fe  as  we l l  sa id  look ,  th is  i s  f inanc ia l  s tu f f ,  i t  

comes f rom Mr  S ingh.   10 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now,  what  we need to  jus t  work  our  

way th rough th is  document  bu t  what  I  w i l l  ask  you to  

comment  on  is  paragraph 14.   So and th is  app l ies  a lso  to  

the  1064 remember ing  tha t  they -  these two acqu is i t ions  

run  in  para l le l ,  pa rag raph 14:  

“A cont rac t  to  acqu i re  100 e lec t r i c  locomot ives  was  

conc luded w i th  CSR Pty  L td  on  17 .  March,  a t  a  cos t  

o f  4 .4b i l l i on ,  inc lud ing  the  cost  o f  fu tu re  esca la t ions  

and fo re ign  exchange hedg ing .   Thus resu l t ing  in  an  20 

increase o f  969mi l l ion . ”  

Someth ing  tha t  I  th ink  we grapp l ing  w i th ,  perhaps you can  

ass is t ,  Mr  S ingh is ,  what  i s  the  po in t  o f  go ing  to  the  Board  

o f  D i rec to rs ,  to  ask  fo r  c lose  to  a  b i l l i on- rand increase in  

the  ETC once the  cont rac t  i s  a l ready been entered in to?   I  
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mean,  what  i s  the  Board  supposed to  do ,  I  mean,  what  

wou ld  happen i f  they  say no?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  wou ld  be  an in te res t ing  quest ion  i f  they  

had sa id  no ,  the  -  I  guess the  i ssue is ,  Mr  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  

p rac t ica l l y,  i t  i s  very  d i f f i cu l t  to  es t imate  the  cost ,  the  exact  

cos t  o f  cap i ta l  equ ipment  g iven the  fac t  tha t  there  i s  a  long 

t ime between the  issue o f  –  we l l  a  long t ime be tween a  

bus iness case i f  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  approved,  on  wh ich  the  

procu rement  event  i s  p remised and the  ac tua l  conc lus ion  

o f  the  cont rac t .  10 

And there  a f te r  the  conc lus ion  o f  the  cont rac t  to  the  

ac tua l  de l i very  o f  the  product  because tha t  en t i re  

t imef rame,  Mr  Cha i r,  has to  be  quant i f ied  in  f inanc ia l  

te rms,  to  be  ab le  to  unders tand what  i s  the  ac tua l  f ina l  

cos t  o f  the  product .   So you have  to  keep t rack  o f  th is ,  o f  

the  f inanc ia l  impact  f rom the  -  le t  us  ca l l  i t  a  bus iness 

case,  approva l  da te  and the  assumpt ions conta ined there in  

r igh t  up  to  the  da te  on  wh ich  the  las t  the  las t  locomot ive  o r  

p roduct  i s  go ing  to  be  de l i ve red.   

Because the  f inanc ia l  impact  thereof  i s  ac tua l l y  on l y  20 

known on the  las t  day tha t  tha t  p roduct  i s  ac tua l l y  

de l i vered.  So when the  Board  is  s i t t ing  and approv ing  

these th ings,  Mr  Cha i r,  they  ac tua l l y  approve i t  on  the  

bas is  o f  the  in format ion  tha t  i s  ava i lab le  to  them a t  tha t  

po in t  in  t ime w i th  an  unders tand ing  tha t  economic  
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var iab les  tha t  change over  tha t  pe r iod  o f  t ime wou ld  impact  

tha t  cos t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  bu t  tha t  does not  answer  my 

quest ion  a t  a l l .   I  mean,  I  th ink  you can accept  tha t  

ev idence has been led  and cer ta in ly  f rom the  lega l  team's  

po in t  o f  v iew,  we  unders tand the  i n i t ia l  bus iness case and 

in i t ia l  ETC and  the  need to  i ncrease these,  we can 

unders tand tha t .  

And I  th ink  i t  was exp la ined we l l  by  Mr  Mole fe  and  

Mr  Co leman but  my concern  is  a  s l igh t ly  d i f fe ren t  one.   I  10 

mean,  I  th ink  you  accept  tha t  you had to  go  to  the  Board  to  

ge t  approva l  fo r  an  increase in  the  ETC o f  a  b i l l i on  rand.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  then su re ly  i t  must  fo l low tha t  Mr  

Mole fe  and you had to  go  to  the  Board  be fore  you  s igned 

the  cont rac t ,  wh ich  inc luded tha t  increase o f  a  b i l l i on  rand.  

MR SINGH:    Not  necessary.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    R igh t .   

MR SINGH:    So  i f  the  Board  had de legated the  au thor i t y  to  

negot ia te ,  and not  conc lude we wou ld  have to  go  back to  20 

ge t  an  approva l  t o  conc lude the  cont rac t .   In  th is  the  locos 

were  de legated the  au thor i t y  to  negot ia te  and conc lude.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  I  w i l l  use  the  words,  negot ia te  

and conc lude because we are  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  i t .   So  you 

say tha t  i s  what  happened.  
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MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  then why were  no t  you coming to 

the  Board  to  say  ra t i f y  my conc lus ion  o f  the  cont rac t ,  tha t  

i s  no t  what  you a re  do ing ,  you ask ing?  

MR SINGH:    Remember,  th is  i s  no t  -  th is  has go t  no th ing  

to  do  w i th  the  cont rac t .   Th i s  has go t  to  do  w i th  the  fac t  

tha t  the  Board  in  te rms o f  the  de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y  

approved the  cap i ta l  equ i ty.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.   

MR SINGH:    Remember,  the  procurement  event  i s  now 10 

done.  ADV MYBURGH SC:    R igh t .  

MR SINGH:    I t  is  f in ished so  there  is  no  comeback  on the  

procu rement  event  because remember,  the  procurement  

event  sa id ,  nego t ia te  and conc lude.   I t  i s  now negot ia ted  

and conc luded.  However,  the  Board  in  te rms o f  the  cap i ta l  

a l loca ted  to  th is  p ro jec t  had approved 830,  we l l  in  th is  

case,  a  3 .8b i l l i on  number.   Okay but  now tha t  R3.8b i l l i on  

number  to  the  procurement  p rocess  has changed.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  we l l  i t  had changed because 

you had conc luded a  cont rac t  as  we l l .  20 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  exact ly.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l  perhaps you and I  a re  speak ing  

past  one another.   Le t  me put  the  equat ion  another  way.  

What  wou ld  have happened i f  the  Board  had sa id  no? 

MR SINGH:    So  the  po in t  i s ,  aga in ,  the  Board  wou ld  no t  be  
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ab le  to  say no ,  un less  they had…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  tha t  cannot  be  r igh t  Mr  S ingh .  

MR SINGH:    No  maybe -  le t  us  rephrase Mr  Cha i r,  they  

wou ld  p robab ly  -   they  wou ld  have  ra ised concerns i f  -  and 

probab ly  they wou ld  have had the  prerogat ive  to  say no  

prov ided tha t  we ac ted  w i th in  the  conf ines o f  the  o r ig ina l l y  

approved bus iness case.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  Mr  Myburgh w i l l  fo l low up  or  w i l l  

pursue h is  l ine  o f  quest ion ing ,  why cou ldn ’ t  a l l  o f  these  

mat te rs  be  prov ided fo r  be fo re  the  conc lus ion  o f  the  10 

cont rac t ,  why cou ld  i t  no t  –  I  mean you a lways p rov ide  fo r  

esca la t ion  o f  th is  and tha t  and in te res t  and so  fo r th?   Why  

cou ld  a l l  o f  these  th ings no t  have in  p lace  before  the  Board  

i f  they  were  no t  p laced befo re  i t  made the  dec is ion  so  tha t  

once i t  has  made  the  dec is ion ,  i t  has  a  c lear  p i c tu re  o f  the  

r i sks  tha t  cou ld  happen post  the  conc lus ion  o f  the  cont rac t ,  

economic  or  o therw ise  because they have approved the  

cont rac t  fu l l y  aware  o f  var ious r i sks  tha t  have prov ided fo r  

how those r i sks  can be prov ided prepared?  Why cou ld  tha t  

no t  be  done?  20 

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  Mr  Cha i r,  i t  comes back to  the  issue o f  

the  t ime l ine  tha t  i t  takes f rom the  conceptua l isa t ion  o f  the 

pro jec t ,  es t imat ion  o f  the  cos t  o f  tha t  p ro jec t  a t  

conceptua l isa t ion  and approva l  o f  the  bus iness case,  and  

up to  the  po in t  a t  wh ich  you then ac tua l l y  cont rac t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  a t  the  t ime you say to  the  

Board ,  approve here  is  a  cont rac t ,  why shou ld  they no t  

have the  fu l l  p ic tu re  and dec ide  whethe r  they approve o r  

no t ,  inc lud ing  po tent ia l  r i sks  and then see how those 

potent ia l  r i sks  can be prov ided fo r.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink ,  because I  mean many 

cont rac ts  ge t  conc luded,  in  c i r cumstances where  there  a re  

r i sks  tha t  can be  pred ic ted  tha t  they are  l i ke ly  to  happen.  

There  are  o thers  tha t  a re  un l i ke l y,  and there  a re  o thers  

tha t  a re  incapab le ,  bu t  i t  can s t i l l  happen,  COVID-19 can 10 

happen but  they are  -  I  mean,  the  economic  s i tua t ion ,  can 

be taken in to  account  tha t  the  economy can change  and so  

on .  

MR SINGH:    And tha t  i s  exact ly  –  we l l  Mr  Cha i r,  there  one 

o ther  fac to r  we l l ,  ac tua l l y  two o ther  fac tors  tha t  I  may add  

to  your,  your  summary.   One is  the  le t  us  ca l l  i t  the 

matur i t y  o f  the  des igns re la t ing  to  the  under ly ing  product .   

So,  i f  you  were  bu i ld ing  a  house Mr  Cha i r,  and you had 

very  rud imentary  p lans,  and you went  to  a  bu i lder  and say  

bu i ld  th is  house.    20 

He wou ld  g ive  you an es t imate  bu t  g iven the  fac t  

tha t  the  p lans  are  very  rud imenta ry,  you must  a lso  

unders tand h i s  es t imat ion  wou ld  be  less  than accura te .   

Whereas i f  you  have ve ry  d i f fe ren t  p lans and you  say to  

h im,  l i s ten ,  I  wan t  th is  t ype o f  wood,  and I  want  th is  t ype o f  
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t i l es ,  and I  want  th is  co lour,  and I  wanted f rom here ,  and I  

wanted i t  f rom there ,  h is  quote  wou ld  be  ac tua l l y  much  

more  accura te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  tha t  i s  f ine  bu t  when I  approve tha t  

you can go ahead and bu i ld  the  house,  I  must  have the  fu l l  

p ic tu re .  

MR SINGH:    No,  no  tha t  i s  the  prob lem Mr  Cha i r,  you  

somet imes do not  have tha t  cer ta in .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  bu t  he  cer ta in ly  can say,  the  

bu i ld ing  mate r ia l  as  a t  th is  s tage cost  so  much i t  is  go ing  10 

to  take  n ine  months  to  f in ish  th is  house,  maybe  in  s ix  

months ’ t ime,  there  can be an increase,  maybe 10% 

because in  the  bu i ld ing  indust ry,  const ruc t ion  indust ry  th i s  

i s  what  happens dur ing  ce r ta in  t imes o f  the  year  and then I  

can make prov is ion .  

MR SINGH:    So Mr  Cha i r,  le t  us  take tha t  example ,  le t  us 

say he has rud imentary  p lans and  you dec ide  you want  to  

bu i ld  your  house here  and on th is…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  the  rud imentary  p lans  must  be long 

much ear l ie r  bu t  when I  say  go  ahead,  I  must  have f ina l  20 

p lans to  say th is  i s  the  house tha t  I  want ,  I  want  i t  to  be 

bu i l t  l i ke  th is .   Th is  i s  what  i t  i s  go ing  to  cost  me i f  there  i s  

go ing  to  be  a  change in  costs .   I t  i s  about  10% or  15%,  I  

p rov ide  fo r  tha t  I  say I  am f ine .  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r,  un fo r tunate ly,  in  the  example 
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we used when i t  is  our  own house,  then maybe we have the  

luxu ry  o f  wa i t ing  un t i l  the  p lans are  more  deve loped but  

the  po in t  i s ,  in  pr inc ip le  tha t  you do take  is  tha t  i f  you  do  

not  have those mature  p lan ,  you then have a  greater  

degree o f  uncer ta in ty  re la t ing  to  the  cost .   

Now i f  you look a t  p ro jec ts  l i ke  Medup i  and Kus i l e  

fo r  example ,  as  we l l  as  the  NMPP at  Transnet ,  as  we l l  as  

prev ious locomot ive ,  p rocurement  a t  Transnet  the  b iggest  

p rob lem was des ign  matur i t y.   To  the  ex ten t  tha t  you do not  

have mature  eng ineer ing  des igns,  you w i l l  constan t ly  have  10 

esca la t ion  in  costs .   

Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  was one o f  the  issues,  the  o ther  

i ssues tha t  you p icked on Mr  Cha i r  tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  -  

and i t  i s  per t inent  in  th is  case,  i s  the  issue o f  economic  

var iab les  and how do you pred ic t  i t .   Now,  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  

look a t  the  rand  i t  i s  very  vo la t i le  cu r rency aga ins t  any  

cur rency in  the  wor ld .  Now,  when you are  pred ic t ing  f rom 

in  th is  case,  the  bus iness case,  I  th ink ,  was approved in  

May 2013 and i t  was p remised on  the  Mi tsu i  quote  tha t  we  

or ig ina l l y  rece ived f rom Mi tsu i  a t  the  t ime and  i t  was 20 

premised on the  bus iness -  the  es t imat ion  o f  what  the  

cur rency was a t  the  t ime in  2013 compared  to  the  

Japanese yen,  wh ich  resu l ted  in  th is  3 .8b i l l i on  number.   

Okay,  now,  the  procu rement  happened in  March  

2014.   So i t  i s  a  who le  year  and the  cur rency has obv ious ly  
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changed,  the  cu r renc ies  obv ious ly  moved.   Anothe r  th ing  

tha t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  to  es t imate  a t  tha t  t ime,  Mr  Cha i r  i s  no t  

knowing what  the  ac tua l  de l i very  schedu le  o f  the  

locomot ives  i s ,  i s  what  i s  the  cost  assoc ia te  w i th  bas i ca l l y  

hedg ing  these and what  i s  the  cost  o f  ac tua l l y  the  

esca la t ion  assoc ia ted  w i th  i t .  

Because you can  on ly  take  tha t  dec i s ion  Mr  Cha i r,  

on  the  da te  on  wh ich  a re  very  c lose  to  the  da te  on  wh ich  

you are  ac tua l l y  cont rac t ing .   You can have a  v iew o f  i t  and  

you can inc lude someth ing  in  the  bus iness dea l  bu t  tha t  i s  10 

a lways aga in ,  sub jec t  to  es t imat ion  r i sk  and what  we are  

quant i f y ing  here  Mr  Cha i r,  i s  exact ly  tha t .   

I t  i s  es t imat ion  r i sk  tha t  was  inc luded in  the  

bus iness fee ,  ba r r ing  in  th is  case,  there  was one cost  

re la t ing  to  mod i f i ca t ions,  the  res t  o f  them re lease  re la ted  

to  quant i f i ca t ion  and es t imat ion .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you Cha i rperson,  I  see tha t  i t  

i s  jus t  a f te r  f i ve ,  i f  th is  wou ld  be  a  conven ien t  po in t  to  

ad journ?  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  know tha t  you  were  fo l low ing up and I  

may have in te r rup ted  your…[ in tervene]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  i s  someth ing  tha t  I  need to  re f lec t  

on  and ce r ta in ly  have a  look and see what  powers  were  

de legated to  Mr  Mole fe .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .   Okay,  le t  us  ad jou rn  

fo r  the  day then and we w i l l  con t inue a t  4  o ’c lock  on  

Monday.  For  the  benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c  one,  we do not  have  

an even ing  sess ion  today and on  Monday we w i l l  on ly  be  

hear ing  –  we w i l l  on ly  s ta r t  a t  two.    

We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 31 MARCH 2021  
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